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March 14, 2022

To the Honorable Members of the
Board of County Commissioners and
Citizens of Marion County

Florida Statutes require that all general-purpose local governments publish a complete set of
financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of
licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby submit the
annual comprehensive financial report of the County of Marion, Florida (County) for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2021.

The report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the County.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability
of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making
these representations, management of the County has established a comprehensive internal
control framework that is designed both to protect the government's assets from loss, theft,
or misuse, and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the County's
financial statements in conformity with GAAP, Because the costs of internal controls should
not outweigh their benefits, the County's comprehensive framework of internal controls has
been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial
staternents will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the
best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material
respacts.

The County's financial statements have been audited by an independent firm of certified
public accountants, Purvis Gray. The goal of the independent audit was to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the County for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2021, are free of material misstatement.



The Independent audit involed. examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles

used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation.

The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable hasis
for rendering an unmodified opinion that the County's financial statements for the fiscal yvear
ended September 30, 2021, are faily presented in conformity with GAAP. The report of
independent auditors is presented as the first component of the financial section of this
report,

The independent audit of the financial statements of the County was part of a broader,
federally mandated "Single Audit" designed to meet the special needs of federal and state
grantor agencies. The standards goveming Single Audit engagements require the
independent auditor to report not anly on the fair presentation of the financial staterments, but
also on the audited County's internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with
special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involing the administration of
federal and state awards. These reports are in the compliance section of this report.

GAAP requires that management provide a namrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financlal statements in the form of Management's Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MDE&A and should
be read in conjunction with it. The County's MD&A can be found immediately following the
report of the independent auditars,

Profile of the County of Marion, Florida

Marion County was created by the Florida Legislature on March 14, 1844 from land formerly
part of Alachua, Hillsborough and Crange Counties. The County is located in Morth Central
Florida, encompassing more than 1,652 sguare miles, making it one of Florida's larger
Counties. The eastern guarter of the County contains the Ocala National Forest, which is
one of the most visited national forests in America. The forest, along with its lakes and
rivers, provide recreational opportunities for thousands of visitors each year.
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Marion County is a political subdivision of the State of Florida. As such, it is governed by and
derives its operating authority from the constitution and laws of the State of Florida. The
County operates under a commission/administrator form of government, with a governing
board consisting of five county commissioners, elected at-large to staggered four-year terms.
Each commission member must meet district residency requirements. In addition to the
Board of County Commissioners (BCC), there are five elected constitutional officers
performing specifically designated governmental functions: The Clerk of Court and
Comptroller, Property Appraiser, Shenff, Supervisor of Elections, and Tax Collector. The
BCC exercises a varying degree of budgetary control, but not administrative control, over the
activities of the constitutional officers. During fiscal year 2020-2021, the Property Appraiser,
Sheriff, Supervisor of Elections, and Tax Collector each operated their respective offices as
budget officers with funding provided by the BCC in the form of operating subsidies. In
return, each budget officer is responsible for the collection of revenues within their
jurisdictional area, and for the subsequent remittance of such collections to the BCC. The
Clerk of Court and Comptroller operates as a budget officer, a fee officer, and receives State
funding for the courts (Fee officers are authorized to retain revenues generated within their
offices for the purpose of defraying the costs of operation). As Clerk to the BCC, the duties
of the Clerk of Court and Comptroller, as set forth in the Flonda Constitution, include those of
county auditor, accountant and custodian of county funds.

The financial reporting entity (the County) includes all the funds of the primary government
{Marion County Board of County Commissioners) as well as all of its component units.
Component units are legally separate entities for which the primary government is financially
accountable. The County provides a full range of services including jails, police and fire
protection, solid waste disposal, sewer and water services, the construction and maintenance
of highways, streets and infrastructure, recreational activities, planning and zoning services,
and economic development programs.

Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are in substance part of the
primary government operation and are included as part of the primary government.
Accordingly, the Clerk of Court and Comptroller, Property Appraiser, Sheriff, Supervisor of
Elections, and Tax Collector are included as blended component units of the County.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements 1s perhaps best understood when it is
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the County
operates.

Local Economy

The Qcala Metro economy continues to demonstrate very strong fundamentals. The local
unemployment rate at the end of the year was only 4.0%. The Ocala Metro has consistently
led the state in the growth of manufacturing jobs throughout the year with a manufacturing
workforce of nearly 11,000, Logistics, construction, hospitality, healthcare, and services all



reported strong growth throughout the year. More importantly, the Ocala Metro is recording
job growth while at the same time seeing wages report healthy gains.

One of the most significant changes in the local business community has been the planned
investment by nearly a dozen companies in the area for industrial spec development projects
that will add north of 7 millicn sq. ft. to the local market over the next 18 months. The
investment in these facilities represents a capital investment of more than $700 million.

Several new companies opened facilities or had new facilities under construction in 2021,
Optimum RV announced in the summer they were locating their new corporate headquarters
in a recently acquired office building in Southeast Ocala. This new facility allowed them to
add more than 50 high-wage jobs with opportunity for more growth in the future. Cardinal LG,
which already operates two manufacturing facilities and a regional office locally, opened a
new Technology Center to support R&D in the laminated glass industry. This new facility is
located in the Meadowbrook Industrial Park and is just down the street from the new 200,000
sq. ft. warehouse for Signature Brands.

While Ocala has long been known as a manufacturing hub, a new industry recently
discovered the value of manufacturing and distributing here. Three cultivation and processing
facilities {(considered biopharmaceutical by the industrial rating services) are under
construction for the medical cannabis industry. Over the next few years, these facilities for
GTl and Green Ops will employ more than 350 people at wages well above the community
average. Additionally, other companies are looking at the market in this segment with at least
one more anticipated in early 2022.

The growth of Qcala as a regional healthcare hub continues to accelerate. Continued
investments and expansions by AdventHealth Ocala, Ocala Regional Medical Center, and
West Marion Community Hospital have added beds, new service lings, and increased access
to care throughout the community, all while continuing to provide amazing care through the
pandemic. ORMC is adding a floor to finish its critical care tower while West Marion has
begun work on a third tower with plans for an npatient rehab and more beds. AdventHealth
continues to expand services, especially with its refurbished and expanded NICU and its
new, free-standing ER in Belleview. At the end of year, the Ocala City Council rezoned
approximately 30 acres near US 27 and [-75 for a new hospital—the area’s fourth—being
built by UF Health.

A major economic highlight is the opening of the new World Equestrian Center. This
incredible complex had its soft opening in December 2020 and rolled out hard into the year.
Featuring five indoor arenas, 25 outdoor arenas, 2800+ permanent barn stalls, a beautiful
250-room luxury hotel, and 8 restaurants, WEC has become a destination for equestrians
and non-equestrians alike. With more than 700 employees and an annual econemic impact
already well north of $100 million, this complex has single-handedly reimagined the local
tourism economy. Work had begun at the end of the year on Phase 2, which will bring 80,000
sq. ft of retail, more meeting space, and a 400-room hotel by mid-2024.

Finally, housing continues to be a major area of growth. The Ocala Metro has been a top five
metro nationally in the increase of single family housing starts and in the increase in median
housing price. As the area continues growth as one of the ten fastest growing metros in the
nation, the demand for housing will only continue. The year ended with more than 1500



multi-family units through the permitting process with many having already begun
construction. It is anticipated the market needs an additional 4500-5000 multi-family units just
to meet current demand.

Long-Term Financial Planning

The BCC has identified improvements to be made as part of its Capital Improvement
Program (CIP) for fiscal years 2020-2021 through 2024-2025. The CIP includes capital
improvements in the amount of $33,316,461, of which $20,304,460 is to be funded from the
proceeds of a one-percent local option sales tax levied through public referendum and in
effect for the calendar years of 2017 through 2020. The local option sales tax is expected to
generate $165,460,856 for Marion County over the four-year term and will provide funding for
transportation infrastructure and capital for public safety purposes.

Planned CIP general capital improvements include Courtroom audio and video upgrades,
Southeastern Livestock Pavilion auditorium audic visual upgrades, elevator rebuilds,
continued enhancements to an Enterprise Resource Planning - Information System, and
Marion County Sheriff Training Facility improvements. In addition to their CIP, the BCC
adopted a Transportation Improvement Program (T[P), which identified improvements to be
made to the County’s road system for fiscal years 2020-2021 through 2024-2025. The total
projected cost of transportation improvements identified in the TIP is $82,117,700, not
including $15,026,807 of transportation projects included in the local option sales tax funding
above.

Relevant Financial Policies

Pension Plan

The County provides pension benefits for all employees through a statewide plan managed
by the Florida Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement. The statewide
plan is a contributory pension plan. The County complies with the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68 "Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions," in regard to recognizing its unfunded portion of the statewide plan as a liability.

This is reflected in the financial statements and notes within this Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report.

Fund Balance Policy

The County has established a fund balance policy in accordance with GASB Statement No.
54 “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions”. The purpose of the
fund balance policy is to establish a key element of the financial stability of the County by
setting guidelines for fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is an important measure of
economic stability. It is essential that the county maintain adequate levels of unassigned fund
balance to mitigate financial risk that can occur from unforeseen revenue fluctuations,
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unanticipated expenditures, and similar circumstances. The fund balance also provides cash
flow liquidity for the County's general operations.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Marion
County, Florida for its Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2020. This was the thirty-sixth consecutive year that the government
has achieved this prestigious award (fiscal years ended 1985-2020). In order to be awarded
a Certficate of Achievemeant, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized ACFR. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our
current ACFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements, and
we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

An ACFR of this nature could not have been prepared without the efficient and dedicated
sarvice of all staff members involved. We would like to express our appreciation to the staff
of the Clerk of Court and Comptroller Finance and Budget Departments for their efforts in
producing this report, and to Purvis Gray, Crippen & Co.; Milestone Professional Services,
Inc.; and Vision PR & Marketing for their contributions to the design, preparation, and
publication of this document  Finally, our thanks for the interest and support of the Board of
County Commissioners in planning and conducting the fiscal operations of Marion County.

Respectfully submitted,

g Goroif- Gl

Gregory C. Harrell Jennifer Cole, CGFO
Clerk of Court and Comptroller Finance Director
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PURVIS GRAY

INDEPENDEMNT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of County Commissioners
Marion County, Florida
Ocala, Florida

Report on the Financial 5tatements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Marion County, Florida {Marion County) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2021,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Marion County's basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
Brror.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility & to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 5tates of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Awditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions,

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Guntnesville | Oala | TaMahasess | Sarasofa | Ofando | Lakeland | Tampa
pUrvisgray,com
Memberi of Anterican and Flarida beirmues of Cortilied Pubdc Accoustants

An Indepeediend Mermber of the BINY Allsscs USA
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Board of County Commissioners
Marion County, Florida
Qcala, Florida

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Opinions

In our opinien, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of Marien County as of September 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial pesition and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund and major
special revenue funds for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s
discussion and analysis, schedule of changes in total other postemployment benefits liability and related
ratios, schedule of propertionate share of net pension liability, and schedule of contributions, as listed in
the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such infermation,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during ocur audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence
to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

QOur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise Marion County’s financial statements as a whole. The introductory section, combining and
individual non-major fund statements and schedules, and statistical section listed in the table of contents
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.

The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of
management and were derived from, and relate directly to, the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.



Board of County Commissioners
Marion County, Florida
Ocala, Florida

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The introductory section and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Stondords

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 14, 2022,
on our consideration of Marion County's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control owver financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinkon on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report & an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Marion County's internal contral over
financial reporting and compliance.

NV, @;r’mg,
farch 14, 2022
Ocala, Florida



MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, Continued
Sepltember 30, 2021

This Management's Discussion and Analysis "MD&A™) presents an owverview of the financial ectivities of
Marion County, Florda (the “County™) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021, Please read it in
conjunction with the Letter of Transmittal and the County's financial statemeants.

Financial Highlights

« The assels and deferred outflows of resources of the County exceeded its [iabilities and deferred
inflows of resources at the close of fiscal year 2021 by 31,712,763, 267 (net position}). OF this
amount, 539,933 811) is deficit unrestricted net position.

. The County's ftolal net position increased by S$106,248.353 for curment year activibies. OF this
increase, 382,415,997 was atinbuted to governmental actvities and 323.832 356 to business-type
activities,

« Al September 30, 2021, the County's governmenial funds reported combined ending fund balances
of 5337, 700,050, an increase of 387 B62 162 in comparnson with the prior year.

« AL September 30, 2021, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $35,390,147 or 13.1%
of tatal General Fund expendituras,

Owverview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended 1o serve as an infroduction to the County's basic financial staterments.
The County's basic financial statements comprise three componenis: 1) government-wide financial
staternents, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains
ather supplementary information in addition ta the basic financial statements themsehes.

Organization and Flow of Financial Section Information

et peisride it Auditors’ Report
Frevvides the apinion af the indeperes Auslinrs an the foir presemintion of the basic fimincis saotemments

Plsnagement s Discussion angd Anabyiis
This suppletneadary deformafies & reqorreed for 2o ovd foced government financiod séofemenis,

el B dntvaitedd L prosddi @ AarTanive nfraducrion, overyien and ansheiic

| I

A P TW TV - i Fuind
Financial Statements Finandal Staterments
Prowfdes informmatin an Froseides infarmation an fhe
guicerameatal aid Bisimes: Financial posicion of specific
vpee orities of che Fumats off e purimary
Py QUETTITmE, evernmant

MNotes to Financial Statements
Provides @ sumpsary of signifiant ooooumibier policks and rekated dénclosares
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Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements, which consist of the following two statements, are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the County’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector
business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the County’'s assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between them reported as net
pasition.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating. Additicnally, nonfinancial factors, such as a
change in the County’s property tax base or the condition of County facilities and infrastructure, should be
considered to assess the overall health of the County.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’'s net position changed during
fiscal year 2021. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event, giving rise to the
change, occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in
this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes
and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of these financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are principally supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all
or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The
governmental activities of the County include general government, public safety, physical environment,
transportation, economic environment, human services, culture/recreation, and court related activities. The
business-type activities of the County include solid waste disposal and water and wastewater utilities.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the County itself (known as the primary
government) but alsc legally separate entities known as Component Units. Component units, which are other
governmental units over which the County Commission can exercise influgnce and/or may be obligated to
provide financial subsidy, are presented as a separate column in the government-wide financial statements
and as individual activities in the basic and fund financial statements. The County’'s component units will not
be addressed in this MD&A.

Fund financial statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County, like other state and local governments, uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of
the County can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-ferm inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it
is useful to compare the information presented for govermmental funds with similar information presented for
govemmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental
funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental
activities.
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The County maintains dozens of individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances for the General Fund, County Transportation Maintenance, MSTU for Law
Enforcement, Silver Springs CRA Trust Fund, Fire Rescue & EMS Fund, American Rescue Plan, and
Infrastructure Surtax Capital Projects Fund, which are considered to be major funds. Individual fund data for
the General Fund, combining the Board of County Commissioners, Clerk of Court and Comptroller, Property
Appraiser, Sheriff, Supervisor of Elections and Tax Collector is provided in the form of combining statements
in the other supplemental information section of this report. Data from the other governmental funds are
combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements in the other supplemental information
section of this report.

The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general, most special revenue, most debt service
funds and most capital projects funds. Budgetary comparison schedules have been provided for these funds
to demonstrate budgetary compliance.

The County maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The County uses
enterprise funds to account for the fiscal activities relating to solid waste disposal, and water and wastewater
utilities. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally
among the County’s various functions. The County uses the internal service fund to account for its
self-insurance and risk management program. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental
rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in
more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Solid Waste and
Marion County Utility funds, which are considered to be major funds of the County.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources of those
funds are not available to support the County’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is
similar to proprietary funds. The County only has custodial funds.

Notes to the financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, reguired supplementary information is
included which presents a schedule of changes in total OPEB liability and related ratios for other post
employment benefits liability, schedules of proportionate share of net pension liability; and schedules of
contributions for cost-sharing pension plans.

A budgetary comparison schedule for the major Infrastructure Surtax Capital Project Fund, the combining
statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds, and fiduciary funds are
presented in the other supplemental information section of this report, along with budgetary comparison
schedules for the County’'s honmajor governmental funds.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In
the case of the County, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources by $1,712 763,267 at the close of the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021.
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The County is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net position for its business-type
activities and two of the categories for its governmental activities.

The largest portion of the County’s net position (87.0%) reflects its net investment in capital assets. The
County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available
for future spending. Although the County’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. The County has restricted net position
of $261,992 708 for debt service, capital projects, law enforcement, fire & rescue, resource conservation,
transportation and other purposes. The remaining balance of $(39,933,911) is unrestricted net position.

Marion County, Florida

Net Position
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Current and other assets $ 438369440 % 341,791,949 $ 142,694,552  § 134,844,643 $ 581,063,992 $ 476,636,502
Capital assets (net) 1,421,695,087 1,424,683,308 180,568,637 154,678,622 1,802,263,724 1,579,361,930

Total Assets 1,860,064, 527 1,766,475,257 323,263,189 289,523,265 2,183,327,716 2,055,998,522
Deferred outflows of resources 67,505,316 106,141,893 4,145,987 4,865,667 71,651,303 111,007,560

Total Deferred QOutflows 67,505,316 106,141,893 4,145,987 4,865,667 71,651,303 111,007,560
Current and other liabilities 70,669,029 42,771,965 7,261,556 6,415,195 77,930,585 49,187,160
Long-term liabilities 183,065,268 395,737,778 109,950,320 106,109,323 293,015,588 501,847,101

Total Liabilities 253,734,297 438,509,743 117,211,878 112,524,518 370,946,173 551,034,261
Deferred inflows of resources 166,452,104 9,139,962 4,817,475 316,945 171,269,579 9,456,907

Total Deferred Inflows 166,452 104 9,139,962 4,817,475 316,945 171,269,579 9,456,907
Net Position:
Net Investment in
Capital Assets 1,381,483,048 1,380,314,616 109,221,422 87,738,136 1,490,704,470 1,468,052,752
Restricted 260,529,971 207,390,748 1,462,737 6,494,009 261,992,708 213,884,757
Unrestricted (134,629,577) (162,737,919 94,695,666 87,315,324 (39,933,911) (75,422,595)

Total Met Position $ 1,507,383442 § 1,424 967,445 $ 205,379,825  § 181,547,469 $ 1,712,763,267 $ 1,606,514,914

There was a net increase of $23,832,356 in net position reported in connection with the County's
business-type activities that resulted from current year activities. Governmental activities increased the
County’s net position by $82,415,997 from current year activities.

Current and other assets increased by $96,577,491 for governmental activities in line with the overall net
increase in net position for the year. The majority of the increases are attributed to changes in cash and
investments resulting from additional infrastructure surtax funds and advanced ARP Act funds for costs in the
next fiscal year.

Deferred outflows of resources decreased by $(39,356,257) and deferred inflows of resources increased by
$161,812,672 from the prior year primarily as a result of changes in the County's pension balances and other
postemployment benefits (OPEB) in the current year. Deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources
represent amounts that will increase or decrease net position in future periods.

Key reasons for the changes that resulted from other current year activities are presented in the following
pages for governmental and business-type activities.
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Marion County, Florida
Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

REVENUES
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services $ 108523763 § 101601644 § 43831717 § 41,169,539 § 152,355480 § 142,771,183

Operating Grants and

Contributions 53,643,685 45,309,258 1,087,129 1,420,862 54,730,814 46,730,120

Capital Grants and Contributions 17,413,189 16,664,827 23,991,419 16,284,064 41,404,608 32,948,891
General Revenues:

Property Taxes 156,778,555 145,494,422 156,778,555 145,494,422

Other Taxes 116,943,652 100,812,124 - - 116,943,652 100,812,124

Other 14,813,209 17,261,664 3,479,292 4,883,582 18,292,501 22,145,246

Total Revenues 468,116,053 427,143,939 72,389,557 63,758,047 540,505,610 490,901,986
EXPENSES
General Government 82,866,030 56,898,410 82,886,030 56,898,410
Public Safety 200,266,032 224,656,435 200,266,032 224,656,435
Physical Environment 3,120,595 5,870,948 3,120,595 5,870,948
Transportation 30,074,510 47,470,597 30,074,510 47,470,597
Economic Environment 5,502,458 5897 267 5,592 458 5,807,267
Human Services 28,086,040 18,969,485 28,086,040 18,969,485
Culture/R ecreation 18,638,401 14,333,591 18,638,401 14,333,591
Court-Related 15,876,781 13,218,124 15,876,781 13,218,124
Interest on Long-term Debt 1,161,416 1,501,366 - - 1,161,416 1,501,366
Solid Waste - - 19,632,592 15,380,327 19,632,592 15,380,327
Water and Wastewater - - 28,922 402 27,441,498 28,922,402 27,441,498
Total Expenses 385,702,263 388,816,223 48,554,994 42,821,825 434,257,257 431,638,048

Excess (Deficiency) Before Transfers 82,413,790 38,327,716 23,834,563 20,936,222 106,248,353 59,263,938
Transfers 2,207 21,647 (2,207) (21,647) - -
Change in Net Position 82,415,997 38,349,363 23,832,356 20,914,575 106,248,353 59,263,938
Beginning Net Position 1,424,967 445 1,386,618,082 181,547,469 160,632,804 1,606,514,914 1,547,250,976
Ending Net Position § 1,507,383442 § 1424967445 § 205379825 § 181547460 § 1,712,763,267 § 1,606,514,914

Governmental activities

Governmental activities increased the County's net position by $82,415,997. Total revenues increased from
the prior year by $41.0 million, including an increase of $11.3 million in property tax revenues from increasing
property values, an increase of $8.3 million in operating grants for CARES Act funding, and an increase in
charges for services of $6.9 million for additional services used by our citizens and businesses. Total
expenses decreased $(3.1) million from the prior year. General government increased by $26.0 million and
human services increased by $9.1 million primarily due to provision of additional Covid-related assistance
programs. These increases were offset by decreases in public safety of ${24.4) million and transportation of
$(17.4) million mostly from significant pension expense reductions related to changes in the net pension

liability.
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Expenses and Program Revenues — Governmental Activities
ool Program T of Het [Expense)

Functions/Programs Expenzes Total Revenues Total Revenue
General Governmen £ B2.eec0a0 216 % 5 15047 W45 B4 W% 5 (ETHIB2ES)
Public Safety 200 266032 519 % 78.181,705 435 W (122084 32T)
Prysical Emvinonment 3,120,595 0E % 4 2EBEATS 24 1,147 5786
Transporiafion 30,074 510 TE ™ 20841 645 116 % (9432 .866)
Economic Envirgnmiant 5 592 458 14 % 50939921 284 % 45,347 482
Human Senvices 28 086040 T2 % 689 887 04 % (27.396,163)
CullurefRecreslion 18 638 201 248 % 12862148 0.7 % (17.350,183)
Court-Related 15 876,781 41 W 8,523,343 4.7 % (7.353 438)
Imteres! on Long-term Debl 1161416 0.3 . 0o % (1161 418)

S 386702 363 1000 % $ 179.580.637 100.0 % 5 (206.121.626)

250,000,000

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities

200,000,000

= Expanses

150,000,000

= Program Revenues

100,000,000

50,000,000
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Revenues by Source — Governmental Activities

% of
Diescripdion Revenues Tatal
Charges for Sendoes 5 108,523,763 232
Operating Granis and
Contributicns 53543 845 1158
Capital Grants and
Contribubions 17413, 1859 3,7
Property Tax 196,778,050 33,9
Irfrastructure Surtax B2.5681 047 11.2
Sales Tax 304513, 208 6.5
Public Senvice Tax 2074 101 0.4
Gas Tax 27.011,398 58
State Revenus Sharing 10817737 23
Tounist Devalopment Tax J3ATE 448 08
Oter Taxes 1,007 442 0.2
Inergovernmental Revenues 866,371 02
Irterast Incoma S38 2 02
Miscelaneous 2180819 0.5
5 468, 116,053 100.0

FERERERERERE & #

#

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities

Proparty Tax , 33.5% Sales Tax , 6.5%

Crparating trants and
Coniribusons . 11.65%

Infrastruciure Sufax |
11.2%

Gas Tax, 5.8%

Changes for Services,

23.2%

Capital Grants and

Contnibutons |, 3.7%

Public Senice Tax ,
0.4%

State Revanue
Gharing | 2.3%

Toursm Tax . 0.6%

Other Taxes , 1.2%

Intergovemmae:ntal
Revenues , 0.2%

Intarest Income, 0.2%

Miscellansous | 0.5%
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Business-type aclivities

Business-type activities increased the Counby's net position by 523 832 356 Total revenues increased by $8.6
million from the prior year mostly attributed to capital grants and contributions increase of $7.7 million for
increased connection fees due o additional development and capital grants recelved from outside agencies.
Business-type expenses increased minimally from the prior year. The Liility Fund experienced operating

income for the vear, which appears fo indicate that the County's current rates are sufficient o sustain the
system at this time.

Expenses and Program Revenues — Business-type Activities

Yo of Program o of Het [Expenzea)
Functions/Programs Expenses Total Revenues Total Revenue
Solld Waste $ 19632592 404 % % 16808613 MA % 3§ (2.823.979)
Waler and W ashowaler 28,922 402 506 % 52101 652 756 % 23,173,250
5 48554 994 1000 % 5 68910265 1000 % 5 20 355 271
Expenses and Revenues - Business-Type Activities
60,000,000
50,000,000
40,000,000
30,000,000
20,000,000 -
10,000,000 -
Solid Waste I Water and Wastewater
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Revenues by Source — Business-type Activilies

Y of
Description Revenues Tatal
Charges for Sepdces 5 43,831,717 605 %
Operating Grants and
Contributions 1,087,128 15 %
Capital Grantz and
Contributions 23,981 418 332 %
interest Income 233,327 03 %
Miscelaneous 2724 703 38 %
Gain en Sale of Azzels 521,262 0.7 %
5 72389557 100.0 %

Revenues by Source - Business-Type Activities

® Charges for Services

B Dperatng Grants and
Contributions

@ Cap#al Grants and
Contrbutions
¥ |nferest Income

1 Miscellaneous

@ Gain on Sale of CA

Financial Analysis of the County's Funds

Governmental funds

The focus of the County's governmental funds is 1o provde information on near-term inflows, cutfiows, and
balances of spendable resowrres. Such information is useful in assessing the County's financing
requirem ents, In particular, unassigned fund balsnce may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of fiscal year 2021, the County's governmental funds reporfed combined ending fund bafances
of $337 700,050, an increase of 587 6682 162 in comparison with the prior year, The County's General Fund
Unassigned fund balamce is $353090147. The majorty of unassigned fund balance consisls of funds
budgeted in the subsequent year for contingency, The County's governmental funds reported combined
ending restricted fund balances of 5252 076,214, an increase of $48.7 million from the prior year mostly from
infrastrecture surtax revenues restricted for use, Resiricted fund balance includes amounts that can only be
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spent for specific purposes as stipulated by external resource providers either constibutionally or through
enabling legislkation such as the Flonda Slatutes, laws and regulations, of grantors.

The County's govemmental funds reported Commilted fund Balances of 53,915,182 and Assigned fund
balances of $39,210,815, which are available for spending in accordance with related ordimances or County
policy. The remainder of fund balances |3 Nonspendable to indicate that it is not available for spending
because it is nof in spendable form: for imrentones (32,941 942) and for prepaid tems (34,165 250).

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. Al the end of fiscal year 2021, unassigned fund
balance of the General Fund was 535,380 147, while total fund balance reached 576, 180,352 As a measure
of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful o compare both unassigned fund balance and tofal fund
balance to tolal fund expenditeres, Unassigned fund balance represents 13.1% of the total General Fund
expenditures, while total fund balance represents 28.2% of thal sam e amount.

The mcrease in fund balance of the County's General Fund was 535712810 during the current fiscal year.
Charges for services increased by 35,6 million from the prior year as a resull of increased usage of services
by County citizens; intergovernmental revenues increased by $69.0 million for grant reimbursements, CARES
Act funding, and state-collected revenues; and taxes increased by 54.9 million from increased property values
Expenditures for public safely increased by $12.4 million and general government increased by 5341 million
from the prior year as a result of increased personnel costs for County safety infliatives and provision of
COVID-19 prevention measures and cilizen recovery programs.

The following graph displays the General Fund current expenditures by function for FY21 and FY20 (it does
not incdude debt serdce or aher financing uses).

General Fund Current Expenditures by Function

= Court-Related

# Culiure/Recraation

®m Human Sarices
Ecanomic Enviranment

" Transporiaton

m Physical Environmani

® Public Safety

= General Govemment

Fyai Fya0

The County Transportation Maintenance Fund provides funding in the form of gas taxes for the Marion County
Transporation Department. At the end of fiscal year 2021, ending fund balance totaled 3360236428, an
increase of 52 132,178 from the prior year. This is attributed to an increase in gas taves collected in the fiscal
year due to fransportation returning to pre-COVID-18 lockdown pericds.

The MSTU far Law Enforcem ent Fund provides funding in the form of ad valorem taxes for the Marion Counfy
Sheriffs Depariment, At the end of fiscal year 2021, restricted and assigned fund balance tolaled 59.268,208;
this amount represents 16.2% of the fund's toflal expenditures and transfers out. The fund balance decreased
minimally by 51,253 894) from the prior year as a resulk of additional costs to provide public safety sendces
through the Sheriff's Department.
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The Silver Springs CRA Trust Fund was established to account for the County's designated redevelopment
program and restricted revenues to fund it. At the end of the fiscal year, restricted fund balance totaled
$208,107. The fund balance increased by $36,403 from the prior year due to minimal operating expenditures.

The Fire, Rescue and EMS fund was established to promote the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of
the County. At the end of the fiscal year, fund balance totaled $14,189,206, an increase of $3,901,336 from
the prior fiscal year. This was mainly a result of a $1.1 million increase in taxes revenues from the prior year.
The revenues increase was due to increased property values and ad valorem rate increase from the prior
year. Additionaly, there was a capital lease issue of $1.2 million in the current year.

The Infrastructure Surtax Capital Projects Fund was established to account for the County's infrastructure
surtax revenues and capital infrastructure expenditures. The fund balance totaled $92,753,620, an increase of
$34,289,785 from the prior fiscal year. This was the result of increased surtax revenues not spent in the period
that will be used for future infrastructure projects.

The American Rescue Plan fund was established to account for the County's allocation from the Coronavirus
State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund federal relief program and its related expenditures. The fund is new in
FY21 and resulted in a $71,568 ending fund balance from interest earned on advanced grant receipts.

Proprietary funds

The County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail. All enterprise funds are reported as major funds. As previously discussed, the
internal service fund is combined with governmental funds to arrive at governmental activities. Unrestricted net
position of enterprise funds at the end of the year amounted to:

Unrestricted Net Position

Fund 201 2020

Solid Waste $ 58,622,877 & 60,836,633
Marion County Utility 36,072,789 26,475,691
Total $ 94,695,666 & §7,315324

There was a decrease in unrestricted net position for the Solid Waste Fund of $(2,213,758), and an increase
in unrestricted net position for the Utility Fund of $9,594,098. The Solid Waste Fund's total net position
decreased by $(2,130,561), while the Ultility Fund's total net position increased by $25962 917 from the
current year's activities. The Solid Waste Fund's decrease is primarily due to increased closure and
postclosure care costs of $3.0 million. The Utility Fund's increase in net position was the result of increased
capital grants and contributions for system improvements of $7.7 million.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The General Fund's original budget increased by $18,447 649 to arrive at the final amended budget for
expenditures and transfers out. The largest change was an increase to human services of $13.8 million for
COVID-19 related community assistance. The changes within functions are summarized in the table below.
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Qrigimal

Budget Final Budget Change
General Government 5 107883716 5 108474730 % (1.508886)
Public Salely 148,872 374 146,884 281 11,887
Physical Environment 1,451,112 1,461,308 30,198
Tramsportation B78.121 ara i -
Economic Efviron et 2,363 648 2,372,639 3,999
Human Services Z37ra2 37,541,595 13,765,383
CutturafRecreation 13,820, 456 15412818 1,582 282
Court-Felated 12,841,721 16872132 4 030, 411
Dbt Service 303,833 393,033 -
Transfers CQut 1.535170 2057 575 S22 405

5 M2002463 05 330470112 & 16,447 G458

The General Fund underspent the final budget by 3563 million. The variances within functions are
summarized in the table below.

Actual
Expenditures Final Budget Variance

General Govemment 5 TH.535 810 S 106.4T4 730 5 26538920
Pubdic Safaty 141,025 885 146 884 2481 5,858 372
Physical Environrmaent 908,975 1,481 308 574,332
Transpostation 394 438 Bra 1 484 842
Economes Environment 1,463 462 2T B #0877
Human Services 24,877 452 A7 541 505 12,884 103
Culture/Recreation 10,469 587 15,412 818 4,943 251
Court-Related 11,140,275 18972132 5,831,857
Debt Service 255 866 355 813 137 887
Transters Out 3145 826 20587 575 1 281

F3 273615702 § 330470112 5 BB BR4 410

—————. | ——— | —

The largest differences between actual expenditures and the final budget resulted in general government of
3255 million due to unspent budgeted contingency, Overhead costs and fuel allocations in the amount of 399
millian in general government ane budgeted, but eliminated expenditures.

Ganaral Fund &ctual ve Budgets

B dctusl Eaparcifures
Firal Budget
W Crgnal Budget
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, Continued
September 30, 2021

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

The County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of September
30, 2021 amounts to $1,602,263,724 (net of accumulated depreciation and amortization). This investment in
capital assets includes land, historical treasures, buildings, improvements other than buildings (including
leasehold improvements), equipment, software, infrastructure, and construction in progress. The County's
total investment in capital assets increased by $22.9 million from the prior year.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following

. Infrastructure related to governmental activities increased by $18.3 million from the prior year including
$1.2 million from construction in progress projects that closed out and were placed in service.

«  System improvements related to business-type activities increased by $20.9 million from the prior year.

Marion County, Florida
Capital Assets, Net

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
201 2020 201 2020 201 2020
Land § 439320269 § 435278765 § 8778168 § 8778168 § 448098437 § 444,056,933
Historical Treasures 266,238 266,238 - - 266,238 266,238
Buildings 242 233,467 241,932,429 8,826,963 8,828,963 251,062,430 250,761,392
Improvemts Other than
Buildings 71,699,010 60,232,871 306,340,744 285,390,754 378,039,754 345,623,625
Equipment 160,312,781 152,414,833 16,044,349 15,883,528 176,357,130 168,298,361
Software 4,050,890 4,050,890 - 4,050,890 4,050,890
Infrastructure 1,372,674,904 1,354,374,862 - - 1,372,674,904 1,354,374,862
Construction in Progress 4,091,055 13,425,780 34,212,211 15,676,300 38,303,266 29,102,080
Construction in Progress -
Infrastructure 60,035,151 37,763,254 - 60,035,151 37,763,254
2,354,683,765 2,299,739,922 374,204,435 334,557,713 2,728,888,200 2,634,297,635
Less: Accumulated
Depreciation {932,988,678) {875,056,614) (193,635,798) {179,879,091)  (1,126,624,476)  (1,054,935,705)
Capital Assets, net $ 1421695087 § 1424683308 § 180,568,637 § 154,678,622 § 1,602,263,724  § 1,579,361,930

Additional information on the County's capital assets, including major construction commitments, can be found
in Note 4 of this report.

Long-term debt

At the end of fiscal year 2021, the County had total bonded debt outstanding of $92,505,537. Of this amount,
$5,195,537 is special assessment debt for which the government is not liable in the event of default by the
property owners subject to the assessment. The remainder of the County’s bonded debt $87,310,000
represents bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources (i.e., revenue bonds). Additionally, the County
had notes from direct borrowings of $20,666,568 at the end of fiscal year 2021.
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, Continued
September 30, 2021

Marion County, Florida
Outstanding Bonded Debt and Notes from Direct Borrowings

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
General Obligation Bonds $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Revenue Bonds 31,675,000 34,760,000 55,635,000 48,015,000 87,310,000 82,775,000
Special Assessment Bonds 5,195,537 4474207 - 5,195,537 4474207
Notes from Direct Borrowings 1,696,192 688,956 18,970,376 18,657,545 20,666,568 19,346,501

§ 38,566,729 § 39,923,163 § 74605376 § 66,672,545 § 113,172,105 § 106,595,708

The County's outstanding bonded debt and nctes from direct borrowings increased by $6.6 million. This
increase is attributed to the Utility Fund current year bond refunding offset by scheduled debt service principal
reductions in the year.

Additional information on the County's debt, including any major changes to the County's credit ratings, can be
found in Note 5 of this report.
Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

« The annual average unemployment rate for the County for 2021 was 4.70% which was a minimal
decrease from the prior year. The average adjusted rate for 2020 was 5.30%.

e« The taxable assessed value increased 7.8% in the 2021 fiscal year.
. Population increased approximately 3.5% from the prior fiscal year to 381,176 at September 30, 2021.

During the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance in the General Fund increased to $35,390,147. The
County has budgeted $80,631,397 for spending in the 2022 fiscal year budget, which includes $38,931,200 of
assigned fund balance carried forward from 2021. The ad valorem tax rate for the General Fund remained the
same as the prior year at 3.45% for the 2022 fiscal year budget.

Rates for the County’s water and wastewater utilities remained unchanged in fiscal year 2021. There are no
scheduled increases in rates for fiscal year 2022.

In an effort to help stimulate job creation and the economy, the County is awarding Economic Development
Financial Incentive Grants. Both Marion County and the City of Ocala are working together with the Economic
Development Council to develop potential industrial parks and bring new jobs to Marion County.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to present users with a general overview of the County’s finances and to
demonstrate the County's accountability. If you have questions concerning any of the information provided in
this report or need additional financial information, contact the Marion County Clerk of Court and Comptroller,
Finance Department, 110 NV First Avenue, Ocala, Florida, 34475,
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
Statement of Net Position

September 30, 2021

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 89952211 & 46,756,778 136,708,989 § 309,389
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 232,266,444 16,580,171 248 846,615 -
Investments 50,306,372 56,485,648 106,792,020 314,131
Restricted Investmenis 28,263,527 - 28,263,527 -
Accounts Receivable, Net 8,499,859 750,211 §,250,070 8,594
Accrued Interest Receivable 126,949 83,969 210,918 -
Special Assessments Receivable 3067 467 - 3067 467 -
Due from Other Governments 17,875,119 971,784 18,846,903 10,497
Internal Balances 4,300 {4,300} - -
Inventories 2,941,042 735,011 3676953 -
Prepaid ltems 4 165,250 29,4658 4194716 258,847
Other Assels - 20,305,814 20,305,814 -
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 503,712,713 42,990,379 546,703,082 -
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Amortized {Net) 917,082,374 137,578,268 1,055 660,632 3,797 144
Total Assets 1,860,064,527 323,263,189 2,183 327,716 4 896 602
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Amount on Refunding 2,604 348 2,683,384 5377712 -
Deferred QOutflows related to OPEB 1,358,557 37 477 1,397,034 -
Deferred Quifiows related to Pensions 63,451,411 1,425,146 64,878,557 -
Total Deferred Outflows of Rescurces 67 505,316 4,145 987 71,651,303 -
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 10,075,520 2,035,312 12,110,832 5886
Contracts Payable 980,546 519,319 1,490 865 -
Accrued Liabilities 5,045,924 406,151 5,452 075 100,698
Accrued Interest Payable 203,945 360,976 654,921 -
Due to Other Governments 3,452,735 76,702 3529437 -
Due to Individuals 1,065,457 - 1,055,457 -
Deposits 1,012,252 880,402 1,892,744 27,143
Unearned Revenue 48,752,650 2,982 604 51,735,254 4894
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due Within One Year 11,692,009 6,899,719 18,591,728 -
Due in More Than One Year 171,373,259 103,050,801 274,423,880 -
Total Liabilities 253,734,297 117,211,876 370,946,173 134,221
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows related to OPEB 4 285,806 165,467 4451273 -
Deferred Inflows related to Pensions 162,166,208 4 652 008 166,818,306 -
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 166,452,104 4817 475 171,269,579 -
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,381,483,048 109,221,422 1,480,704,470 3,797 144
Restricted for;
Debt Service 7,222,334 - 7,222 334 -
Capital Projects 145,773,738 1,462,737 147 236,475 -
Fire and Rescue 17,842,408 - 17,842,408 -
Law Enforcement 14,578,560 - 14,578,560 -
Resource Conservation 13,385,405 - 13,385,405 -
Transportation 34,613,052 - 34,613,052 -
Cther Purposes 27,114 476 - 27,114,476 -
Unrestricted {134 629577) 94 695,666 (39,933,911) 765,237
Total Net Position $ 1507383442 § 205379825 % 1712763267 § 4 562 381

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.



MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended Seplember 30, 2021

Program Revenues Net {Expense} Revenue and Changes in Net Position
Operating Capital Grants
Charges for Grants and and Governmental Business-{ype Component
FUNCTIONS/IPROGRAMS Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Units
Primary Governmment:
Govemmenial Aclivilies:
General Goveroment $ 862886030 % 14831876 § 62280 § 153,579 & (67,838,285 § ¥ (67,838,285 %
Public Safety 200,266,032 73,361,97 4,799,714 - (122,084 327) - (122,084 327)
Phwsical Environment 3120555 4,266,386 1,787 - 1,147 578 - 1,147.578
Transportation 30074510 4,896,285 284 836 14,760,524 (9,432 8665) - {9,432 8665}
Economic Environmeni 5,592,458 1,362,370 47,163,876 2,413 675 45,347 463 - 45,347 463
Human Sewvices 28,086,640 537,953 151,934 - (27,386,153) - {27,386,153)
Culture/Recrealion 18 638,401 BOBTTY 394,028 85,411 (17,350,183} - (17,350,183}
Courl-Related 15876,781 8,438,123 85,220 - {7.3563,438) - (7,363,438}
Interest an Long-Tenm Delbd 1161416 - - - (1,167,416 - {1,167.416)
Total Governmental Activities 385,702,263 108,523,763 53,643,685 17,413,189 (206,121 ,626) {206,121 .626)
Business-fype Activities:
Solid Wasle 19632592 16,605,313 203,300 - - {2.823.979) {2.823,979)
Water and Waslewaler 28 522,402 27,226,404 883829 23,991,419 - 23,179,250 23,179,250
Total Business-type Activities 48 554,584 43,831,717 1087 120 23,991 419 20355.27 20,355,271
Nz Total Primary Government $ 434257257 % 52355480 % 54730814 % 41,404,608 {206,121 628) 20.3556.271 {185,766,3565)
Component Units:
Marion County Law Library ¥ 121,85 § 145048 $ - % - % 24 168
Iarion Counly Housing 743,708 - 231,751 442 810 (69,148)
Total Component Units $ 865559 § 146,048 § 231,751 § 442,810 (44,950)
General Revenues;
Property Tax 158,778 565 - 156,778,555
Sales Tax 30,613,208 - 30613208
Infrasiruciure Surlax 52 5681047 - 52,561,047
Public Service Tax 2074101 - 2074401
Gas Tax 27,011,299 - 27,011,399
Unrestricled State Revenue Sharing 10,817,737 - 10817.737
Tourist Development Tax 3676448 - 3676448
Gther Taxes 1,007 449 - 1,007 449
Unrestricled Intergovernmental Revenues 366,371 - 866,37 -
Investment Income 93g.282 233,327 1,171,609 1,720
Miscellaneous 2,180,819 2,724,703 4915522 316,353
Gain on Sale of Capital Assels - 5212682 521,262 -
Transzlers 2,207 {2,207 -
Total General Revenues and Transfers 288 637 623 3477 085 292,014,708 318,073
Change in Met Pasition 82,415,997 23.832,356 106,248,353 273123
Beginning Net Position 1,424 967 445 181,547,469 1,606,514,914 4,289,258
Ending Net Posilion $ 1507383442 § 2053795825 § 1.712,763.267 4,562,381

The nodes to the financial staterments are an integral pard of the financial sfatements.



MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNMDS

September 30, 2021

General Fund -

County
Transportation

MSTU for Law

Silver Springs

County Wide Maintenance Erforcernent CRA Trust Fund
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 59141024 § 6682248 % 7,865,354 219,832
Investments 24 557 866 18,344,525 - -
Accounts Receivable 7.066,706 200 -
Accrued Interest Receivalble 42 650 32,582 -
Special Assessments Receivable - 81,086 -
Cue from Othier Funds 5,447 - 1,186,004
Due from Other Governments 7.086 439 2,230,288 219,635
Inventories 1.633.921 - - -
Prepaid ltems 235084 825 - 445
Total Assets 3 99,769,137 § 27.371.754 9,271,083 220,277
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS GF
RESCURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
Lizbilities:
Accounts Payable i 5346647 % 427 580 2,875
Contracts Payable 126,267 19,885 -
Accrued Liabilities 2874710 353,403 - -
Due to Other Funds 1,487,753 - - 11,725
Cue to Other Govermnments 3,273,698 1.347 - -
Cue to Individuals 1,055,457 - -
Deposits 117,858 452,013 -
Unearned Revenues 5,825,426 - - -
Tetal Liabilities 20,107,816 1,254,240 2875 11,725
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Ceferred Assessments - 81,0386 -
Unavailable Revenues 3,470,969 - -
Total Deferred Inflows
of Resources 3,470,968 81,086 -
Fund Balances:
MNonspendable:
Inventories 1,633,921 - - -
Prepaid ltems 235084 825 - 445
Restricted for:
Cormnunity Redevelopment - 208107
Court Innovations - -
Records Modermzation Tech -
Debt Service Reserve .
Fire and Rescue -
Infrastructure -
Law Enforcement 9,226,703
Parks & Recreation i
Public Safety -
Resource Conservation -
Road Construction -
Social Services -
Tourism - -
Transportation Maintenance 26,035603 -
Committed to:
Airport -
Parks & Recreation -
Assigned to:
Subsequent Year's Budget 38,831,200 -
Fire and Rescue - -
Infrastructure -
Law Enforcement 41,505
Parks & Recreation -
Road Construction - -
Unassigned 35,390,147 - - -
Total Fund Balances 76,190,352 26,036,428 9,268,208 208,552
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balances i3 89769137 % 27371754 % 9271083 & 220,277

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Infrastructure Nonmajor Total
Fire, Rescue & American Rescue Surtax Capital Governmental Governmental

EMS Plan Projects Funds Funds
14,167 434 § 35054060 % 73,520,467 § 109,487 608 $ 310,147 036
- - 12,999,727 10,343,966 56,246 084
25,234 16,046 - 554,873 8,063,059
- - 19,708 16,291 111,231
- - - 3,886,381 3967 467
7,343 - - 307 937 1,506,821
132,548 - 5,954,910 2,251,299 17,875,119
- - - 1,308,021 2,941 942
1,406,979 - 2,151,835 370,082 4,165,250
15,739,538 % 39,070,115 § 94 655,647 $ 128,926,458 % 415,024,009
159038 & - ¥ 1,231,009 % 2508361 % 10,075,520
- - 571,018 163,376 980,546
1,373,912 - - 376,581 4,978,608
- - 3.043 1,502,521
4,768 - 172,922 3,452 735
- - - 1,055,457
- - 442 381 1012252
12,614 38,988,547 - 1,047,123 45,883,710
1,550,332 38,998,547 1,802,027 5,113,787 58,941 349
- - 3,886,381 3967 467
- - 944 174 4415143
- - 4,830,555 3,382 610
- - - 1,308,021 2,941 942
1,406,979 - 2,151,835 370,082 4,165,250
- - - 208,107
- - 327,123 327,123
- - 1,392,031 1,392 031
- - 3,629,898 3,625 898
12,734,303 - - 3,699.647 16,433 950
- - 90,485,731 24,605 90,510,336
- - - 5,349,346 14,576,049
- - 1.528,534 1,528,534
- - 14,542,417 14,542 417
- - 13,385,405 13,385,405
- - 52,007 864 52,007 864
- - 2,786,175 2,786,175
- - 7,492 345 7.492 345
- - 7.221,077 33,256,680
- - 475,242 475,242
- - 3,439,940 3,435 940
- - - 38,931,200
47 924 - - - 47 924
- 71,568 116,054 350 187 972
- - - - 41,505
- - 414 414
- - 1,600 1,600
- - - - 35,380,147
14,188,208 71,568 92,753,620 118,982 116 337,700,050
15,739,538 % 39,070,115 § 94 655,647 $ 128,926,458 % 415,024,009
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
as of September 30, 2021

Total fund balances of governmental funds 5

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. The cost
of the assets is $2,354,233,592 and the accumulated depreciation
and amortization is $632,941,547. The difference does not include
the net capital assets of the internal service funds which are
included below.

The internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of
risk management services to individual funds. The assets and
liabilities of the internal service fund is included in governmental
activities in the Statement of Net Position.

At the governmental fund level, special assessments receivables are not
available and reported as a deferred inflow of resources. All receivables
are included as revenue in the Statement of Activities and therefore, not
an unearned revenue on the Statement of Net Position.

At the governmental fund level, some receivables are not available and
reported as a deferred inflow of resources. All receivables are included
as revenue when earned in the Statement of Activities and therefore,
not an uneared revenue on the Statement of Net Position.

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB
are applicable to future pericds and not reperted in governmental funds.

Deferred cutflows of resources for pensions $ 63388422
Deferred outflows of resources for OPEB 1,358,215
Deferred inflows of resources for OPEB (4,279,539)
Deferred inflows of rescurces for pensicns (161,896,283)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
accordingly are not reporied as fund liabilities. Interest on long-term
debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but rather is recognized
as an expenditure when due. All iabilities--both current and
long-term--are reported in the Statement of Net Position. The
difference does not include the internal service funds which are
included above. Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of.

337,700,050

1,421,292,045

14375712

3,967,467

4,415,143

(101,431,185)

(172,935,790)

Bonds payable 36,870,537
Notes from direct borrowings 1,696,192
Deferred charge on refunding (2,694,348)
Accrued interest payable 293,845
Net pension liability 52,652,825
Compensated absences 22 644 727
Total other postemployment benefits liability 21,471,812
Total net position of governmental activities $

1,507,383 442

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

REVENUES

Taxes

Special Assessments

Impact Fees

Permits and Fees

Intergovernmental Revenues

Charges for Services

Judgments and Fines

Court-Related Revenues

Investment Income

Miscellaneous Reveriues
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Physical Environment
Transportation
Economic Environment
Human Services
Culture/Recreation
Court-Related
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues

Cver {Under) Expenditures

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

OTHER FINANCING $SOQURCES (USES)

Transfers In
Transfers {Out)

Issuance of Notes/Bonds Payable

Issuance of Capital Lease
Total ther Financing
Sources and (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending

County

General Fund - Transportation MSTU for Law
County Wide Maintenance Enforcement
$ 68,611,014 § 13,281,844 § 52,301,202
- 187,698 -

1,200 400,321 -
116,068,746 4,646,265 879,052
40,152,617 609,089 2,233,926
2,333,510 - 1,746
5,494 371 - -
366,894 54,296 41,505
5,468,851 161,583 380,040
239,497,203 19,351,096 55,817,471
78,935,810 - -
141,025,889 - 2,510,547
506,976 - -

394 439 17,352,712 -
1,463,462 - -
24,877,492 - -
10,468,567 - .
11,140,275 - -
228,823 - -
27,143 - -
270,468,876 17,352,712 2,510,547
{30,872,673) 1,098,384 53,306,924
69,831,309 164,102 128,108
(3,145,826) (30,308) {54,689,026)
66,685,483 133,794 (54,560,918)
35,712,810 2,132,178 (1,253,894)
40,477 542 23,904,250 10,622,202

5 76,190,352 % 26,036,428 % 8,268,208

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Silver Springs Infrastructure Nonmajor Total
CRA Trust Fire, Rescue, American Surtax Capital Governmental Governmental
Fund and EMS Rescue Plan Projects Funds Funds

- 3% 16,061,211 - 52,561,047 & 36,181,892 240,008,210

- 32,556,838 - - 11,061,413 43,805,949

“ - - - 6,651,154 5551,154

“ 137,695 “ “ 7,440,138 7,879,354
178,194 1,173,037 - - 5,178,506 128,123,800
- 69,250 - - 7,006,357 50,071,238

“ 1,840 “ “ 700,803 3,037,989

“ - - - 633,813 5,128,184

411 47,924 71,568 116,054 193,336 891,888

- 119,658 - - 1,273,360 7,383,792
178,805 50,167,753 71,568 52,677,101 76,320,872 484 081,669
“ “ “ “ 1,291,077 81,226,887

“ 46,972 438 “ “ 15,204,755 205,713,629

- - - - 4247612 5,154,588

- - - - 12,838,279 30,686,430
142,202 “ “ “ 4,223,007 5,828,761
“ “ “ “ 2,485 443 27,362,835

- - - - 1,816,746 12,386,313

- - - - 1,876,185 13,116 460

“ “ “ “ 4,155,232 4,384,055

- 3,500 - - 855,536 986,179

- - - 18,387,316 1,817,542 20,204,858
142,202 46,975,838 “ 18,387,316 51,212,504 407,051,085
36,403 3,181,815 71,568 34,288,785 25,108,368 87,030,574

“ 724 472 “ “ 1,370,660 72,218,651
“ (1,251,010} “ “ {15,488,513) {74,614 ,883)

- - - - 1,791,561 1,791,561

- 1,236,059 - - - 1,236,059

“ 709,521 “ “ {12,336,292) 631,588
36,403 3,801,336 71,568 34,288,785 12,772,076 87 662,162
172,149 10,287 870 - 58 463,835 106,210,040 250,037,888
208,552 § 14,189,206 § 71,568 82,753620 $ 118,882,118 337,700,050




MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION QF THE STATEMENT QF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 87662162

Governmenial funds report capital purchases as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is depreciated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount
by which depreciation ($62,534,186) exceeds capital additions ($60,305,614) in the
current period. Total capital additions consist of capital expenditures of $60,097 227
and non-cash contributions of $208,387. 2,228,572

Special assessment revenues reported in prior year stalement of activities that do not
provide current financial resources are reported as revenues in the funds. 714 537

The issuance of bonds and similar long-term debt provides current financial
resources fo governmental funds and thus contributes to the change in fund
balance. In the statement of net position, however, issuing debt increases long-term
liabilities and does not affect the statement of activities. Similarly, repayment of
principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, bul reduces the liability in the
statement of net position. Governmental funds report the effect of premiums
and discounts when debt is first issued; whereas these amounts are recorded
as part of the debt on the statement of net position, and amortized in the statement
of activities The itemns that make up these differences in the treatment of
long-term debt and related items are:

Debt issued or incurred:

Issuance of bonds $  {1,791,561)
Issuance of capital leases {1,236,059)
Principal repayments 4 384,055
Allocation to interest expense on deferred charge on refunding (218,074 & 1,1383861

Continued
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TQ THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES - Continued
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in governmental funds, expenditures
are not recognized for transactions that are not normally paid with expendable available
financial resources. In the statement of a¢livities, which is presented on the
accrual basis, expenses and liabilities are reported regardless of when financial
resources are available. In addition, interest on long-term debt is not recognized under
the modified accrual basis of accounting until due, rather than as it accrues.
These adjustments are as follows:
Changes in compensated absences $ (1,076,070)
Changes in accrued interest on long-term debt 42 837 {1,033,233)

Governmental funds report County pension contributions and OPEB benefit payments as
expenditures. In the statement of aclivities, the cost of pension and OPER benefits earned
net of contributions and benefit payments is reported as pension and OPEB expense,
Difference between pension contributions and net pensicn expense 19,538,881
Difference between OPEB benefit payments and net OPEB expense {345,659)

In the statement of aclivities, only the loss on the sale/disposal of capital assets
is reported. However, in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the
sale increase financial resources. Thus, the change in net position differs from the
change in fund balance by the net book value of the capital assets sold/disposed. {787,139)

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when both the
measureable and available criteria have been met. Ambulance and housing assistance
loan revenues earned in the current year were not recognized since the availability
criteria was not met. Under full accrual accounting, all revenues would be recognized. {26,934,834)

The internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of risk management
services to other funds. The net income of the internal service fund is reported
with governmental activilies. 4 691,493

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 82415997

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

REVENUES
Taxes
Special Assessments
Permits and Fees
Intergovernmental Revenues
Charges for Services
Judgments and Fines
Court-Related Revenues
Investment Income
Miscellaneous Revenues
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current;
General Government
Public Safety
Physical Environment
Transportation
Economic Environment
Human Services
Culture/Recreation
Court-Related

Debt Service;
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over {Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES {USES)
Transfers In
Transfers {Ouf)
Total Other Financing
Sources and {Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND - COUNTY WIDE

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
3 68,792,250 % 68,792,250 69811014 % 818,764
21,850 21,850 - {21,850}
2,422 2,422 1,200 {1,222)
89,615,437 104,627,008 116,088,746 11,441,738
32,218,323 32,436,496 40,152 617 7,716,121
1,867,575 2,126,999 2,333,510 208,511
5,211,363 5,582,560 5,494 371 {88,189}
1,189,650 1,189,255 366,894 (822,361)
7,645,616 7,740,698 5,468 851 (2,271,847
206,664,486 222,519,638 239,497 203 16,877,665
107,983,716 106,474,730 79,935.810 26,538,020
146,872,374 146,884,261 141,025,889 5,858,372
1,451,112 1,481,308 906,976 574,332
879,121 879,121 394,439 484 682
2,368,648 2,372,639 1,463,462 909,177
23,776,212 37,541,585 24 877 492 12,664,103
13,820,456 15,412,818 10,469 567 4,943,251
12,941,721 16,872,132 11,140,275 5,831,857
352,308 352,308 228,823 123,483
41,627 41,827 27,143 14,484
310,487,203 328,412 637 270,469, 876 57,042 661
{103,822 807) {105,882 899) {30,872 673) 74,920,326
74,250,102 73,321,652 69,831,309 (3,490,243)
{1,535170) {2,057 575) (3,145 828) {1,088,251)
72,714,932 71,263,877 66,685 483 (4,578,494
{31,107 875) (34,629,022} 35,712,810 70,341,832
31,107,875 34,629 022 40,477 542 5,848,520
3 - % - 76,190,352 § 76,190,352

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements,
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
COUNTY TRANSPORTATION MAINTENANCE
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Qriginal Final Amounts {Negative}
REVENUES
Taxes $ 13320572 & 13,326,572 $& 13291844 § {37,728)
Special Assessments - - 187,608 187 698
Permits and Fees 174,876 174,876 400,321 225,445
Intergovernmental Revenues 2,431,991 2,431,991 4 646,265 2,214 274
Charges for Services 479,575 479 575 609,089 129,514
Investment Income 247,000 247 000 54 266 {192,704)
Miscellaneous Revenues 49,218 49,218 161,583 112,365
Total Revenues 16,712,232 16,712, 232 19,351,006 2,638,864
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Transportation 50,538,437 50,656 078 17,362,712 33,303,366
Total Expenditures 50,639,437 50,656,078 17,352,712 33,303,366
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures {33,827 205) {33,043,848) 1,998,384 35,842 230
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES {USES)
Transfers In 47 461 164,102 164,102 -
Transfers {Out) {30,308) {30,308) {30,308) -
Issuance of Notes/Bonds Payable 8,936,743 8,936,743 - (8,936,743)
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) §,953,808 9,070,537 133,794 (8,936,743)
Net Change in Fund Balance (24,873,309) (24,873,309) 2,132,178 27,005 487
Fund Balance - Beginning 24,873,308 24,873,309 23,904,250 (869,059)
Fund Balance - Ending % - % - 5 26036428 $ 26036428

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MSTU FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)

REVENUES
Taxes 51666556 § 5166655 $ 52,301,202 634,646
Intergovernmental Revenues - 1,047,339 879,062 {168,287
Charges for Services 2,156 245 2,156,245 2,233,926 77,681
Judgments and Fines - - 1,746 1,746
Investment Income 263,245 263,245 41,505 {221,740)
Miscellaneous Revenues 4,940 337,060 360,040 22,980

Total Revenues 54,090,986 55,470,445 55 817,471 347 026
EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public Safety 61,856,918 683,574 786 2,510,547 61,064 239

Total Expenditures 61,856,918 63,574,786 2510647 61,064 239

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (7,765,032) (8,104,341) 53,308,924 61,411,265

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In - 128,108 128,108 -
Transfers (Out) {1,447 483) {2,545 869) {54,689 026) (62,143,057}

Total Other Financing

Sources (Uses) {1,447 483) {2.417,861) {54,560,918) {62,143,057)
Net Change in Fund Balance (9,213,415} (10,522,202} {1,253,894) 9,268 208
Fund Balance - Beginning 9213415 10,622 202 10,522,202 -
Fund Balance - Ending - % - B 9,268,208 9,268 208

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements,
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
SILVER SPRINGS CRA TRUST FURND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Final Budget -
Actual Pasitive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental Revenues $ 195800 § 178194 ¢ 178,194 § -
Investment Income 525 525 411 {114)
Total Revenues 186,325 178,719 178,605 {114)
EXPENDITURES
Current:;
Economic Environment 244,462 350,684 142,202 208 482
Total Expenditures 244,462 350,684 142,202 208,482
Net Change in Fund Balance {48,137} {171,885) 36,403 208,368
Fund Balance - Beginning 48,137 171,965 172,149 184
Fund Balance - Ending % - % - % 208,552 § 208 552

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FIRE, RESCUE, AND EMS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

REVENUES

Taxes

Special Assessments

Permits and Fees

Intergovernmental Revenues

Charges for Services

Judgmenits and Fines

Investment Income

Miscellaneous Revenues
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public Safety
Debt Service:
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over {Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers {Out)
Issuance of Capital Lease
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Final Budget -
Actual Positive

Qriginal Final Amounts {Negative}
$ 15898070 & 15898070 % 160681211 & 163,141
31,458,172 31,458,172 32,556,838 1,008,666
106,621 106,621 137,695 32,074
592,083 1,195,847 1,173,037 (22,810}
58,274 58,274 69,250 10,976
3,973 3,973 1,840 (2,133)
188,586 188,596 47 924 (140,672}
23,256 1,327,270 119,968 {1,207,312)
48,328,045 50,235 823 50,167,753 {68,070)
59313133 61,083,024 46 972,438 14,110,586
- - 3,500 {3,500}
59,313,133 61,083,024 46 975,938 14,107,086
{10,985 088) {10,847, 201) 3,191,815 14,039,016
611,873 724,472 724,472 -
{1,251,010) (1,251,010 (1,251,010 -
- - 1,236,059 1,236,059
{639 137) {526,538) 708,521 1,236,059
(11,624,225) (11,373,739) 3,001,336 15,275,075
11,624,225 11,373,738 10,287,870 {1,085,869)
$ - $ - 5 141892068 § 14,189 206

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements,
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ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Assels Available for
Current Liabilities
Investrents
Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowance
for Uncollectible Accounts
Accrued Interest Receivable
Due from Other Governments
Inventories
Prepaid ltems
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted Assels!
Renewal and Replacement
Landfill Escrow
Less: Portion Classified as Current
Total Restricted Assels
Prepaid Landfill Fee
Capital Assets:
Land
Buildings
Improvements Other than Buildings
Machinery, Equipment, and Vehicles
Construction in Progress
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets (Nef)
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Deferred Amount on Refunding
Deferred QOutflows related to OPEB
Deferred QOutflows related to Pensions
Total Deferred Qutflows of Resources

Continued

MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

September 30, 2021

Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities -
Marion County Internal
Sclid Waste Utility Totals Service Fund

$ 24,200,224 22556554 ¢ 46,758,778 % 12,071,618
1,436,033 - 1,436,033 -
33,874,410 22,611,238 56,485,648 12,323,815
210,337 539,874 750,211 436,800
48,358 35,611 83,969 15,718
94,142 877,642 971,784 -
- 735,011 735,011 -
1,097 28,369 29,466 -
59 864,601 47,384 299 107,248,900 24,847 952
- 1,462,737 1,462,737 -
15,117,434 - 15,117,434 -
{1,436,033) - {1,436,033) -
13,681,401 1,462 737 15,144,138 -
20,305,814 - 20,305,814 -
1,047,407 7,730,761 8,778,168 -
3,990,713 4,838,250 §,828,963 323,488
40,977 485 265,363 259 306,340,744 12,855
8,840,043 7,204 308 16,044,349 38,629
3,863,131 30,249,080 34,212,211 75,203
{42 710,255) {150,825,543) {183,635,798) {(47,131)
16,108,524 164,460,113 180,568,837 403,042
50,085,738 165,822 850 216,018,589 403 042
109,860,340 213,307,149 323,267,489 25,250,094
- 2,683,364 2,683,364 -
14,702 22775 37,477 1,342
571,878 853,270 1,425,146 64 989
$ 586,578 $ 3,659409 % 4145987 $ 66,331




LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Contracts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Compensated Absences Payable
Estimated Claims Payable
Total OPER Liability - Current
Due to Other Funds
Due to Other Governmenis
Deposits
Unearned Revenue

Current Liahilities Payable from

Restricted Assets:
Notes from Direct Borrowings
Revenue Bonds Payable
Accrued Interest Payable
Landfill Closure Costs Payable
Remediation Costs Payable
Total Current Liabilities

MNoncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated Absences Payable
Net Pension Liability
Estimated Claims Payable
Total GPEB Liability - Noncurrent
Unearned Revenue, Connection Fees
Notes from Direct Borrowings
Revenue Bonds Payable
Landgfill Closure Costs Payable
Remediation Costs Payable
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows related to OPEB
Deferred Inflows related fo Pensions
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted:
Capital Projects
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - Continued

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
September 30, 2021

Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities -
Marion County Internal
Sclid Waste Utility Totals Service Fund

$ 540,157 % 1,495,155 & 2035312 % -
- 519,319 519,319 -
144,504 261,647 408,151 67,316
52,041 92,029 144,070 6,646
- - - 1,623,956
14,702 22,775 37,477 1,342
4,300 - 4,300 -
967 75,745 786,702 -
306 880,186 880,492 -
- 503,448 503,448 2,868,940
- 1,747 139 1,747,139 -
- 3,535,000 3,535,000 -
- 360,976 360,978 -
376,453 - 376,453 -
1,068,580 - 1,068,580 -
2,193,000 9,493,419 11,686,419 4,468,200
208,164 368,116 576,280 26,586
851,131 998,918 1,850,049 50,726
- - - 6,095,823
285,783 415 874 701,657 23,996
- 2,479,158 2,479,158 -
- 17,223,237 17,223,237 -
- 52,100,000 52,100,000 -
28,743,878 - 28,743,878 -
1,855,500 - 1,855,500 -
31,044,456 73,585 301 106,529,757 6,187 131
34,137,456 83,078,720 117,218,176 10,665,331
62,061 103,406 165,467 6,267
1,644,345 3,007 663 4,652,008 270,015
1,706,408 3,111,069 4 817,475 276,282
16,080,179 93,141,243 108,221,422 403,042
- 1,462,737 1,462,737 -
58,622 877 36,072,789 94,695,666 13,972 670
$ 74,703,056 § 130,676,769 § 205,379,825 § 14,375,712

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements,
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Marion County

Governmental

Activities -

Internal Service

Solid Waste LHility Total Fund

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 16,605,313 § 27,226,404 §$ 43 831,717 $ 41,233,061
Miscellaneous Revenues 5,924 2,718,779 2,724,703 895,730

Total Operating Revenues 16,611,237 29,945 183 46 556,420 42 128,800
Operating Expenses:
Personal Services 3518,405 6,128,284 8,646,680 522,002
Contracted Services 6,172,600 1,327,503 7,500,103 58,731
Supplies and Materials 667,412 1,440,158 2,107 568 19,942
Repairs and Maintenance 1,468,836 1,385,577 2,854 413 1,242
Other Services and Charges 2,534,837 2630975 5165812 442,797
Depreciation 1,775,883 13,109,449 14,885,332 11,749
Provision for Closure and Long Term Care 3,209,002 - 3,209,002 -
Provision for Pollution Remediation 39,250 - 38,250 -
Premiums/Claims Expense 246,367 503,759 840,126 38,855,287

Total Operating Expenses 19,632,592 26,615,703 46 248,205 38,881,840

Operating Income {Loss) {3,021,355) 3,329,480 308,125 2,248 960

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Grants 203,300 883,829 1,087,129 -
Investment Income 157,886 75,441 233,327 46,294
Interest and Fiscal Charges Expense - (2,306,699) {2,306,699) -
Gain {Loss) on Disposal of Capital Assets 510,452 10,810 521,262 -

Total Nonoperating Revenues

{Expenses} 871,638 {1,336 618) {464 981) 46,294

Income {Loss) Before Transfers

and Contributions (2,145,717} 1,802,861 {156 856) 2,293,254
Transfers In 26,498 27,105 53,603 2,401,750
Transfers {Out) {7,342} {48,468) {55,810} {3,511)
Capital Contributions - 7,820,963 7,820,963 -
Water Connection Fees - 3151,769 3151769 -
Waste Water Connection Fees - 3,760,229 3,760,229 -
Capital Grants - 9,258,458 9 268 458 -
Change in Net Position (2,130,561} 25,862,917 23,832,356 4,691,493
Total Net Position - Beginning 76,833,617 104,713,852 181,547 469 Q9,684,219
Total Net Position - Ending 74 703,056 $§ 130,676,760 & 206379825 % 14,375,712

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements,



MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT QF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETY FUNDS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers and Users

Payments to Suppliers

Payments to Employees

Business-type - Enterprise Funds

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating

Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital

Financing Activities

Transfers to Other Funds
Transfers from Other Funds

Legal Seftlement

Subsidy from Federal/State Grants
Net Cash Provided by
Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related

Financing Activities

Grants Received for Capital Purposes

Water Connection Fees

Waste Water Connection Fees
AcquisitiontConstruction of Capital Assets
Frincipal Paid on Capital Dabt

Interest Paid on Capital Debt

Proceeds from Refunding Bond

Proceeds from Note

Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets
Net Cash {Used) by Capital
and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
{Purchase} of Investments

Sale of Investments
Interest Received

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing

Activities

Net [ncrease {Decrease) in Cash and

Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at

Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at

End of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents Classified As:

Current Assets

Current Restricted Assets
MNoncurrent Restricted Assets
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

Continued

Governmental
Activities -
Marion County Internal Service
Solid Waste Utility Total Fund

$ 16,584,503 $ 30,798,678 $ 47 384,179 3 42,053,087
{12,825 280} (8,675,275 {21,500,555) {37,107, 736)
(3,477.049) (6,057,382) (9,534.431) (500,027)
282,174 16,067 819 16,349,193 4,445 334
(7.342) (48,468) (55,810) (3.511)

26,498 27105 53,803 2,401,750

311,495 2970198 3,281,693 1,049

330,651 2,843,835 3,279,438 2,398,288

- 9,258,458 9,258,458 -

- 3,151,769 3,151,769 -

- 3,760,229 3,760,229 -
{1,408 684} {30,461,366) {31,870,050) {38,239}

- (5.289,344) (5,289,344) -

- {4,152,050) {4,152.050) -

- 11,205,000 11,205,000 -

- 2017175 2017175 -

510,631 11,847 522,478 -
{898,053} {10,498,282) {11,396,335) {38,239}
{134 950} {80.079) {225,029} {49,086}
204,017 106,234 310,251 63,077

69,087 16,155 85,222 13,981

{216,161) 8,533,727 8,317,566 6,819 364
39533819 15,485 564 55,019,383 5,252 255

3 39 317 658 3 24.019,29 3 63 336,949 3 12071619
$ 24,200,224 $ 22,556,554 $ 46,756,778 3 12,071 819
1,436,033 - 1,436,033 -
13,681,401 1,462 737 15,144,138 -

$ 35,317,658 $ 24,019,231 $ 63,338,849 $ 12,071 818
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - Continued
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Activities -
Marion County Internal Service
Solid Waste UHility Total Fund
Reconciliation of Operating Income {Loss}
to Net Cash Provided {Used) by Operating
Activities
Operafing Income {Loss) 5 (3021,355) $ 3,329,480 308,125 $ 2,248,960
Depreciation 1,775,883 13,109,443 14,885,332 11,749
Amortization - - - -
Provision for Closure and Posiclosure 3,209,002 - 3,209,602 -
Provision for Pollution Remediation 38,250 - 39,250 -
Pensions Related Deferred QOuiflows 415,054 762,756 1,177,810 83,375
OPER Related Deferred Outfiows {4,685) {8,251} {12,936) {516}
Pensions Related Deferred Inflows 1,591,438 2924615 4,516,653 266,003
OPEB Related Deferred Infiows {5,622} {2,901} {15523 {611}
Provision for Net Pension Liability {2,200,097) {4,043,182) (6,243,259 {367,737)
Provision for Other Postemployment Benefits 14,092 24820 38,912 1,533
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
{Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable {26,734) 833625 808,891 {294,134)
{Increase) Decrease in Prepaids {1,624,897) (26,941) {1,651,838) -
{Increase) Decrease in Due from Other Funds - - - -
{Increase) Decrease in Due from
Other Governments - - - -
{Increase) Decrease in Inventories - (30,407) (38,407) -
Increase {Decrease) in Accounts Payable 82135 (499,331) {(417.196) {282,740)
Increase (Decrease) in Contracts Payable - {385,880 {385,880} {7,828}
Increase {Decrease) in Accrued Liabilities 16,056 35916 51,972 21175
Increase {Decrease) in Due to
Other Governments (2,646) {5,513) (8,159) -
Increase {Decrease) in Due to Other Funds - - - -
Increase (Decrease) in Customer Deposits - 220868 220,868 -
Increase {Decrease) in Unearned Revenue - - - 218,431
Increase {Decrease) in Compensated Absences 25,300 34 588 80,206 890
Increase (Decrease) in Claims Payable - - - 2,562,779
Total Adjustments 3,303,529 12,737 538 16,041,068 2,198,374
Net Cash Provided {Used) by Operating
Activities $ 282,174 b 18,067,018 16,343,193 $ 4,445,334

The County had a noncash bond refunding transaction in the Ulility Fund for $31,305,000. The County had no other noncash investing
and financing activities during fiscal year ended September 30, 2021,

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
CUSTODIAL FUNDS
September 30, 2021

Total
Custodial
Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 21,161,551
Accounts Receivable 311,364
Bue From Individuals 420,526
Due From Other Governments 378,941
22,272,382
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 175
Cue to Other Governments 1,516,515
Due to Individuals 14,837
1,531,527
NET POSITION
Restricted for Individuals, Organizaticns and Other Governments 5 20,740,855

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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MARICN CCUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

CUSTODIAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 3C, 2021

ADDITIONS

Amounts Collected for Fines and Fees

Amounts Collected for Courts

Amounts Collected for Tax Deed and Foreclosure Sales
Property Taxes and Fees Collected for Governments
Property Taxes and Fees Collected for Individuals
Tourist Development Taxes Collected

License and Tag Fees Collected

Individual Contributions

Other Taxes and Fees Collected

Total Additions
DEDUCTIONS

Payments to Other Governments
Payments to Other Funds

Property Taxes and Fees Distributed
Tourist Development Taxes Distributed
License and Tag Fees Distributed
Payments to Other Entities

Payments to Individuals

Total Deductions

Change in Fiduciary Net Position

NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR, RESTATED

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Total
Custodial Funds

$

56,858,618
18,457,766
12,142,677
203,685,429
24,543,982
3,753,512
49,982,406
3,469,239
259,805

373,183,434

57,302,330
243,621
227,638,679
3,507,218
49,948 227
512,898
30,159,843

369,313,216

3,880,218

16,860,637

20,740,855




ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Accounts Receivable
Cue From Other Governments
Qther Assets
Capital Assets, net
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Unearned Revenue
Deposits

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITICN

COMPONENT UNITS
September 30, 2021

Marion
County

Marion Housing Total
County Law Finance Component

Library Authority Units
$ 72,608 236,781 § 309,389
108,070 206,081 314,131
352 6,242 6,594
10,497 - 10,497
- 258,847 258,847
98,284 3,698,860 3,797,144
$ 289,811 4,406,791 $ 4,696,602
$ 5,886 -3 5,886
899 99,999 100,698
494 - 494
- 27,143 27,143
7,079 127,142 134,221
98,284 3,698,860 3,787,144
184,448 580,789 765,237
$ 282,732 8 4278649 3 4,562,381

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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EXPENSES
Court Related
Economic Envirocnment

Total Operating Expenses

PROGRAM REVENUES
Charges for Services
Operating Grants
Capital Contributions

Net Program {Revenue) Expenses

GENERAL REVENLUES
Investment Income
Miscellaneous

Total General Revenues

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning
Net Position - Ending

Marion County

Housing Total

Marion County Finance Component
Law Library Authority Units

$ 121,860 $ - % 121,850

- 743,708 743,708

121,850 743,708 865,558

146,048 - 146,048

- 231,751 231,751

- 442 810 442 810

{24,188) 69,148 44,950

1,201 518 1,720

253 316,100 316,353

1,454 316,618 318,073

25,6562 247 471 273,123

257,080 4,032,178 4,288,258

$ 282,732 § 4,279,648 § 4,562,381

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements.
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2021

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of Marion County, Florida {the “County”} have been prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board {GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. Significant County accounting policies are described below.

A. Reporiing Entity

The County is a political subdivision of the State of Florida established by the Constitution of the State of Florida,
Article VIIl, Section 1(e}. It is governed by an elected Board of County Commissioners (the "Board" which is
governed by state statutes and regulations. In addition to the Board, there are five elected Constitutional Officers:
Clerk of the Circuit Court and Comptroller, Property Appraiser, Sheriff, Supervisor of Elections, and Tax Collector.
The Constitutional Officers maintain separate accounting records and budgets. The Board funds a portion or, in
certain instances, all of the operating budgets of the County's Constitutional Officers. The General Funds of the
Constitutional Officers are consolidated as part of the County General Fund, and other funds of the Constitutional
Officers are presented as either special revenue funds or custedial funds as appropriate within the County's
financial statements.

As required by GAAP, the financial reporting entity consists of (1) the primary government {the County), (2)
organizations for which the County is financially accountable, and (3) other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the County are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial
statements to be misleading or incomplete. The County is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of
the organization's governing body and {a) it is able to impose its will on that organization or (b} there is a potential
for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the County.
The County may be financially accountable if an crganization is fiscally dependent on the County regardless of
whether the organization has (a) a separately elected governing board, {b) a governing board appointed by a
higher level of government, or (¢} a jointly appeinted board. Based on these criteria, County management
examined all organizations which were legally separate in crder to determine which organizations, if any, should
be included in the County's financial statements. Management determined that the Marion County Community
Redevelopment Agency, the Rainbow Lakes Estates Municipal Services District, the Marion County Housing
Finance Authority, and the Marion County Law Library were the only crganizations that should be included in the
County's financial statements as compenent units.

1. Blended Component Units

Marion County Communify Redevelopment Agency — The Marion County Community Redevelopment
Agency {CRA) was created pursuant to Chapter 163.358, Florida Statutes, County Ordinance 13-14, and
County Resolution 13-R-169. The Marion County Board of County Commissioners serves as the CRA
Board and has operaticnal responsibility for the CRA. Although legally separate, the CRA is appropriately
blended as a governmental fund type compenent unit inte the primary government. Pursuant te Chapter
163.387, Florida Statutes and County Ordinance 13-15, the Silver Springs Community Redevelopment
Area Trust Fund was established to account for the designated redevelopment program in accordance
with the Silver Springs Redevelopment Plan. This CRA is presented as a major governmental fund, and
separate financial statements for the CRA are available at the County Clerk's office.

Rainbow Lakes Estates Municipal Services District — The Rainbow Lakes Estates Municipal Services
Cistrict was created under the laws of Florida, Chapter 69-1288 and Marion County Code Sections A5-1
through A5-7. The Marion County Board of County Commissioners acts as the governing authority of the
district, thus having significant influence over their operations and fiscal management and has operational
responsibility for the district. The taxing district is reported as a special revenue fund. Separate financial
statements for the Rainbow Lakes Estates Municipal Services District are available at the County Clerk’s
office.
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2. Discretely Presented Component Units

Marion County Law Library — The Marion County Law Library was created under Florida Statutes Sections
28.2401, 28.241, and 34.041, and Marion County Code Section 2-16, which provides for a law library for
the courts of Maricn County, members of the Bar, and the general public. The Marion County Law Library
is composed of a Board of Trustees who are appointed and whose tenure of office is designated by the
Senior Circuit Judge (Ex-Officic Chairman of the Board of Trustees) sitting in Marion County. The Boeard
of Trustees is composed of the chief circuit court judge and three aftorneys who serve in an advisory
capacity. The Board establishes the fees charged and collected on court actions in support of the Marion
County Law Library, and the Board is thereby financially accountable. Therefore, the Maricn County Law
Library is included as a discretely presented component unit of the reporting entity. Separate financial
statements for the Marion County Law Library are available at their administrative offices located in the

Marion County Judicial Center, 110 N.W. 18t Avenue, Ocala, Florida 34475.

Marion County Housing Finance Authority — The Marion County Housing Finance Authority was
established under Florida Statutes, Section 158.601, and Marion County Code Sections 2-96 through
2-101. The Board deces not maintain budgetary control over the operating costs of the Marion County
Housing Finance Authority. However, the Board is financially accountable for the activities of the Marion
County Housing Finance Authoerity since the Board both (a) appoints a voting majority of the Authority's
governing body, and (b} has the ability tc impose its will by removing voting members of the Authority's
governing body. Therefore, the Marion County Housing Finance Autherity is included as a discretely
presented component unit of the reporting entity. Separate financial statements for the Marion County
Housing Finance Authoerity are available and can be requested by lstter to Post Office Box 3102, Ocala,
Florida 34478.

3. Related Organizations

The County is responsible for appointing members of boards to other organizations but is not accountable
for these organizations. The following related organizations are not included in the reporting entity:

i. Marion County Hospital District
ii. Marion County Industrial Develepment Authority
B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities)
report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. For the
most pan, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmentai activities, which
noermally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reporied separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. The Statement of Activities
demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses and indirect costs of a given function, or segment, are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Inidirect Expenses are those costs that are allocated to functions and activities in accordance with the
County’s adopted indirect cost allocation plan. Interfund services provided and used are not eliminated in the
process of consclidation. The “Expenses” column includes both direct and indirect expenses. Program revenues
include 1) charges to customers or applicanis who purchase, use, or direcily benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2} grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting
the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.
Fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental and
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.
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C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

1.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the ecoriomic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the propristary fund financial statements. Revenuss are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met. As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the
government-wide financial statements.

Amounts reported as program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current pericd or socn encugh thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the
current fiscal pericd. Receivables collected after 80 days are reported as deferred inflows of resources
until the revenue becomes available. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as
under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise fees, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
pericd. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is
considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period.

Maijor funds are determined at the fund level. Non major governmental funds are combined for financial
reporting purposes.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

+ The General Fund is the government’'s primary operating fund. It is used to account for and report 2all
financial rescurces not accounted for and reperted in another fund, The General Fund includes the
Board of County Commissioners, Clerk of the Circuit Court and Comptroller, Property Appraiser,
Sheriff, Supervisor of Elections, and Tax Collector.

» The Couniy Transportation Maintenance Fund is a special revenue fund, created pursuant to Section
129.02, Florida Statutes, to account for transportation related revenues and expenditures. The primary
revenues sources are gas taxes {one cent voted, 6th cent local, and 7th cent county) which are used
to fund the activities of the Transportation Department.

« The MSTU for Law Enforcement Fund is a special revenue fund, created pursuant to Section 125.01,
Florida Statutes, to account for the costs of providing the Sheriff's patrol and criminal investigation
division services to a geographic area encompassing nearly all of the unincomporated areas of the
County. The primary source of funding for this service is ad valorem taxes levied on the areas
established by the taxing unit.
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+ The Silver Springs CRA Trust Fund is a special revenue fund created by the Board pursuant to
Section 183.387, Florida Statutes to account for the funds used to finance community redevelopment
within the Silver Springs Community Redevelopment Area, in accordance with the Silver Springs
Community Redevelopment Plan. The primary source of funding is from tax increment financing
provided by increased ad valorem iax value in the gecgraphically designated area.

+ The Fire, Rescue and EMS Fund is a special revenue fund created by the Board pursuant to Section
125.01, Florida Statutes, to account for the provision of fire proteclion, rescue services and
emergency medical services to those portiens of the unincorporated area of the County for which
these activities are not otherwise provided. The primary sources of revenue in this fund are generated
through the levy and collection of a special per-parcel assessment levied only in the covered area, and
a levy of ad valorem tax within the areas of Marion County.

» The American Rescue Plan Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for the County's
Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds federal assistance programs and related
expenditures.

o The Infrastructure Surtax Capital Projects Fund is a capital project fund created by the Board to
account for the proceeds from the one percent infrastructure surtax and related expenditures.

The County reports the following major enterprise funds:

+ The Solid Waste System Fund accounts for the fiscal activity of all solid waste disposals within the
County.

+ The Marion County Utility Fund accounts for the fiscal activity of providing water and wastewater
services to residential and commercial customers countywide.

Additionalty, the County reports the following fund types:

¢ Special Revenue Funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue scurces
that are restricted or commitied to expenditures for specified purposes cother than debt service or
capital projects.

» Debt Service Funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed, or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest. Debt Service funds are also used to
report resources if legally mandated, and financial resources that are being accumulated for principal
and interest maturing in future years.

» Capital Projects Funids are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of
capital facilittes and other capital outlay. Capital Project funds exclude capital-related outflows
financed by proprietary funds or for assets held in trust for individuals, private organizations, or cther
governments.

*» The Internal Service Fund accounts for the activities of the County's risk management program.
Activities include amounts collected and the claims paid for the County's workers’ compensation,
property, general liability, and prescription medicine self-insurance, as well as to account for the
premiums received and dishursed to a third party insurer for the County employees’ major medical,
disability income, and life insurance.

¢ Custodial Funds are custodial in nature, and are therefore, excluded from the government-wide
financial statements. These funds are used to account for assets held by the County as custodian for
individuals, private crganizations and other governments. The resources include fines, forfeitures and
fiing fees collected for other governmental agencies, child support payments, jury and witness
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D.

services, posted bonds collected for individuals, priscner's funds, confiscated monies held as
evidence, Sheriff's fees for serving papers, property taxes and fees for licenses.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goeds in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
County’s enterprise funds and of the County's internal service fund are charges to customers for sales
and services. Included in Solid Waste charges for service are non ad valerem assessments for landfill
fees. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service fund include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting these definitions are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County's policy to use
restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources, as they are needed for their intended purposes.

Budgetary Requirements

The fellowing procedures are utilized by the County in establishing and/or amending the budgetary information
contained in the financial statementis:

1

2)

3

4)

5)

6)

7

On or before June 1 of each year, the Clerk of the Circuit Court and Comptroller {the "Clerk™), Sheriff,
Supervisor of Elections and Tax Collector each submit a propoesed operating budget for the ensuing fiscal year
to the Board.

The proposed operating budget of the Property Appraiser must be presented to the Board on or before June 1
of each year and is simultanecusly submitted by the Property Appraiser to the State of Florida, Department of
Revenue, from which the final approval of the budget of the Property Appraiser must emanate.

On or befere July 15 of each year, or within 15 days after the receipt of cerified taxable property values from
the Property Appraiser, whichever occurs last, the Clerk, as Clerk to the Board (and Budget Officer), presents
to the Board a proposed budget for the fiscal year commencing the following October 1. Pursuant to the
provisions of Section 129.01, Florida Statutes, the proposed budgets as submitted contain balanced
statements of estimated revenues (including unexpended fund balances tc be carried forward) and proposed
appropriations for each fund required to be presented by law or by sound financial praciices, including the
general, special revenue, debt service, and capital projects funds.

Following a preliminary review of the proposed budgets by the Board, whose members make such changes as
are deemed necessary {provided that the proposed budget for each fund remains balanced), the Board
causes a notice of proposed property taxes tc be mailed to each County property taxpayer. Included in the
notice is a statement of the Board's intent to held a public hearing te consider adoption of the tentative millage
rates and budgets, as well as a comparison of the taxpayer's proposed property tax bill with the actual tax bill
of the preceding year.

Following successful completion of the above referenced public hearings, the Board advertises and
subsequently conducts a second public hearing to finally adopt a millage rate and budget for each of the
taxing entities under their jurisdiction. These public hearings are ordinarily held prior to Cctober 1 each year.
If, however, for scme reason the Board is unable to finally adopt a budget prier te Octeber 1, state law permits
the readoption by resclution of the budget of the preceding year as an interim measure.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 128.07, Florida Statutes, the Board is prohibited from expending or
contracting for the expenditure of any amount in excess of the total amount budgeted in any fund. It is,
however, legally permissible at the present time for the budgets of individual departments included within a
particular fund tc be over expended in total without requiring mandatory action by either the Board, the Clerk,
as Clerk to the Board (and Budget Officer), or the County Administrater. Transfers of appropriate amounts
hetween funds require approval of the Board.

Subsequent to final adopticn of the budget by the Beard, changes to the budget, as enacted, may be made
when revenues not anticipated in the original budget are received that management wishes to appropriate
during the current fiscal year, resulting in an increase to the total appropriations of a fund. All other changes to
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total fund appropriations may only be made through adoption of a budget ordinance or resclution following a
public hearing.

8) Adoption and execution of the budgets are governed in accordance with applicable provisions of the Florida
Statutes.

9y Formal budgetary integration at the object level is used as a management control device for all governmental
funds of the County for which annual budgets are adopted, including the general, special revenue, debt
service, and capital projects funds. Pro forma project length hudgets are provided to the Board for certain
capital projects for infermaticnal purpeses only. The level at which expenditures may not legally exceed
appropriations is the fund level. For instances when the expenditures exceed the appropriation, there would be
corresponding increase in unbudgeted revenue.

10) Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for all
governmental funds.

11) All appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year, althcugh the County expects to honor purchase orders
and contracts in process, subject to authority provided in the subsequent year's budget.

E. Property Taxes

Under Florida law, the assessment of all properties and the collection of all county, municipal and school beard
property taxes are consolidated in the offices of the County Property Appraiser and County Tax Collector. The
laws of the State regulating tax assessment are alsc designed tc assure a consistent property valuation method
statewide. State Statutes permit counties to levy property taxes at a rate of up to 10 mills for countywide purposes
and an additional 10 mills for non-countywide purpeses for municipal services with such additional 10 mills limit
inclusive of municipal service levies of other local government entities.

The tax levy of the County is established by the Board prior to Oclober 1 of each year and the Tax Collector
incorporates the millages into the total tax levy, which includes the municipalities, independent districts and the
County School Board tax requirements and produces the tax bill

All property is reassessed according to its fair market value on January 1 of each year. Each assessment roll is
submitted to the Executive Director of the State Department of Revenue for review to determine if the rolls meet all
of the appropriate requirements of State Statutes.

All taxes are due and payable on November 1 of each year or as soon thereafter as the assessment roll is certified
and delivered to the Tax Collector. All unpaid taxes become delinquent on April 1 following the year in which they
are assessed. Discounts are allowed for early payment at the rate of 4% in the month of November, 3% in the
menth of December, 2% in the month of January, and 1% in the month of February. Taxes paid in March are
without discount.

On or prior to June 1 following the tax year, cerificates are sold for all delinquent taxes con real propery.
Celinquent taxes on real property bear interest at 18% per year or as bid in a2 public sale of tax cerificates.
Application for a tax deed on any unredeemed tax certificates may be made by the certificate holder after a period
of two years. Unsold certificates are held by the County. Delinquent taxes on personal property bear interest at
18% per year until the tax is satisfied either by seizure and sale of the property or by the seven-year statute of
limitations.

The County does ot accrue its portion of the County-held tax sale certificates or personal property tax warrants
because such amounts are not considered to be material.

1
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Key dates in the property tax cycle for the fiscal year ended September 3¢, 2021 are as follows:

Assessment Roll certified June 2020
Beginning of fiscal year for which taxes are being levied Qctober 2020
Property taxes levied Qctober 2020
Tax bills issued November 1, 2020
Property taxes due by.

For maximum discount November 30, 2020

Celinquent after March 31, 2021
Tax certificates {liens) sold on unpaid property taxes No later than June 1, 2021

F. Tax Abatements

GASB Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures requires disclosure of tax abatement information about the
County's tax abatement agreements and those entered by other governments that reduce the County's tax
revenues. The County has evaluated this statement and has determined no agreements currently meet the criteria
to be disclosed.

G. Interfund Payables, Receivables, and Transactions

Unpaid amounts of interfund transactions at year end are reflected as “due from other funds” or "due to other
funds” in the related fund financial statements. Noncurrent pertions of interfund payables and receivables are
reported as advances. In governmental funds, advances are offset equally by nonspendable fund balance unless
the advanced funds are restricted or committed.

Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from it, which are
applicable to anocther fund, are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund, and as reductions of
expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. All other interfund transactions are reported as transfers.

H. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include equity in pooled cash, cash on
hand, demand deposit accounts and highly liquid investments {including restricted assets) with a maturity of three
moenths or less when purchased.

. Equity in Pooled Cash

The Board maintains a pooled cash fund which allows the various funds of the Board to pocl monies for
investment purposes. The Board maintains records to identify the equity of each fund investing in the pool as well
as amounts boerrowed from the pool. Investment earnings of the pool are recorded as earned and are allocated to
the participating funds based on the respective funds average daily balance. The equity in pooled cash consists of
cash which can be liquidated without penalty or delay.

J. Investments

The County's investments include U.S. Treasuries, Federal Instrumentalities, Corporate Notes/Obligations, Money
Market Funds, and Municipal Obligations. Investments with a maturity greater than five and a half {5.50) years
when purchased require the Clerk’'s approval prior to purchase. All investments are carried at fair value except
Federated Meney Market Fund, which is reported at amortized cost.

K. Inventories and Prepaid lftems

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market value, using the first-inffirst-out (FIFO) method. Annual
inventory expenditures reflect supplies consumed. Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future
accounting pericds and are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.
These payments are recorded as expenditures or expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.
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L. Restricted Assets

The use of certain assets of enterprise funds and debt service funds are restricted by specific provisions of bond
resolutions. Assets so designated are identified as restricted assets on the statement of net position and balance
sheet since their use is limited.

M. Utility Receivables

Utility receivables are shown net of allowance for uncollectible accounts. Utility accounts receivable in excess of
120 days comprise the utility accounts receivable allowance for uncollectible accounts. Water and wastewater
operating revenues are generally recognized con the basis of cycle billings rendered monthly. The receivables at
the end of the fiscal year include an allowance for uncollectible accounts in the amount of $870,000.

N. Special Assessment Receivables

The Board imposes special assessments against property located within specified areas, as set forth in the
Assessment Resolution, for the construction of improvements. The assessment of each parcel is based upon
gither the lineal feet of frontage along the areas to be improved or per lot. The assessments will be collected on
the ad valorem tax hill, as authorized by Section 197.3632 of the Florida Statutes.

O. Ambulance Receivables

Marion County Fire Rescue provides ground-based ambulance services, as well as basic and advanced life
support services to the citizens of Marion County. The receivable for ambulance services at the end of the fiscal
year includes an allowance for uncollectible accounts in the amount of $3.67 million,

P. State Housing Initiative Partnership (SHIP) Loan Receivables

In accordance with the Marion County SHIP Local Housing Assistance Plan, Marion County's Demolition and
Reconstruction Loan Program is designed to replace existing uninhabitable or dilapidated structures for
homeowners that do not have alternative housing or financial resources te alleviate the situation. Marion County
provides interest free loans to qualifying low income applicants, with equal monthly payments of the principal loan
balance amertized for 30 years.

1. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks,
and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements. Property and equipment with initial, individual costs that equal or exceed
$5,000 and estimated useful lives of over one year are recorded as capital assets. Buildings and improvements
with initial, individual costs that equal or exceed $50,000 are recorded as capital assets. Capital assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at
acquisition value at the date of donation. Attractve items are tangible personal property with cost under the
capitalization threshold that require special attention to ensure legal compliance, protect public safety, and/or have
a heightened risk of theft. These attractive items are recorded as property for inventory purpoeses in the County's
internal recerds, and are evaluated annually in accordance with Florida Administrative Code 691-73.

Infrastructure assets are reported on a network and sub-system basis. Accordingly, the amounts spent for the
construction or acquisition of infrastructure assets are capitalized and reported in the government-wide financial
statements regardless of their amount. The historical cost for the initial reporting of these assets was obtained
threugh backtrending (i.e., estimating the current replacement cost of the infrastructure to be capitalized and using
an appropriate price-level index to deflate the cost to the acquisition year or estimated acquisition year). As more
capital assets are acquired or constructed, they are capitalized and reported at the historical cost. The reported
value excludes normal maintenance and repairs which are essentially amounts spent in relation to capital assets
that do not increase the capacity or efficiency of the tem or extend its useful life beyond the criginal estimate.

Major cutlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred
during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized
value of the assets constructed.
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Capital Assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives unless they are inexhaustible or are intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives. The term depreciation (and related forms of the term) includes amortization of
intangible assets. Property, plant, equipment and computer software are depreciated/amortized using the straight
line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and Improvements 10-50 Years
Landfill and Water/Sewer Structures 10-50 Years
Machinery, Equipment and Vehicles 3-10 Years
Computer Software 5 Years
Infrastructure 15-50 Years

R. Compensated Absences

The County's reporting of accumulated unused compensated absences has been recorded in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 18, A liability is accrued for an employee's rights to receive compensation for future
ahsences when certain conditions are met. In general, it is the County's policy to grant all permanent full-time and
part-time employees leave based upon the number of years of employment. Employees are encouraged to use
their annual leave in the year that it is earned. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide,
proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements. A liability for this amount is reported in governmental funds
only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

S. Landfill Closure Costs

The Board recognizes municipal solid waste landfill closure and postclosure care costs under the State of Florida's
Solid Waste Management Act of 1988, regulations of the Federal Environmental Protection Agency, and the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 18, Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste Landfiil
Closure and Posiclosure Care Costs. The Beard is required to place a final cover on closed landfills and to provide
leng-term care for up to thify years after final cover. These obligations for closure and postclosure are recognized
in the enterprise fund for the County's landfill operations over the active life of the landfill, based on landfill capacity
used to date.

T. Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liabilities which are expected to be financed from governmenial funds are accounted for as debt service
expenditures in related funds. For proprietary fund types, leng-term debt and other obligations are reported as
liabilities in the fund financing the obligation.

U. Net Pension Liability

In the government-wide and proprietary fund siatements, the net pension liability represents the County's
proportionate share of the net pension liability of the cost-sharing pension plans in which it participates. This
liability represents a share of the present value of projected benefit payments to be provided through the
cost-sharing plans, less the amount of the cost-sharing plans' fiduciary net position. The County participates in
both the Florida Retirement System (FRS) defined benefit pension plan and the Health Insurance Subsidy
Program (HIS) defined benefit plan administered by the Florida Division of Retirement. The County allocated the
net pension liability, deferred outflows for pensions, deferred inflows for pensions, and pension expense to funds
and functions/activities based on their respective contributions made to the pension plans for that fiscal year.

V. Unearned Revenues

Unearned revenues in governmental funds represent funds for programs continuing into the next year. Unearned
revenues reported on applicable proprietary fund types represent revenues for connection fees and other
revenues received in advance. The unearned revenues will be recognized as revenue in the fiscal year in which
customer connections are made to the County utility system and other items are earned.

W. Self-Insurance Claims

Liahilities for repoerted claims and incurred but not reported claims are estimated based on an actuarial review of
historical experience and claims pending against the County.
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X. Grants Revenues

Program and capital grants received by governmental funds are recorded in the applicable governmental fund as
receivables and revenues at the time reimbursable costs are incurred and all significant grant restrictions are
satisfied. Grant revenues received in advance of meeting all major grant restrictions are reported as uneamned or
advanced.

Y. Deferred Qutflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets and liabilities, the County reports the financial statement elements of deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net
position that applies to future pericds and will not be recognized as an outflow of rescurces (expenditure or
expense} until that applicable time. Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that
applies to future periods and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that applicable time.

The County reports three items that qualify as deferred cutflows of resources on its government-wide and
proprietary statements of net position, the deferred amount on refunding, deferred cutflows for OPEB and deferred
outflows for pensions. The deferred amounts on refunding resulted from debt refinancing whereby the
reacquisition price of the refunding debt instruments exceeded their net carrying amount. This deferred amounts
on refunding are systematically charged to interest expense over the life of the refunding debt. The deferred
outflows for OPEB are an aggregate of items related to OPEB as calculated in accordance with GASB Statement
No. 75 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Posternployment Benefits Other than Pension. The deferred
outflows for pensions are an aggregate of items related to pensions as calculated in accordance with GASB
Statements No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and No. 71, Pensionn Transition for
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date. This deferred outflows for OPEB and pensions will be
recognized as pension expense or a reduction of the net OPEB or pension liabilities in future reporting years.

The County reports two items that qualify as deferred inflows of rescurces on its government-wide and proprietary
statements of net position, the deferred inflows for CPEB and deferred inflows for pensions. The deferred inflows
for OPEB are an aggregate of items related to OPEB as calculated under the same principles as the deferred
outflows for OPEB. The deferred inflows for pensions are an aggregate of items related to pensions as calculated
under the same principles as the deferred outflows for pensions. Both will be recognized as a reduction to OPEB
or pension expense in future reporting years.

The County also reports deferred inflows of resources on applicable governmental fund statements that represent
revenues which are measurable but not available, in accordance with the modified accrual basis of accounting.
These deferred inflows will be recegnized as revenue in the fiscal year they are eamed or become available. The
majority of these deferred inflows of resources represent special assessment liens, ambulance revenues, and
grant funds.

Z. Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund-Type Definitions

The County implemented GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions. This GASB Statement clarifies governmental fund balance classifications and fund-type definitions.
The change in the governmental fund type definition resulted in the re-classifying of certain special revenue funds
to the general fund for reporting purpeses. The Board of County Commissioners is the County’s highest level of
decision-making authority.

Governmental fund balances are classified either as nonspendable or spendable. Spendable fund balances are
further classified below nonspendable in a hierarchy based on the extent to which there are external and internal
constraints on the spending of these fund balances. These classifications are described as follows:

Nonspendable fund balance - include amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form or
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Nonspendable governmental fund balances at yearend are
for inventories and prepaid items,

Restricted fund balance - include amounts that can be spent only for the specific purpeses stipulated by external
resources providers either constitutionally or thru enabling legislation. Examples include grants and impact fees.

Committed fund balance — include amounts that can only be used for the specific purpose determined by a formal
action of the government’s highest level of decision-making authority. Commitments may be changed or lifted only
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by the government taking the same formal action of an Ordinance approved by the Board at the County’s regular
meeting that imposed the constraint originally.

Assigned fund balance — include amounts intended to be used by the government for specific purposes.
Currently, the Board has not officially designated anycne with the authority to assign fund balance to a specific
purpose as approved by the fund balance policy. Currently, only the Board has the authoerity to assign fund balance
through action other than cordinance. In governmental funds other than the general fund, assigned fund balance
represents the amount that is not restricted or committed. This indicates that the resources in other governmental
funds are, at a minimum, intended to be used for the purpose of that fund.

Unassigned fund balance - is the residual classification of the general fund only. Unassigned amounis are
technically available for any purpose in the general fund. Deficit fund balances in other governmental funds are
also classified as unassigned.

It is the County’s goal to maintain an adequate general fund unassigned fund balance to provide liquidity to meet
seasonal shorifalls in cash flow and reduce susceptibility to emergency or unanticipated expenditures andfor
revenue shortfalls. 1t is the goal of the County to maintain an unassigned fund balance in the general fund
sufficient to cover 20% of recurring expenditures, excluding constitutional officers, capital outlay, debt service, and
grant funded expenditures. If at the end of any fiscal year the actual amount of unassigned fund balance falls
below the targeted levels, the Board shall prepare and submit in conjunction with the proposed budget a plan for
budget adjustments necessary to restore the minimum requirements.

When multiple categories of fund balance are available for expenditures, the County will start with the most
restricted category in its order of use (restricted resocurces are used first, followed by committed rescurces,
followed by assigned rescurces). Unassigned fund balance is used when expenditures are incurred for purposes
which amounts in any classification could be used.

AA. Net Position

In accordance with GAAP, net position of proprietary funds, governmental activities and business-type activities
are made up of three components. Net investment in capital assets represents net capital assets less related
leng-term liabilities, where unspent debt proceeds increase this amount. Restricted net position represents assets
that are legally restricted for specific purpeses. They include hond sinking and reserve funds, special revenues
restricted by statute, ordinance, and bond proceeds and other sources restricted for capital projects or
improvements, The balance of net position is considered unrestricted net position.

NOTE 2 ~ DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
A. Cash and Cash Equivalents

At September 3G, 2021, the County's carrying value of cash and cash equivalents totaled $4086,717,155, which is
presented as $385,555,604 in the statement of net position and $21,161,551 in the statement of fiduciary net
position, and is made up of the items following in this paragraph. The carrying amount of the County's cash
deposit accounts was $97,293,667. Cash with a fiscal agent totaled $233,182. The County's cash deposits are
held by a bank that qualifies as a public depository under the Florida Security for Public Deposits Act as required
by Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. The County's cash deposits are fully insured by the Public Deposits Trust Fund.
Additionally, funds are placed with the State Board of Administration {SBA) for participation in the Local
Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund {Florida Prime Investment Poocl}, created by Section 218.405, Florida
Statutes. This investment pool cperates under investment guidelines established by Section 21547, Florida
Statutes.

The County’s investments in the Florida Prime Investment Pool as of September 30, 2021 were $309,190,306.
These investments are similar to money market funds in which units are owned in the fund rather than the
underlying investments. These investments are reported at amorized cost and meet the requiremenis of GASB
Statement No. 31, as amended by GASB Statement No. 78 Cerfain External Investment Pools and Pool
Participants, which establishes criteria for an external investment pocl to qualify for making the election to
measure all of its investments at amoertized cost for financial reporting purpcses. There are nc limitations or
restrictions on withdrawals from the Flerida Prime Investment Pool; although in the cccurrence of an event that
has a material impact on liquidity or operations of the trust fund, the fund's executive director may limit
centributions to or withdrawals from the trust fund for a period of 48 hours.
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The Florida Prime Investment Pcol had a dollar weighted average days to maturity (WAM) of 49 days as of
September 30, 2021. Next interest rate reset dates for floating rate securities are used in the calculation of the
WAM.

B. Investment Portfolio

The Board of County Commissicners (Board) and Clerk of the Circuit Court and Comptroller (Clerk} formally
adopted comprehensive investment policies on Cctober 3, 2000. The Tax Collector formally adopted a
comprehensive investment policy on October 20, 2006. The policies were created pursuant 1o Section 218.418,
Flerida Statutes and established permitted investments, asset allocation limits, issuer limits, credit ratings
requirements, and maturity limits to protect the County's cash and investment assets. The Board maintains a
common cash and investment pool for the use of all funds. In addition, cash and investments are separately held
by the Board's special revenue, debt service, capital projects, enterprise and trust funds.

Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, limits the types of investments that a government can invest in unless
specifically authorized in an investment policy. The Board adopted a list of permitted investments by ordinance
and updated their Investment Policy on March 3, 2015 The Ordinance (15-03) aliows for the following
investments: The U.S. Treasury, GNMA, other U.S. Government Guarantees (e.g. AID, GTC), Federal
Agency/GSE: FNMA, FHLMC, FHLB, FFCB, other Federal Agency/GSE, Supranaticnals (where U.S. is a
shareholder and wvoting member), Corporates, Municipals, Agency Mortgage-Backed Securities (MBS},
Asset-Backed Securities (ABS), Non-Negotiable Interest Bearing Time Certificates of Deposit, Commercial Paper
(CP}, Bankers’ Acceptances (BAs), Repurchase Agreements {Repo or RP), Money Market Mutual Funds (MMFs),
Fixed-Income Mutual Funds & ETFs, Intergovernmental Poocls (LGIPs), and the Florida Prime Investment Pool.

The Constitutional Officers, electing not to adopt a written investment policy, are limited to investing funds
pursuant to Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, subsection (17) Authorized Investments; no written investment
policy. Those investments include the Florida Prime Investment Pool, any authorized intergovernmental
investment pocl, SEC registered money market funds with the highest credit quality rating from a nationally
recognized rating agency, interest-bearing time deposits or savings accounts in qualified public depositeries, and
direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury.

The County's investment portfolio consists of $135,05%,547 in direct obligations of the United States Treasury
Securities, Federal Instrumentalities, Corporate Obligations, Municipal Obligations, and Money Market Funds
which are reported at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31,

The County categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application
provides guidance for determining fair value of investments for financial reporting purpeses and includes the fair
value hierarchy, which has three levels based on the valuation inputs used to measure an asset's fair value: Level
1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other cbservable
inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. Statement Ne. 72 allows for the use of quoted prices
provided by third paries. The County uses quoted prices provided by its third-party custedian, SunTrust Bank, Inc.
Quoted prices are categorized using a Fair Value Evaluation Matrix providing asset type, pricing method, pricing
sources, evaluation frequency, and customary fair value level. Investments' fair value measurements and input
levels are as follows at September 30, 2021.
Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices Significant Significant
in Active Markets Other Qbservable Unobservable
for Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
o9/30/2021 {Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3}
Investments by fair value level
Corporate Obligations 5 58,308,138 $ -3 58,308,138 $
Municigal Obligations 3697784 3,697,784
FNMA Notes 9,938 651 9,938 651
FHLB Notes 484,202 464 202
FHLMC Notes 27,943,477 27,943,477
US Treaswry Motes 34 670679 34670679
Total investments by fair value level $ 1350229831 § - % 135,022,831 §
Investments measured at amortized cost
Federated Money Market Fund 32,816
Total investments measuwred at amortized cost 32618

Total Investments 3 135,055,547
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As of September 30, 2021, interest receivable on the County’s investment portfolio amounted to $210,918. The
County had the following investment types by issuer and effective duration presented in terms of years:

Weighted Average Credit Percentage
Effective Duration by Security Type Fair Value Duration (Years) Rating of Portfolio
Corporate Obligations $ 58,308,138 1.80 EBBB-/ALA 43.17 %
Municipal Ghligations 3,697,784 1.66 A+/AA+ 274 %
FNMA Notes 9,938,651 1.84 AA+ 738 %
FHLE Notes 464,202 1.66 Al 0.34 %
FHLMC Notes 27,943,477 1.69 AA+ 2069 %
US Treasury Notes 34 6706749 2.06 N/A 2567 %
Federated Money Market Fund 32816 0.08 AAAM 0.02 %
Total Fair Value $ 13505655647 100.00 %
Portfolio Weighted Average Duration 1.84

C. Interest Rate Risk

The Board’s investment policy sets limits for investment maturities to match known cash needs and anticipated
cash flow requirements. Investments of current operating funds shall have maturities of no lenger than twenty-four
(24) months. Investments of bond reserves, construction funds, and other non-operating funds, “core funds”, shall
have a term appropriate to the need for funds and in accordance with debt covenants. The purchase of
investments for core funds with maturities longer than five and a half {5.50) years requires the Clerk’s approval
prior to purchase. The maturities of the underlying securities of a repurchase agreement will follow the
requirements of the Master Repurchase Agreement.

The Board utilizes “effective duration” as a measurement of interest rate risk and as of September 30, 2021, the
investment portfolio had an effective duration of 1.84 years.

Included in the investment porifolio, the Board has $7.844,101 in Callable Securities that have an embedded
option consisting of the option at the discretion of the issuer to call their obligation or pay a stated increase in the
interest rate. The effective duration of callables is 1.51 years with the latest maturity date of September 30, 2025,
The Board has $12,042,506 invested in Federal Agency mortgage-backed pass-through securities with an
effective duration of 1.46 years and latest maturity date of July 1, 2035. Additicnally, the Board has $15,909,145
invested in Asset-backed securities with an effective duration of 1.13 years.

D. Credit Risk

The Board's investment policy permits for investing in the following investments, which are limited to credit quality
ratings from a Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization (NRSRQ) as described below.

Money Market Mutual Funds provided such funds are registered under the Federal Investment
Company Act of 1940 and cperate in accordance with 17 C.FR. § 270.2a-7, which stipulates that
money market funds must have an average weighted maturity of 90 days or less. [n addition, the
share value of the money market funds must equal to $1.00. The money market funds shall be rated
the two highest rating categories by all NRSROs who rate the fund (AAm/Aa-mf, or equivalent).

Corpeorate notes, bonds, or other debt obligations shall be rated, at minimum or better, the highest
short-term or three highest leng-term rating categores (A-1/P-1, A-/A3 or equivalent} by a NRSRO.

Bankers' Acceptances {BAs) which are issued, drawn on, or guaranteed by a U.S. bank or U.S,
branch of a foreign bank shall be rated the highest shori-term rating category (A-1/P-1, or equivalent)
by a NRSRC.

Municipal obligations shall be rated, at a minimum or better, the highest short-term or three highest
long-term rating categories (SP-1/MIG 1, A-/A3, or equivalent) by a NRSRO.

Supranationals shall be rated, at a minimum or better, the highest short-term or two highest long-term
rating categories {A-1/P-1, AA-/Aa3, or equivalent) by 2a NRSRO.
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Commercial paper of any United Stales company or a domestic or foreign corporation, company,
financial institution, trust or other entity, including unsecured debt and asset-backed programs shall be
rated the highest short term rating category (A-1/P-1, or equivalent) by a NRSRO.

As of September 30, 2021, the majority of the Board's investment securities in the amount of $135,055,547 were
all individually rated BBB+/AAA by Standard & Poor's Rating Services or A1/Aaa by Mocdy's Rating Services.

The County's $309,190,306 investment deposit in the Florida Prime Investment Pool was rated by Standard &
Poor's. The current rating as of September 3G, 2021 was AAAM.

The County's cash deposit balance, including the deposit with fiscal agent, of $87,526,850 was deposited in a
qualified public depository, as required by Chapter 280, Florida Statutes.

E. Custodial Credit Risk

The Board's investment policy, pursuant to Section 218.415(18)}, Florida Statutes, requires securities, with the
exception of certificates of deposits, shall be held with a third party custedian; and all securities purchased by, and
all collateral obtained by the Board should be properly designated as an asset of the County. The securities must
be held in an account separate and apart from the assets of the financial institution. A third party custodian is
defined as any bank depository chartered by the Federal Government, the State of Florida, or any other state or
territory of the United States which has a branch or principal place of business in the State of Florida, or by a
national association organized and existing under the laws of the United States which is authorized to accept and
execute trusts and which is deing business in the State of Florida. Certificates of deposit will be placed in the
provider's safekeeping department for the term of the deposit.

As of September 30, 2021, the Board's investment portfolio was held with a third-party custodian as required by
the Board's investment policy.

F. Concentration of Credit Risk

The Beard's investment pelicy establishes asset allocation and issuer limits designed to reduce the concentration
of credit risk by security type and individual issuer. As of September 30, 2021, the Board’s investments included
ne investment exceeding the established concentration limits. All investments held were within the limits
established by the Beard's investment policy for security type and individual issuer.
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NOTE 3 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

The composition of interfund balances as of September 30, 2021 is as follows:

Due From Due to Other
Other Funds Funds
Major Funds:
General Fund b 5,447 $ 1487753
Majer Special Revenue Funds:
County Transportation Maintenance - -
MSTU For Law Enforcement 1,188,094 -
Silver Springs CRA Trust - 11,725
Fire, Rescue & EMS 7,343 -
Major Enterprise Funds:
Solid Waste System - 4,300
Nonmajor Funds:
Special Revenue Funds 294,917 3,043
Debt Service Funds 13,020 -
$ 1,508,821 $ 1,508,821

Interfund receivables and payables resulted primarily from revenues accrued in certain funds that are transferred
tc other funds and excess fees of County Constitutional Officers due to other funds of the County. The total
interfund balances contain $3.5 million of General Fund eliminations between the Constitutional Officers {Clerk,
Property Appraiser, Sheriff, Supervisor of Elections and Tax Collector).

Interfund transfers consist of the following:

Transfers In Transfers Qut
Major Funds:
General Fund 5 69,831,308 & 3,145 826
Major Special Revenue Funds:
County Transportation Maintenance 164,102 30,308
MSTU For Law Enforcement 128,108 54,689,026
Fire, Rescue & EMS 724 472 1,251,010
Major Enterprise Funds:
Solid Waste System 26,498 7,342
Marion County Utility 27,105 48,468
Non-major Funds:
Special Revenue Funds 1,304,941 15,432,794
Debt Service Funds 65,719 -
Capital Project Funds - 65,719
Internal Service Funds 2,401,750 3,511
$ 74874004 § 74,674,004

The MSTU for Law Enforcement Special Revenue Fund transferred $52.1 million to the General Fund for the
Sherff. The Fine & Forfeiture Special Revenue Fund transferred $14.2 million to the General Fund for the Sheriff
tc cover law enforcement costs. The total transfers contain $87 .6 million of General Fund eliminations between the
Constitutional Officers {Clerk, Property Appraiser, Sheriff, Supervisor of Elections and Tax Collector}.
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NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS

A. Changes in Capital Assets

The following shows the changes in capital assets of governmental activities:

Governmental Activities

Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:
Land
Land Use Rights
Historical Treasures
Construction In Progress
Construction In Progress - Infrastructure

Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated and
Amortized:
Buildings
Improvernents Gther Than Buildings
Equipment
Computer Software
Infrastructure

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation For:
Buildings
lmprovements Other Than Buildings
Equipment
Computer Software
Infrastructure

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net

Primary Government

Beginning Encing
Balance Balance
$/30/2020 [ncreases Decreases $/30/2021
435 278,765 $ 4,041,504 - 438,320,269
266,238 - - 266,238
13,425,780 1,834,261 {11,268,886) 4,081,055
37,763,254 23 499 588 (1,227 689) 60,035,151
486 734,037 29 475,351 {12,496,675) 503,712,713
241,932,429 301,038 - 242,233,467
60,232,871 11,466,139 - 71.889,010
152,414,833 13,298,858 (5,401, 01G) 160,312,781
4,050,890 - - 4,050,890
1,354,374,862 18,300,042 - 1,372 674,804
1,813 005,885 43 366177 (5,401,018} 1,850 971,052
{121,803,142) (7.894,548) - (126697 690)
{(41,615,422) (2,045,707) - (43.661,129)
(108,514,552} {14,326,309) 4,613,871 {119,226 980
{4,050,667) (223) - {4,050,880)
{598,072.831) (38,279,148) - (636,351 979)
{875,056 814) (62,545,936} 4,613,871 {932,988 678)
937,949,271 {18,179,758) {787,139} 917,982,374

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 1,424 683,308 $ 10,285,583 $  (13,283814) $  1,421685087

The following is a summary of governmental activities depreciation and amortization expense by function. As used
in this section, the term depreciation {and related forms of the term) includes amortization of intangible assets:

Depreciation Governmental Activities:

General Government $ 14,206,709
Public Safety 19,831,593
Physical Environment 407,610
Transportation 14,988,132
Economic Environment 102,508
Human Services 1,081,659
Culture/Recreation 7,359 962
Court Related 4,556,013
Capital Assets held by the government's Internal Service Fund and
charged to individual functions based on usage 11,749
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities $ 62,545,935
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The following shows changes in capital assets of business-type activities:

Business-type Activities

Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:
Land
Construction In Progress

Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Buildings
Improvernents Gther Than Buildings
Equipment

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation For:
Buildings
Improvernents Gther Than Buildings
Equipment

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net

Total Business-Type Activities

Capital Assets, Net

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
S/30/2020 Increases Decreases 913012021
3 8,778,168 - 3 - 3 8,778,168
15,676,300 18,535,811 - 34,212,211
24,454,468 18,535,811 - 42,990,379
8,828 863 - - 8,828,963
285,390,754 20,943,890 - 306,340,744
15,883,528 1,280,862 {1,128,841) 16,044,349
310,183 245 22240652 {1,129,841) 331,214,056
{4,389,145) {303,008) - (4,762.151)
{162 ,803,978) {13,364,603) - {175,868 .581)
{12,875,968) (1,217,723} 1,128,625 {12,965,066)
{179,873,091) {14,885,332) 1,128,625 {193,835,798)
130,224 154 7,355,320 {1,216) 137,578,258
3 154678622 3 2589123 $ {1,218} $ 180,568,837

The following is a summary of business-type activities depreciation expense by function:

Depreciation Business-type activities:

Solid Waste System
Marion County Utility

Total Depreciation Expense - Business-type Activities

ol)

$ 1,775,883
13,109,449

$ 14,886,332
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The following shows the changes in capital assets of business-type activities for both enterprise funds:

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
Business-type Activities 09/30/20 Increases Decreases 09/30/21
Solid Waste System
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:
Land % 1,047 467 3 - 3 - 3 1,047 467
Construction In Progress 3,249,260 713,871 - 3,863,131
Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 4 286 667 713,871 - 5,016,538
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Buildings 3880713 - - 3,880,713
Improvernents Gther Than Buildings 40,977,485 - - 40,977 485
Equipment 9,174,388 723,158 {1,057 ,503) 8,840,843
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 54,142,588 723,158 {1,057,503) 53,808,241
Less Accumulated Depreciation For:
Buildings {2,131,116) {140,251) - {2,271,367)
Improvermnents Other Than Buildings {32,752 618} {857,177} - {33,608,793
Equipment {7,167 964) {778,455) 1,057,324 {6,829.085)
Total Accumulated Depreciation {41,891 696} {1,775,883) 1,067,324 (42,710,255)
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net 12,150,850 {1,052,725) {179} 11,067,986
Solid Waste System Capital Assets, Net $ 16,447 557 $ {338,854} § (178 % 16,108,524
Marion County Utility
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:
Land b 7,730,761 $ - $ - $ 7,730,761
Construction In Progress 12,427,040 17,822,040 - 30,249,080
Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 20,157,801 17,822,040 - 37,879,841
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Buildings 4 838,250 - - 4 838,250
Improvermnents Other Than Buildings 244 413,268 20,849 990 - 265,363,259
Equipment 8,709,140 587,504 {72,338 7,204,308
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 255,980,658 21,517,494 {72,338 277,405,815
Less Accumulated Depreciation For.
Buildings {2,268,829) {162,755) - {2,430,784)
lmprovements Other Than Buildings (129,851 362) {12,507 42€) - {142,358,788)
Equipment {5,768,804) {439,268) 71,33 {6,135971)
Total Accumulated Depreciation {137,887 385) {13,168, 449) 71,33 {150,925,543)
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net 118,073,264 8,408,045 (1.837) 126,480,272
Marion County Wility Capital Assets, Net $ 138,231,065 $ 26,230,085 $ {1037y & 164480,113
Total Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets, Net b 154,678,622 $ 25,891,231 $ {1,218y & 180,588,637
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B. Summary of Capital Assets

The following summarizes Capital Assets found on the Statement of Net Position for governmental activities and
business-type activities:
Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:
Land $ 438,320,269 $ 8,778,168 $ 448,098,437
Historical Treasures 266 238 - 266 238
Construction in Progress 4,091,055 34,212,211 38,303,266
Construction in Progress -

Infrastructure 80,035,151 - 80,035,151
Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 503,712,713 42,990,373 548,703,082
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated and Amortized, Net:

Buildings 242,233,487 8,823,683 251,062,430
Improvements Other than Buildings 71,898,010 308,340,744 378,039,754
Equipment 180,312,781 16,044,349 178,357 130
Software 4,056 880 - 4,056 880
Infrastructure 1,372,674,904 - 1,372,674,904
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated 1,850,871 052 331,214,856 2,182,185108
Less: Accurnulated Depreciation {832,588 678) (193,635,788 {1,126 624 476}
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net 917,982 374 137,578,258 1,055,5680,632
Total Capital Assets, Net $ 1,421,695,087 3 180,568,637 3 1,602,263,724

€. Construction Commitments

The following is a summary of construction commitments outstanding at September 30, 2021:

Remaining

Projects Spent-to-Date Commitment
Road & Bridge Projects b 1,586,271 % 6,693,823
Sheriff Remodels 6,941,308 831,280
MSTU Road Assessments 220,008 557 294
Public Defender Building

Expansion 1,206,500 767,138
T-Hangars Construction 589,712 2,168 314
MSTU Resurfacing 839,849 143 940
Water & Sewer Projects 10,386,375 8032323
Total $ 21,780,123 5 18,894,101

. Capital Assets under Lease Purchase Commitments
Leased equipment under capital lease in capital assets at September 30, 2021, included equipment of

$1,187,403 less accumulated depreciation of $887,155 and equipment in progress {recorded in construction in
progress) of $1,288,274 . Amortization of leased equipment is included with depreciation expense.
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NOTE 5§ - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

A. Schedule of Changes in Long-term Liabilities

The County's outstanding long-term liabilities include bonds payable, notes from direct borrowings, claims
payable, compensated absences, other post employment benefits, net pension lability, claims and judgments,
accrued landfill closure costs and remediation costs. The following is a2 schedule of changes in the County’s
long-term liabilities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021:

Balance Balance Due Within
10/01/2020 Additions Reductions 08/30/2021 One Year
Governmental Activities:
Bonds Payable:
General Obligaticn Bonds £ - $ - b - $ - $ -
Revenue Bonds 34,760,000 - {3,085,600) 31,675,600 3,185 600
Special Assessment debi
with governmental commitrment 4,474 207 1,791,581 {1,070,231) 5,185537 1,043,683
Less Other Debt Amounis:
Bond Issuance Discounts - - - - -
Total Bonds Payable 39,234,207 1,791,561 {4,155,231) 36,870,537 4,228 693
Notes from Direct Borrowings 688,856 1,236,659 {228,823) 1,696,192 467,944
Claims Payable 5,657,008 7,834 063 {5,271,284) 7618779 1,523 956
Compensated Absences 21,600,889 14,736,564 {13,859 604; 22 877 958 4,535 592
Other Post Empl Benefits 20,208,080 1,288,180 - 21,497 250 335824
Net Pension Liability 308,847 556 86,078 888 {282,322 883 32,703 551 -
Governmental Activity
Long-term Liabilities $ 385,737,778 § 92865325 $ (305,637,835 $ 183065268 3 11,692,809
Business-type Activities:
Bonds Payable:
Revenue Bonds $ 48,015,000 P 42510000 $ (34,880,000 $ 55,635,000 $ 3,535,000
Less Other Debt Amounis:
Beond Issuance Premiums 1,198,025 - (1,196,025} - -
Total Bonds Payable 49,211,025 42,510,000 {36,086,025) 55,635,000 3,535,000
Notes from Direct Borrowings 18,657,545 2017175 {1,704,344) 18,870,376 1,747 138
Compensated Absences 660,064 448 594 {388,308) 720,350 144 670
Other Post Empl Benefits 700,222 3B o2 - 739,134 37477
Net Pension Liability 8,093,308 1,840,386 {8,183 655) 1,850,049 -
Landfill Closure Costs 25,911,329 3,208,002 - 28,120,331 376,453
Pollution Remediation Costs 2,875,830 39,250 - 2,915,080 1,059,580
Business-type Activity
Long-term Liabilities $ 106,169,323 $ 50,203,329 $  (46,362,332) $ 108850320 3 6,889,719

Compensated absences, net pension liability, and other postemployment benefits liability will be liquidated in future
pericds primarily by the general revenue of the General Fund and ad valorem taxes of the Fire Rescue and EMS
Fund and the MSTU for Law Enforcement Special Revenue Funds.

The County issued the Series 2021 Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds of $42,510,000 to advance refund
the Series 2012 Utility Refunding Bonds. The refunding resulted in a savings of $2,620,166 and loss on refunding
of $2,906,878 which was deferred.
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B. Bonds Payable

The County has general obligation, special assessment, and revenue bonds outstanding at year end. Special
assessment bonds are secured by liens on real property, governmental revenue bonds are secured by the
half-cent sales tax revenues and enterprise revenue bonds are secured by the revenues generated by the issuing
fund. The limited ad valorem tax bonds are limited to a levy not to exceed cne-half of ene mill in any given year.
The following is a schedule of bonds outstanding at September 30, 2021:

Amount Amount Interest
Purpose of Issue Issued Outstanding Rates Maturity
Governmental Activities:
Revenug Bonds:
Public Improvement Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Roads $ 34420000 9 31675.000 2.45% 2030
Series 20016
Total Revenue Bonds 21,675.000
Special Assessment Bonds:
Series 2012A Road and olher 1,913 421 156,193 2.44% 2022
Series 20134 infrastruciure 1,866,400 280 678 2.39% 2023
Series 20144 improvement projects 3105918 773,265 2.96% 2024
Series 2015A 302676 121288 2.79% 2025
Series 2018A 1,132,671 490,619 2.05% 2026
Series 2007A 1,584,554 833,352 2.41% 2027
Series 2019A B8990 876 739,581 2.60% 2029
Series 20214 1,791,567 7,791,567 1.600% 2031
Total Special Azsessment Bonds 5,195,537
Total Bonds Payable - Governmental Activities % 36,870,537
Business4ype Activities:
Revenue Bonds:
Uitititlies System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Refunding 22.325000 13,125,000 1.870% 2030
Series 20016
Utitities Systermn Revenue Refunding Bonds, Refunding 28,510,000 28,510,000 1.830% 2034
Series 20214
Uitititlies System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Systerm Acquisition 14000000 14000000 1.820% 2641
Senes 20218
Total Bonds Payable - Business-iype Activities $ 55,635,000
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C. Notes from Direct Borrowings

The County has varicus notes from direct borrowings outstanding at year end. The following is a summary of
those notes outstanding at September 30, 2021:

Remaining
Purpose [nterest Rates Balance
Business-type Activities:
Marion County Utility Fund
SRF Contract Payable - Golden Ocala  System Improvements -% $ 2017175
SRF Contract Payable - Oak Run System Improvements 1.11% 6,467 692
SRF Contract Payable - Stonecrest System Improvements 1.11% 5110348
SRF Contract Payable - JB Ranch System Improvements 1.11% 1,678,204
Windstream Ulilities System Acquisition 4.50% 3,653,870
SRF Contract Payable - S5RU System Acquisition 2.67% 43,087

$ 18,070,376

Governmental Activities:
General Fund

Cell Storage Servers 2.46% $ 132,958
Dell Network Servers 2.65% 327175
Golden Qcala Fire Truck 1.60% 1,236,059

$ 1,696,182

D. Debt Service Requirements

The fellowing schedules show debt service requirements to maturity for the County's general obligation bonds,
special assessment bonds, revenue bonds, and notes from direct borrowings and direct placementis:

Governmental
Activities:
Revenue and Special Notes from
Fiscal Year Assessment Bonds Direct Borrowings Total
Principal [nterest Principal [nterest

2022 $ 4228693 3% 843484 % 467,944 % 38020 § 5578121
2023 4,181,406 747 806 342,908 25,09 5,297,211
2024 4,135,922 844,748 351,060 16 939 5,148 668
2028 3,064,418 542721 241,452 8,549 4,757,140
2026 4031137 446,226 245314 4,685 4,727 362
2027-2031 18,328,961 808,721 47,514 780 17,185 956
2032-2036 - - - - -
Total $ 36870537 & 4033686 § 1686192 § 94044 § 42694458

Business-type Activities

Fiscal Year
Revenue Bonds Notes from Direct Borrowings Total
Principal Interest Principal Interest
2022 $ 35835000 3 1,021,760 $ 1.747139 3 460 033 $ 6763932
2023 4,465,000 @42 148 3,808,250 416,086 9,631,492
2024 4 550,600 857 180 1813775 371130 7,592 085
2025 3,885,600 777 508 1,859 497 325 408 68,857 413
2026 3,860,000 703,343 1,806 450 278 455 6,848 248
2027-2031 20,840,000 2,337 948 8,032,249 730,001 29,840,198
2032-2038 10,350,000 897 937 1,164,023 278977 12,530 937
2037-2041 4 060,600 184 730 638,993 42 069 4,865 792
Total $ 55835000 b 7,622,552 b 18,970,378 b 2,802,168 $ 85030087
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The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of
September 30, 2021, were as follows:

Governmental
Fiscal Year Activities
2022 $ 505,864
2023 367,999
2024 367 999
2025 250,001
2026 249 999
2027 48,274
Total minimum lease payment 1,780,236
less: amount representing inferest {94,044)
Present value of minimum lease payments 3 1,696,192

E. Pledged Revenues

Marion County has pledged certain revenues, to repay certain bonds and notes ouistanding as of September 30,
2021. The following table repors the revenues, sometimes net of related operating expenses, pledged for each
debt issue, the amounts of such revenues received in the current year, the current year principal and interest paid
on the debt, the approximate percentage of each revenue which is pledged to meet the debt obligation, the date
threugh which the revenue is pledged under the debt agreement, and the total pledged future revenues for each
debt, which is the amount of the remaining principal and interest on the bonds and notes at September 30, 2021:

Current Pledged Estimated
Year Outstanding Revenue Principal
Revenue Total Principal Percentage & Interest

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES Pledged Revenue & Interest Pledged Paid Maturity
Revente Bonds:

Public Improvemen! Revenue Bonds - 2010 Sales lax 29170, 868 - - 1,637,100 2021

Public Improvemen! Revenie Bonds - 2016 Sales lax 29170 868 35,291,596 12.4% 2,274,168 2030
Total Revenue Notes and Bonds - Governmental Activities % 35,291,996 % 3,911,268
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Revenue Bonds:

Litility System Revenue Bonds - 2012 Systern Revenue 16,525,180 - - % 2,056,325 2034

Litility System Revenue Bonds - 2016 Systern Revenue 16,525,180 13935318 94 % 2,516 8689 2030

Litility System Revenue Bonds - 20214 Systern Revenue 16,525,180 32531516 151 % 856 325 2034

Lititity Syslem Revenue Bonds - 20218 System Revenue 16,525,180 16,650,718 51 % - 2041
Revente Notes:

2002 Stale Revolving Fund Loan - SSRY System Revenue 16,525,180 44534 01 % 22,268 2023

2008 State Revolving Fund Loan - JB Ranch  Systern Revenue 16,525,180 1804574 18 % 277642 2028

2008 State Revolving Fund Loan - Cak Run Systern Revenue 16,525,180 7.125.448 54 % 890 881 2028

2008 State Revolving Fund Loan - Stonecrest  Systern Revenue 16,525,180 563665 43 % 704,582 2028

2014 Windstream Utilities Loan Systern Revenue 16,525,180 5,244 G55 18 % 312,600 2038
Total Revenue Notes and Bonds - Business Activities k3 83012514 $ 7,430,692
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F. Defeased Debt

The County advance refunds and defeases debt primarily as a means of reducing debt service requirements. At
such time, the liability for that debt is removed from the applicable statement of net position. As of September 30,
2021, the County had $12,785,00C outstanding for the Series 2009A Bonds, $17,855,00C outstanding for the
Series 2010 Bonds, and $31,305,000 cutstanding for the Series 2012 Bonds.

G. Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are accrued in proprietary funds at year end. The County does not accrue compensated
absences in governmental funds. However, compensated absences paid in governmental funds are charged to
the fund and function in which the employee was related and are reported as a liability on the government-wide
statement for governmental activities. The following is a summary schedule of compensated absences as of
September 30, 2021:

Balance Balance
09/30/2020 Additions {Reductions) 08/30/2021

Governmental Activities:
Board of County Commissioners $ 7,020,450 3 5,271,745 3 (5,127,364 &% 7,164,831
Clerk of the Circuit Court 884 (074 538,458 {541,388) 891,144
Sheriff 12,900,828 8,151,973 (7,245,861) 13,808,940
Tax Collector 371,820 441,835 {454,224) 359,431
Property Appraiser 287,598 252,874 {197,301} 343171
Supervisor of Elections 93,887 53,045 (68,622) 79,210
Internal Service Fund 32,342 25,734 {24,844) 33,232

$ 21,600,899 $ 14,736,564 $  {(13659604) § 22677859
Business-type Activities:
Solid Waste Fund 3 234,805 3 152,499 3 {127,199} % 260,205
Marion County Ulility Fund 425,159 286,005 {261,109} 460,145

$ 660,064 $ 448 594 $ (388,308) $ 720,350

H. Landfill Closure Costs

State and federal laws and regulations require the County te place a final cover on its landfill when closed and to
perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site for thirty years after closure. The cost of
landfill closure and postclosure care is allocated based on landfill capacity used to date. As of September 30,
2021, the landfill was at 100% of criginal design capacity. The County expects the landfill to close in 2021 when
closure design is complete. The accrued cost for closure care as of September 30, 2021, was $29,120,331. The
remaining closure and postclosure costs to be recognized, based upen the current engineering estimates are $0.
All amounts recognized are based on an estimate by the County’s engineers of the cost to perform 2ll closure and
postclosure care as of September 30, 2021. Actual costs may be different due to inflation, deflation, changes in
technology, or changes in laws and regulations. The County is required by state and federal laws and regulations
to establish escrow accounts for closure and postclosure costs of the landfill. The County has complied with these
requirements by depositing required amounis into a landfill management escrow account. Any balance in this
account is reported as a restricted asset on the statement of net position of the Selid Waste enterprise fund.

. Bond Covenant Requirements, and Certain Disclosures for Bonds and Notes from Direct Borrowings

Bond Covenant Requirements

Revenue bond covenants, revenue bond debt service and transfer requirement provisions require either (1)
menthly sinking fund contributions for current debt service of one-twelfth and one-sixth of the next maturing
principal and interest payment, respectively, or (2} an annual approach where 2all receipts are deposited into a
sinking fund until the funds therein are sufficient o meet the maturing principal and interest payments. In addition,
certain reserves for future debt service requirements (generally the largest principal and interest payment due in
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any succeeding year) must be maintained. The sum of the net revenue, available impact fees and utility services
fees to be received in such bond year shall be at least equal to one hundred ten percent (110%) of the bond debt
service requirements.

Bond covenants require debt service reserves to be either fully funded or insured. If insured, the surety provider
must maintain sufficient ratings. The County has reserved $2,803,257 for Transportation bonds to fulfill the
covenant requirements. The County is not aware of any areas of non-compliance with respect to its bond
covenants.

Certain Disclosures for Bonds

The County's public improvement revenue bonds, special assessment bonds, and utility system revenue bonds
contain remedies for events of default that are dependent upen judicial actions and may be limited, and may
include interest default rate escalations on cutstanding balances.

Certain Disclosures for Notes from Direct Borrowings

The County’s direct borrowings with the State Revelving Fund (SRF} contain provisions that in the event of default,
notification of such default may be made to the Florida Auditor General and Chief Financial Officer, and the SRF
may intercept the unpaid amounts from unobligated funds due to the County under revenue or tax sharing
programs. The SRF may impose a penalty of an interest rate up te 18% annually on the amount due. Additicnally,
the SRF may accelerate the repayment schedule or increase the financing rate on unpaid principal to as much as
1.867 times the original financing rate.

The County's equipment lease-purchase notes contain remedies for events of default that may include declaring
all unpaid amounts immediately due, and/or requiring return of all equipment under the agreement.

NOTE 6 - RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAM

The County maintains a risk management program whereby the County is responsible for specific workers’
compensation claims, general property and casually, and automobile liabilities. The activities of the risk
management program are accounted for in an internal service fund. The program covers individual workers'
compensation claims up to $1,000,00C. The County allocates costs to funds and functions based on standard
workers' compensation premium schedules. The program covers individual property damage claims up to
$100,000 and $100,000 for general liability and automobile liability claims. Excess coverage for property claims is
the scheduled value of approximately $50C million. The excess coverage for workers' compensation, general
liability and automobile liability have been discontinued during the fiscal year. In addition, there have been no
settlements which exceeded the County's insurance coverage for each of the past three fiscal years.

All departments of the County participate in the program. Payments are made by varicus funds to the
self-insurance fund based on past experience of the amounts needed to pay current year claims. For the year
ended September 30, 2021, the County obtained actuarially determined estimates of the total claims loss reserves
for workers' compensation, general liability and automobile liability self insurance risks. The claims Lability of
$7,619,779 reported in the governmental activities statement of net position as of September 30, 2021 is based on
the requirements of GAAP which requires that a liability for unpaid claims costs, including estimates of costs
relating to incurred but not reported claims, be accrued when insured events occur. The liability reported includes
nen-incremental claims adjustment expenses as part of the liability for claims and judgments.
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The risk management program is alsc used to account for the amounts cellected and disbursed to a third-party
insurer for the County employees' major medical, disability income, and life insurance. Changes in the risk
management program’s claims liability, for the past two fiscal years, are as follows:

Current Year

Claims / Current Year
Beginning Changes in Claims
Fiscal Year Beginning Estimates Payments Ending Balance
2019-2020 ) 8,720,308 $ 2,139,193 $ (3.802501y % 5,057,000
2020-2021 5,057,000 7,834,083 (5,271,284} 7619779

The County's Internal Service Fund provides the participants’ comprehensive safety programs, management of
insurance, casualty/liability review and reduction, self insurance or pooled insurance programs, and claims
management.

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT SYSTEM
A. The Florida Retirement System
1. Plan Description, Membership and Plan Benefits, and Contribution Requirements

Plan Description

The Flerida Retirement System (FRS) is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, coniributory retirement
system, administered by the State of Florida (State). The FRS was created by Chapter 121, Florida Statutes, to
provide a defined benefit pension plan for participating public employees. The FRS was amended in 1998 tc add
the Deferred Retirement Cption Program (DROP) under the defined benefit plan, and amended in 2000 to provide
a defined contribution plan alternative to the defined benefit plan for FRS members effective July 1, 2002. This
integrated defined centribution plan is the FRS Investment Plan (INV). Chapter 112, Florida Statutes, established
the Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy {HIS) Program, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan to assist retired members of any state-administered retirement system in paying the costs of health
insurance,

The FRS and HIS are administered by the Florida Department of Management Services, Division of
Retirement. Provisions relating to the FRS are established by Chapters 121 and 122, Florida Statutes; Chapter
112, Part IV, Florida Statutes; Chapter 238, Florida Statutes; and Florida Retirement System Rules, Chapter 603,
Florida Administrative Code. The Florida Legislature has the authority to establish and amend retirement
legislation and related bills of significance to members of the FRS and HIS plans (including benefit terms and
contribution rates). Passed bills are presented to the Governor of Florida and approved before they may be
enacted into law.

The FRS and HIS financial information are included in the Florida Retirement System (System) Pension
Plan and Other State-Administered Systerns’ Annual Comprehensive Financial Report {ACFR). Reporting of the
FRS and HIS are on the accrual basis of accounting. Employer contributions are recognized when due in the
pericd in which employee services are performed. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the terms of each plan. The fiduciary net positions of the FRS and HIS were determined on the
same hasis used by the pension plans. The State Board of Administration invests the assets of the pension plans
held in the FRS Trust. Investments are reported at fair value which are obtained from independent pricing service
providers using quoted market prices. The System ACFR, including audited financial information to support the
Schedules of Employer Allocations and Schedules of Pension Amounts by Employer, are available online at:

http:/iwww.dms.myflorida.com/workforce_cperations/retirement/publications.

69


http://www.dms.myflorida.com/workforce_operations/retiremenUpublications

MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2021

The System ACFR and actuarial reperts may also be obtained by contacting the Division of Retirement by mail or
phone at:

Cepartment of Management Services

Civision of Retirement

Bureau of Research and Member Contributions

P.C. Box 9000

Tallahassee, FL 32315-9000

850-488-57086

Membership and Plan Benefits - FRS

The FRS has several classes of membership applicable to the County, including regular ¢lass, special
risk, elected officers, senicr management, and DROP. The FRS Pension Plan provides for the vesting of benefits
after six years of creditable service or after eight years of creditable service for members first enrolled after July 1,
2011. Members are eligible for normal retirement when they have met the minimum requirements listed below.
Early retirement may be taken any time after vesting; however, there is a 5% benefit reduction for each year prior
to normal retirement age. Members are also eligible for in-line-of-duty or regular disability benefits if permanently
disabled and unable to work. Benefits are computed on the basis of age, average final compensation, creditable
years of service, and accrual value by membership class.

A DROP was established effective July 1, 1898, subject tc provisions of Section 121.021, Flerida Statutes.
It permits employees eligible for normal retirement under the FRS to defer receipt of monthly benefit payment
while continuing employment with a Florida Retirement System employer. An employee may participate in the
CROP for a period not to exceed 80 months after electing to participate. During the pericd of DROP participation,
deferred monthly benefits are held in the Florida Retirement System Trust Fund and accrue interest.

Normal Retirement Requirements
Six years of service and age 62, or the age after 62 the member becomes
vested, or thirty years of service, regardless of age, whichever comes first.
Regular Class, Senior Eight years of service for members first enrolled after July 1, 2011 and age 65 the
Management Service Class, |member becomes vested, or the age after 65 the member becomes vested, or
and Elected Officers’ Class  |thirty three years of service regardless of the age before 65,
Six years of special risk service and age 55, or twenty-five total years special risk
service, regardless of age.
Eight years of service for members first enrolled after July 1, 2011 and age 60 the
member becomes vested, or thirty years of service regardless of age before 60
or age 57 and completes 30 years of service and up to 4 years of wartime military
Special Risk Class service purchased under section 121.111 Florida Statutes.
Special risk requirements apply to service in this class if member has six years
Special Risk Administrative  |{eight years for members first enrolled after July 1, 2011) actual special risk
Support Class service, otherwise regular member requirements apply.

Membership and Plan Benefits - HIS

HIS membership is available to all members within the FRS and INV plans. The benefit is a monthly
payment tc assist retirees of the state-administered retirement systems in paying their health insurance costs.
Eligible retirees and beneficiaries receive a monthly HIS payment equal to the number of years of service credited
at retirement multiplied by $5. The minimum payment is $30, and the maximum payment is $150 per moenth,
pursuant to sectien 112.363, Florida Statutes. To be eligible to receive a HIS benefit, a retiree under one of the
state-administered retirement systems must provide proof of eligible health insurance coverage, which can include
Medicare.
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Contribution Requirements

The contribution rates for FRS and HIS members are established, and may be amended, by the State of
Florida. Employer contributions rates are actuarially recommended but set by the Legislature. These rates are a
percentage of covered payroll. The FRS and HIS contribution rates were as follows:

10/1/20-6/30/21 71/21-9/30/21

Regular Class — Members not qualifying for other classes. 10.00% 10.82%
Special Risk Class — Members employed as law enforcement 24.45% 25.89%

officers, firgfighters, or correctional officers meet the

criteria to qualify for this class.
Senior Management 27.28% 28.01%
Special Risk Administrative Support 35.84% 37.76%
Elected County Officers 49.18% 51.42%
Deferred Retirement Option Program (CROP) 16.98% 18.34%

Employer rates include 1.66% from 10/1/20-9/30/21 for the HIS program. In addition, other than for the
DROP, rates include .06% from 10/1/20-9/30/21 for administrative costs.

The County's contributions recognized during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021 by the FRS and
HIS were $23,066,172 and $2,477,966 respectively.

As of July 1, 2011, members contribute 3% of their salary as retirement contributions. Members
participating in DROP are not required to make 3% contributions.

2. FRS and HIS Rate of Return, Discount Rate Sensitivity and Significant Actuarial Assumptions

Long-Term Rate of Return

To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of retum assumption, in
Qctober 2021 the FRS Actuarial Assumption Conference reviewed assumptions by Milliman's Capital Markets
Assumption team. Each asset class assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions and
includes an adjustment for the inflation assumption. These assumptions are not based on histerical returns, but
instead are based on a forward-locking capital market economic model. The target allocation and best estimates
of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Arnnual
Target Arthmetic

Asset Class Allocation Return
Cash 1.0% 2.1%
Fixed Income 20.0% 3.8%
Glohal Equity 54.2% 8.2%
Real Estate (Propenrty) 10.3% 7.1%
Private Equity 10.8% 11.7%
Strategic Investments 3.7% 5.7%

100.0%

The HIS is essentially funded on a pay-as-you go basis and the depletion date is considered to be
immediate. As such, there is nc assumption for a long-term expected rate of return on a portfolio, no assumptions
for cash flows into and cut of the plan, or assumed asset allocation.
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Discount Rate Sensifivity Analysis

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity of the County's proportionate share of the net pension
liahility to changes in the discount rate. The sensitivity analysis shows the impact if the discount rate was 1.0%
higher or 1.0% lower than the current discount rate at June 30, 2021.

FRS Net Pension Liability (Asset) HIS Net Pension Liability (Asset)
Current Discount Current Discount
1% Decrease Rate 1% Increase 1% Decrease Rate 1% Increase
5.80% 6.80% 7.80% 1.16% 2.16% 3.16%

$ 196,373,516 § 43811130 $  (83,530,330) $ 585478601 § 50642470 $ 44165983

Actuarial Methods and Assumptionis

Actuarial assumptions for both the FRS and HIS are reviewed annually by the Florida Retirement System
Actuarial Assumptions Conference. The FRS has a valuation performed annually and the HIS has a valuation
performed biennially that is updated for GASB reporting in the year 2 valuation is not performed. The most recent
experience study for the FRS and HIS was completed for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2018.

The total pension liability for the FRS was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021, and for
HIS by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2020 updated to July 1, 2021, using the individual entry age normal
actuarial cost methed. Inflation increases for both plans is assumed at 2.40%. Payroll growth for both plans is
assumed at 3.25%. Benefits received by retirees and beneficiaries of the FRS Plan are increased by a COLA
each year hased on their previous year benefit amount. Retirements prior to August 2011 receive a 3% COLA
adjustment, and retirees after August 2011 received a fermula-structured COLA. Mortality assumptions for the
FRS were based on the PUB2010 base table varied by member category and sex, projected generationally with
scale MP-2018; and on the Generational RP-2000 with projection scale MP-2018 for the HIS. Both the discount
rate and long-term expected rate of return used for FRS investments is 6.80%, consistent with the prior year. The
FRS fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current
active and inactive employees. Therefore, the discount rate for calculating the total pension liability is equal to the
long-term expected rate of return. Because the HIS uses pay-as-you-go funding structure, a municipal bond rate
of 2.16% was used to determine its total pension liability. In October 2021, the Actuarial Assumptions Conference
adopted the Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index as the applicable municipal bond
index. As of June 30, 2021, the municipal rate used by HIS decreased from 2.21% 10 2.16%.

B. Net Pension Liability, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Pension Expense for County
Defined Benefit Pension Plans

1. Preporticnate Share of FRS and HIS Plans

Employers paricipating in the FRS and HIS were provided pension allocation schedules for use in
recording their proportionate share of the FRS and HIS collective net pension liability, deferred outflows of
resources, deferred inflows of resources, and pensions expense at measurement date June 30, 2021 in
accordance with GASB Statements No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and No. 71, Pension
Transition for Contributions Made Subseguent to the Measurement Date - An Amendment of Statement No. 68.
The underlying financial information used 10 prepare the pension allocation schedules was based on the same
basis as mentioned previcusly, and on the actuarial valuations as of July 1, 2021 for FRS and July 1, 2020
updated to July 1, 2021 for HIS. The County's proportionate share was calculated using the retirement
contributions for employees that were members of the FRS and HIS during the measurement year ended June 30,
2021. The aggregate employer contribution amounts in the pension allocation schedules agree to the total
employer contribution amounts reported in the System ACFR.

At September 30, 2021, the County reported a net pension lability of $84,553,600 for its proportionate share of the

collective net pensicn liability of the FRS and HIS. The following table presents information on the County's
proportionate share of the FRS and HIS;
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Proportionate Share of Net Pension 3

Liability at June 30, 2021

County's propertion at June 30, 2021
County's propertion at June 30, 2020
Change in proportion during current year

County
FRS HIS Total
43,911,130 3 50,642,470 $ 94,553,600
0.005813 0.004130
0.008185 0.004010
{0.000372) 0.000120

2. Pension Expense and Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended September 30, 2021, the County recognized pension expense of $5,423,49% Pension
expense of $1,015,204 was related to the FRS Plan, and pension expense of $4,408,295 was related to the HIS

Plan.

resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Differences between expected and
actual experience

Changes of assumptions

Net difference between projected and
actual investment earnings

Changes in proportion

County contributions subsequent to
the measurement date

Total Deferred Outflows
Total Deferred {Infiows)

At September 30, 2021, the County repered deferred ouiflows of resources and deferred inflows of

County Total
FRS HIS Deferred Outfiows
Def Quiflows Def Inflows Def Quiflows Def Inflows { (Deferred Inflows)
$ 7,526,438 b 1684625 b 9,221,083
5 5 {21,211} {21,211}
30,046,172 3,879,365 34,025,537
{2,088,589) {2,088,599)
52,783 52,793
{153,194,885) {153,194,895)
10,565,786 4,254 341 14,820,127
{11,214 561) {301,040) {11,515,801)
6,136,763 620274 8,757,037
$ 54,275,159 b 10,801,388 b 84878557
${164,408,456) b (2,408,850) $ (166,818,306}
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Ceferred outflows of resources of $6,757,037 are reported by the County for employer contributions subsequent to
the measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of rescurces and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

County Total

Reporting Year Deferred Qutflows
Ending June 30, FRS HIS / {Deferred Inflows)
2022 $ (18875,181) $ 1,848,588 $ (17,826,583)
2023 (23,531,082) 1,218,914 (22,312,168)
2024 (31,275,461) 1,467,780 (29,807,671}
2025 (40,810,488) 1,604,023 (38,006,465)
2026 {1,178,848) 1,168,950 (9,888)
Thereafter - 263,989 263,999
Totals $ (118,271,080) $ 7572274 $ {108,688,786)

€. Defined Contribution Retirement Plan

The County contributes to the Flerida Retirement System Investment Plan (INV), the integrated defined
contribution investment plan described above. The INV is administered by the Florida Department of Management
Services, Division of Retirement. Benefit terms, including contribution requirements, for the INV are established
and may be amended by the Florida Legislature. For each employee in the INV, the County must coniribute at the
blended uniform rate structure as previously disclosed for the FRS Plan. Employees are required to contribute 3%
of salary. For the year ended September 30, 2021, the County recognized pension expense of $1,698,093.

The detail of pension expense by each County Officer for the defined contribution investment plan is as
follows:

County Officer Pension Expense
Beard of County Commissioners $ 859,505
Clerk of the Circuit Court and Comptroller 48,845
Property Appraiser 10,152
Sheriff 640,804
Supervisor of Elections 3,959
Tax Collector 35,028
Total § 1,698,083

Employer contributions and earnings on those contributions are vested according to the same schedule as
disclosed for the FRS Plan. Nonvested County contributions are forfeited upon termination of employment. Such
forfeitures are used to cover a portion of the INV's administrative expenses. For the fiscal year ended September
30, 2021, the information for the amount of forfeitures was unavailable from the SBA; however, management
believes that these amounts, if any, would be immaterial to the County.
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NOTE 8 - OTHER POQSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) LIABILITY

In 2018, the County implemented GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions for accounting and financial reporting for its Other
Postemployment Benefits Plan (OPEB Plan).

Plan Description, Benefit Terms and Contribution Requirements

The CPEB Plan is a single-employer henefit plan administered by the County. Retirees are charged whatever the
insurance company charges for the type of coverage elected. However, the premiums charged by the insurance
company are bhased on a blending of the experience among younger active employees and older retired
employees. The older retirees usually have higher costs, which means that the County is actually subsidizing the
cost of the retiree coverage because it pays all or a significant portion of that premium on behalf of the active
employees. In addition to this implicit rate subsidy, the Marion County Sheriffs QOffice provides retirees with a
direct subsidy of $5 per month per each credited year of service with the Sheriff's Office. This amount is limited to
$150 per month and in no event will it exceed total cost of health insurance net of the Florida Retirement System’s
(FRS) health insurance subsidy. This subsidy is only available until the retiree becomes Medicare eligible. The
health insurance subsidy is provided under the FRS and is not considered part of GASB No. 75.

Retirees and their dependents are permitted to remain covered under the County's respective medical and
insurance plans as long as they pay a full premium applicable to coverage elected, subject to direct subsidies
discussed above. This conforms to the minimum required of Florida governmental employers per Ch. 112.08, F.S.
Benefits that exceed this minimum are established and may be amended through action from the Board of County
Commissioners (the "Board”). The OPEB Plan does not issue a stand-alene report and is not included in the
report of any other entity. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB
Statement No. 75.

At September 30, 2019, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 378
Active employees 2,340
Total 2,718

Contributions {(benefit payment reductions) to the OPEB Plan are shared by the retiree and the County. OPEB
Plan participants must reimburse the County for the County's average blended cost. Contributions requirements of
the County are established and may be amended through action by the Board.

Total GPEB Liability and Changes in Total CPEB Liability

The measurement date for the County's total/net OPEB liability was September 30, 2020, one year prior to the
County's fiscal reporting date of September 30, 2021. The measurement pericd for OPEB cost was October 1,
2019 to September 30, 2020. The components of the County's net OPEB liability reported at September 30, 2021
are as follows:

Total OPEB liability $ 22,236,384
OPEB Plan fiduciary net position -
County's net OPEB liability $ 22,236,384
OPEB Plan fiduciary net position as percentage of total OPEB liability 0.0%
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The components of the changes in the total OPEB liability are as fellows:

Fiscal Year
2021

Total OPEB Liability
Service Cost $ 1,227,365
Interest 595815
Cifference between Expected and Actual Experience -
Change in Assumptions 458,648
Benefit Payments (955,827)
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability 1,327,102
Total OPEB Liability - beginning 20,908,282
Total OPEB Liability - ending $ 22,236,384

Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect a change in the discount rate from 2.75% at the beginning of the
measurement period to 2.41% as of September 30, 2020.

Actuarial Assumptions and OPEB Liability Sensitivity to Healthcare Trend Rate
The total OPEB liability reported at September 30, 2021 was based on an actuarial valuation dated September 30,
2018 rolled forward to September 30, 2020 measurment date using the following actuarial assumptions:

Infiation 2.25% per annum

Discount rate 2.41%

Salary increases Rates used in the July 1, 2020 actuarial valuation of the FRS; 3.4 - 8.2%

Mortality rates Mortality tables used for regular and special risk class members in the July 1, 2019
actuarial valuation of the FRS (based on experience study for period 2013 thru 2018)

Healthcare frend Based on the Getzen model, with frend starting at 6.5% and gradually decreasing

fo ultimate trend rate of 3.99%

The development of per capita costs included aging factors based on the 2013 Society of Actuaries Study
"Healthcare Costs - From Birth to Death”. There have been no significant changes {other than premium rate
increases) in any health benefits or life insurance benefits between September 30, 2020 and September 30, 2021.

Sensitivity of OPEB liability to healthcare trend rate
The following table presents the total OPEB liability of the County, as well as what the County's total OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using a healthcare trend rate that is 1% lower or 1% higher than the current rate:

1% Decrease Current Trend Rate 1% Increase

Total OPEB liability $ 19,453,106 $ 22,236,384 § 25,561,695

Discount Rate and OPEB Liability Sensitivity to Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability reported as of September 30, 2021 was 2.41%.
Because the County's OPEB costs are essentially funded on a pay-as-you-go funding structure, & municipal bond
rate was used to determine the total OPEB liability for the OPEB Plan. Fidelity's 20-Year Municipal G.O. AA Index
daily rate closest but not after the measurement date was used for this purpose.
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Sensitivity of OPEB liability to discount rate
The following table presents the total OPEB liability of the County, as well as what the County's total OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1% lower or 1% higher than the current discount rate:

1% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1% Increase

Total OPEB liability $ 23,789,285 $ 22,236,384 35 20,469,165

QPEB Expense, Deferred Cutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to CPEB

For the year ended September 30, 2021, the County recognized OPEB expense of $1,329,825. At September 30,
2021, the County had deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the
following sources:

Deferred Quiflows Deferred Inflows
Difference between expected and actual experience $ 0 % 1,639,615
Changes in assumptions and other inputs 423,733 2,811,658
Benefit payments subsequent to measurement date 973,301 0
$ 1,387,034 % 4,451,273

Ceferred outflows of resources of $973,301 are reported by the County for employer benefit payments subsequent
tc the measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB liability in the year ended
September 30, 2022. Deferred inflows of rescurces shown above will be recognized in OPEB expense in the
following years:

Fiscal Year Ending Net Inflows

Sept 30, 2022 5 (493,155)

Sept 30, 2023 (493,155)

Sept 30, 2024 (493,155)

Sept 30, 2025 (493,155)

Sept 30, 2026 (493,155)
Thereafter (1,561,765)

$ (4,027,540

NOTE 9 - DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESQURCES ON REFUNDING

The balance of deferred outflows on refunding in the County Utility Fund at September 30, 2021 was $2,683,364.
In the current year, the balance was increased due to refunding of the 2012 Utility Bonds and $223,614 was
charged to interest expense. The balance of deferred outflows on refunding in governmental activities at
September 30, 2021 was $2,684,348. In the current year, $218,074 was charged to interest expense.
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NOTE 10 - RESTRICTED NET POSITION FOR OTHER PURPOSES

Restricted Net Position for Other Purposes of the County's governmental activities at September 30, 2021, are as
follows:

Community Redevelopment  § 208,552
Courts 327,123
Public Safety 14,543,894
Records Modernization 1,742,515
Social Services 2,788,175
Tourism 7,508,217

$ 27,114,478

NOTE 11 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
A. Litigation

The County is contingently liable with respect to lawsuits and other claims incidental to the ordinary course of its
operations. Claims covered by the risk management self insurance program are reviewed and losses are accrued
as required in the judgment of management. In the opinicn of management, based on the advice of legal counsel,
the ultimate disposition of the remaining lawsuits and claims will not have a material adverse effect on the financial
position of the County.

B. Grants

Amounts received or receivable from the grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies. If expenditures are disallowed as a result of these audits, the claims for reimbursement to the grantor
agency would become a liability of the County. In the opinion of management, any such adjustments would not be
significant.

€. Pollution Remediation Cbligation

The County has recorded in its financial statements a cost estimate for pollution remediation at the Martel, Davis
and Newton Landfill owned and/or operated by the County. These sites have been identified by environmental
regulators as locations where historic uses have contributed to varicus forms of environmental pollution to the
properties. The County has reported a cumulative liability of $2,815,080 at September 30, 2021, to address
required environmental cleanup costs associated with these sites. The estimate of costs used to establish the
liability was developed through extensive site analysis by independent engingers retained by the County. The
liability was measured by estimating a reascnable range of potential outlays and multiplying those outlays by their
probability of occurrence. The liability could change due to price increases or reductions, technology, or changes
in applicable laws or regulations. The County believes that its maximum exposure for the Newton cleanup is not
currently estimable. Costs of cleaning up the site and restoration of natural resources will be estimated upen
completion of the site assessment and investigation. The County does not expect to recover any amounts for
remediation cost from any other party.

D. Developer Agreements

The County has entered into several developer agreements which may result in future financial obligations. These
agreements with various developers are primarily for capital cost associated with road construction or
transportation projects, in which a future asset may be contributed to the County or will benefit the County. The
County has agreed to provide up {0 $6.6 million in credits, waivers, reductions and/or direct payments for future
building impact fees.
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E. Landfill Disposal Agreement

The County has entered into an agreement with A.CM.S. Inc. to secure long-term disposal rights for municipal
solid waste in a fully permitied, fully operational Class | landfill in Sumter County. The County will receive a
significantly reduced rate for dispesal rights in consideration for the prepayment of those rights. The County's
upfront payments, which will be disbursed as construction related payments, will enable A.C M.S. Inc to fund the
construction of the First cell of the Landfill. The upfront payment will secure for the County, a warranted and
unencumbered, limited property interest in the Landfill, a long-term service agreement in the nature of a prepaid
tipping fee, and certain performance securlty rights on behalf of the public interest in the event of a default. As of
September 30, 2021, the remaining portion of the prepaid landfill fee is $20,305,814. The initial $20,000,000
prepaid landfill fee represents the tipping fee for the right to dispose of 2.5 million tons of solid waste at the facility
for a pericd up to 30 years. The landfill construction was completed in 2013; shipping of solid waste from Marion
County to A.C.M.S, started in August 2018. In fiscal year 2021, the County secured an additional 143,000 tons of
disposal capacity for $3,300,000.

F. Contingencies

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a novel coronavirus (COVID-19)
pandemic. The outbreak of COVID-19 continues to affect some communities and business operations, as well as
the US economy and financial markets. [n March 2021, the American Rescue Plan Act {ARPA) was signed into
law. Section 9801 of ARPA created section 803 of the Social Security Act, which created the Coronavirus State
and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund {CSLFRF). The County's planned use of the ARPA Funds will include the
standard allowance for revenue replacement, water and sewer line extensions, affordable housing initiatives, and
assistance for non-profit entities. The full extent to which COVID-18 will impact the County is uncertain at this time
and will depend on new information that may emerge concemning COVID-19 and the actions to contain and treat
its impact; and the economic impact on local, regional, national and international markets.

NOTE 12 - RESTATEMENT CF FIDUCIARY NET PCSITION

In fiscal year 2021, the County implemented GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, which resulted in a
change in accounting principle for reporting certain fransactions and recognition of liabilities within the fiduciary
custodial funds. The effect of this change in accounting resulted in a restatement of the County's beginning
fiduciary net position as follows.

Fiduciary - Custodial Funds

Clerk of the
Sheriff Court Tax Collector Total
Net Position - Beginning, Original 5 -3 -5 - $ -
Restatement 1,690,394 6,136,597 9,033,646 16,860,637

Net Position - Beginning, Restated 3 1,690,394 % 6,136,597 § 8,033,646 % 16,860,637
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Other Post Employment Benefits:
- Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related
Ratios

Retirement Benefits:
- Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability
- Schedule of Contributions
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SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2021 2020 2019 2018

Total OPEB Liability

Service cost $ 1227365 % 1091879 & 1125399 & 1179727

Interest 505615 631,020 851,547 7685798

Difference between expected and actual experience - {1,999,971) - -

Change of assumptions and other inputs 459,849 {1,793,872) (200,8684) (1,106,172)

Benefit payments {955 827) {1,073,042) {1,054,468) {1,262,080)
Net change in total QPER liability $ 1327102 $ (2843986) % 21513 & (422707)
Total OPEB liability - beginning 20,909,282 23,753,268 23,731,755 24154 462
Total OPER liability - ending $ 22236384 § 20909282 § 23,753268 § 23731755
Covered-employee payroll 135,116,212 114,609 233 116,623,357 89,281 518

Total OPEE liability as a percentage of
of covered-employee payroll 16.46% 18.23% 20.37% 26.58%

Fiseal year 20118 presents information on the Pian's measurement year ended September 30, 2017,

Notes to the Schedule;

Note 1: GASE 75 requires information for 10 years, However, until a full 10-year trend is
compiled, the County is presenting information only for those years for which information
is available,

Note 2: No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB
75,

Note 3. Significant assumplions changes 2021 - discount rate decreased 10 2.41% from
2.75%.
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF PROPCRTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSICN LIABILITY

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS

Florida Retirement System (FRS):

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2018 2015 2014
County's proportion of the nal pension  0.58130689%  06185238% 0.5805394% 0.5598007%  0.5863504% 0.5513325%  05223217% 0.5280476%
liability (asset)
County's propostionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) S 43911130 5 268077323 S 190020674 S 168614872 5 167522637 5 139211853 S 67464856 S 32218666
County's covered payroll 5 122159645 ¢ 118552227 S MO0 § 103346886 3 101410129 5 85274707 & 94971512 S 94316 446
County's proportionale share of the net
pension liability (asset) as a percentage
of its covered payroll 35.85% 226.13% 181.46% 163.15% 165.19% 145.12% 71.04% 34.16%
Plan fiduciary nel posttion as a
percentage of 1he iolal pension liabilily
{MNole 2) 96.40% 78.85% B2.81% 84.26% 83.89% 84.88% 92.00% 98.09%
Healih Insurance Subsidy
(HIS):

2021 2020 20g 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

County's propostion of the net 04128517% 04010172% 0.2832168% 0.3657523% 0.2810185% 0.3518884%  0.3561509% 0.3581788%
pension liability {asset)
County's proportionale share of the
net pension liability {asset) 5 S0B4ZAT0 3 48953541 & 4230038 5 MTNMEN 3 3BE0IFERT S5 41011130 5 MBI Fe3 5 33400589
County's covered payroll 5 146,191,179 S 130305377 § 128420647 S5 110652380 5 115235470 S 108782713 S 108185867 5 105524385
County's propostionate share of the
net pension liability {asset} as a
perceniage of its covered payroll 34.64% 35.15% 33.40% 32.35% 33.50% IP0% 3357% 3.44%
Pian fiduciary nef position as a
percentage of the tolal pension
hability (Mote 2) 3.56% 3.00% 263% 2.15% 1.64% 0.97% 0.50% 0.99%

* The amounts presented for each measurement year were determined as of 6/30.

Note 1: GASB 68 requires information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the County is presenting

information for only those years for which information is available.

Note 2: The Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability is published in Note 4 of the Plan's

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.
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MARICN COUNTY, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTICNS

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS

Florida Retirement Systern (FRS):

2021 2020 2019 2018 207 2016 2015 2014
Contraclually required conlnbulion 5 ZOEEITZ % 21000536 & 18713661 5 16265875 & 143357383 & 13857372 5 12985262 $ 13011575
Contribulions in relation 10 the
contractually required contribution S (23066172} 5 (21,000536) 5§ (18712661) 5 (162658750 § (14,335.785) § (13857.372) 5 (12,985.262) S (12.011,575)
Contribution deficiency (excess) 5 - % - & -5 - & - % - 5 &
Counly's coveraed payroll 5 125452046 5 119362384 5 113076597 5 103902811 & S92633530 ¢ 95731450 5 95230168 S 93725442
Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll 18.39% 17.59% 16.55% 15.66% 14.44% 14.48% 13.63% 13.88%
Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS):

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Contraciually required contribution 3 2477966 S 2,340,650 S5 2186699 5 1998541 S 1875044 5 1809176 5 1489024 5 1,206.113

Contributions in relation fo the

contractually required contnbulion S (2477058 3 (2.340850) 5 (2186659 3 (1985541 & (1875044) 5 (1.509.176) § (1,489.024)

§ (1.285213)

Contribution deficiency (excess) 3 -5 .5 - 5 -5 - 5 - 5 5

Counly's covered payroll 5 150026553 5 140968850 5 132039207 5 120571326 S 113079396 5 109.095,028 S 108853417 S 105214747
Contribulions as a percentage of

covered payroll 1.65% 1.66% 1.66% 1.66% 1.66% 1.66% 1.37% 1.22%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of 9/30.

Note 1: GASB 88 requires information for 10 years. However, until a full 10.year trend is compiled, the County is presenting

information for only those years for which information is availabile.

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

The following change in an actuarial assumption occurred in 2021:

= HIS: The municipal rate used to determine total pension liability was decreased from 2.21% to 2.16%.

The following changes in actuarial assumptions occurred in 2020:
= FRS: The long-term expected rate of return decreased from 6.90% to 6.80%.

+ HIS: The municipal rate used to determine fotal pension liability was decreased from 3.50% to 2.21%.

The following changes in actuarial assumptions occurred in 201 9:
+  FRS: The long-term expected rate of return decreased from 7.00% to 6.90%.

= HIS: The municipal rate used to determine total pension liability was decreased from 3.87% to 3.50%.

The following changes in actuarial assumptions occurred in 201 8:
= FRS: The long-term expected rate of return decreased from 7.10% to 7.00%.

= HIS: The municipal rate used to determine total pension liability was increased from 3.58% to 3.87%.

The following changes in actuarial assumptions occurred in 2017:
+ FRS: The long-term expected rate of return decreased from 7.60% to 7.10%.

+  HIS: The municipal rate used to determine total pension liability was increased from 2.85% to 3.58%.

The following changes in actuarial assumptions occurred in 201 6:



¢ FRS: There were no significant changes in actuarial assumptions, The inflation rate assumption remained at 2.60%, the real
payroll growth assumption remained at 0.85%, and the overall payroll growth rate assumption remained at 3.25%. The
long-term expected rate of return decreased from 7.65% to 7.60%.

+  HIS: The municipal rate used to determine total pension liability was decreased from 3.80% to 2.85%.

The following changes in actuarial assumptions occurred in 2015:
. HIS: The municipal rate used to determine total pension liability was decreased from 4.29% to 3.80%.
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Budgetary Comparison Schedule:

e Infrastructure Surtax Capital Projects Fund
General Fund:

e Combining Balance Sheet and Combining
Schedules for General Fund

Non- Major Governmental Funds:
¢ Combining Financial Statements for All
Nonmajor Governmental Funds and Individual

Budgetary Comparison Schedules for all
Budgeted Nonmajor Governmental Funds
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REVENUES
Taxes
Investment Income
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital Quilay
Total Expenditures
Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA

EUDGETARY COMPARISCN SCHEDULE

INFRASTRUCTURE SURTAX CAPITAL PRGJECTS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Final Budget Amounts {(Negative)

$ 37,654,060 52,561,047 % 14,906,887
437,000 116,054 (320,946)
38,091,060 52,677,101 14,586,041
96,708,065 18,387,316 78,318,748
96,708,065 18,387,316 78,318,748
(58,615,008) 34,288,785 92,904,730
58,615,005 58,463,835 (151170)

$ - 92,753,620 $ 82,753,620
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It is used to account for and report all

financial resources not accounted for and reported in ancther fund. The General Fund includes the Board of
County Commissioners, Clerk of the Circuit Court and Comptroller, Property Appraiser, Sheriff, Supervisor of
Elections, and Tax Collector:

Board of County Commissioners
This fund is the primary operating fund of Marion County. It is used to account for all financial resources
of the general government except those required to be accounted for in other funds.

Clerk of the Circuit Court and Comptroller

This fund reflects the activities of the Office of the Clerk of Circuit Court and Comptroller. Services
provided are in accordance with provisions of the Florida Statutes related primarily to the county and
circuit court systems, recording operations, and various other services.

Property Appraiser
This fund reflects the operations of the Office of the Property Appraiser who provides independent
appraisals of tangible and perscnal property for all taxing authorities within the County.

Sherift
This fund reflects the operations of the Office of the Sheriff. Services provided are for all the law
enforcement activities within the County.

Supervisor of Elections
This fund reflects the operations of the Office of the Supervisor of Elections in the performance of its
duties in accordance with Florida Statutes.,

Tax Collector

This fund reflects the operations of the Office of the Tax Collector who collects and remits ad valorem
taxes, licenses, and other revenues, to the related taxing autherities.
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

GENERAL FUND BY CATEGORY

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Accounts Receivable
Accrued Interest Receivable
Due from Cther Funds
Due from Cther Governments
Inventories
Prepaid ltems

Total Assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Contracts Payable

Accrued Liabilities

Due to Other Funds

Due to Other Governments

Due to Individuals

Deposits

Unearned Revenues

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable Revenues
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:
Inventories
Prepaid ltems
Assigned to:
Subsequent Year's Budget
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balances

September 30, 2021

Board of

County Clerk of the Property

Commissioners Cireuit Court Appraiser
$ 48550581 % 4542144 §$ 208,783
24 557,866 - -
6,387 824 7,282 -
42650 - -
3,020,404 3,565 -
5,805,882 105,557 -
1,633,921 - -
147,049 41,319 46,716
$ 91,256,177 $ 4698867 % 253,499
$ 2816135 $ 11917 $ -
126,267 - -
2,071,508 458,120 108,023
8,389 1,487 315 143187
634,819 2,636,590 2,289
- 88,379 -
111,312 6,546 -
5,825,426 - -
11,584 856 4 688 867 253,499
3,470,969 - -
3,470,969 - -
1,633,921 - -
147,049 41,319 46,716
38,831,200 - -
35,478,182 (41,319) (46,716)
76,180,352 - -
$ 91256177 $ 4,688 867 $ 253,499
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Sheriff

Supervisor of
Elections

Tax Collector

Eliminations

Total

General

Funds

4,925,109
661,600
25,243

272,814

73,000

643,583

448,791

- %

(3,492,556)

59,141,024
24,557,866
7,066,706
42,650
5447
7,086,439
1,633,821
235,084

5,611,852

347,814

1,092,384

(3,492,556) §

899,769,137

2 A687.067

2,187,807

957,078

8,603

19,880
319,231

42,828

216,078
833,380

- %

(3,492,556)

$,346,647

126,267
2,874,710
1,487,753
3,273,688
1,055,457

117,858
5,825,426

$611,852

347,814

1,092,384

(3,492 556)

20,107,816

3,470,968

3,470,868

1,633,821
235,084

38,931,200
35,380,147

76,180,352

$

$611,852

347,814

1,092,384

(3.492,556) §

89,769,137
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - GENERAL FUND BY CATEGORY

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

REVENUES

Taxes

Permits and Fees

Intergovernmental Revenues

Charges for Services

Judgments and Fines

Court-Related Revenues

Investment Income

Miscellanecus Revenues
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Physical Environment
Transportation
Ecenomic Envirenment
Human Services
Culture/Recreation
Court-Related

Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over {Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SCURCES (USES}
Transfers In
Transfers (Cut)
Total Other Financing
Sources and {Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending

Board of
County Clerk of the Property
Commissioners Circuit Court Appraiser
$ 69,611,014 - 8 -
1,200 - -
115,416,241 473,739 -
36,068,730 2,887,508 1,128,421
467,998 1,865,512 -
655,533 4,838,838 -
342 462 24,432 -
15,316,375 86,880 -
237,778,553 10,288,909 1,128,421
67,801,585 6,298,266 46358678
35,442,759 - -
806,976 - -
394,439 - -
1,463,462 - -
24,877,492 - -
10,468,567 - -
4,332,665 6,807,810 -
228,823 - -
27,143 - -
145,844,911 13,106,878 46358678
91,834,642 {2,806,967) {3,507,257)
4,657,781 2,806,967 3,507,257
{60,778,613) - -
{56,121,832) 2,806,967 3,507,257
35,712,810 - -
40,477 542 - -
$ 76,180,352 % - 8 -
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Sheriff

Supervisor of

Elections

Tax Collector

Eliminations

Total
General
Funds

455,853

$

211,481
57,9568

$

(522,556)

(8,947 404)

$

69,611,014
1,200
116,068,746
40,152,617
2,333,510
5,494,371
366,884

$ 468,851

455,853

269,448

(10,468,860)

238,497 203

105,583,130

3,036,443

(10,469,960)

79,935,810
141,025,889
906,976

364 438
1,463,462
24,877 492
10,469,567
11,140,275

228,823
27,143

106,583,130

3,036,443

8,632,788

(10,460,660)

270,469,876

(105,127,277)

(2,766,994)

(8,598,820)

(30,872,673)

106,127 277

2,766,894

8,598,820

(57,633,787)
§7 633,787

69,831,309
(3,145 826)

106127277

2,766,864

8,598,820

66,685,483

35,712,810
40,477 542

76,180,352
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Board of County Commissioners

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Actual Positive
Budget Final Budget Amounts {(Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes 68,792250 § 68782250 § 68611014 $ 818,764
Special Assessments 21,850 21,830 - {21,850)
Permits and Fees 2422 2422 1,200 {1,222)
Intergovernmental Revenues 89,320,708 104,240,004 115,416,241 11,176,237
Charges for Services 29,092,775 29,252,990 36,068,730 6,815,740
Judgments and Fines 335,350 335,350 467,898 132,648
Court-Related Revenues 580,482 580,679 555,533 {25,146)
Investment Income 1,114,650 1,114,255 342 462 {(771,783)
Miscellanecus Revenues 17,508,620 17,603,702 15,316,375 (2,287,327)
Total Revenues 206,769,107 221,843,502 237,778,553 16,836,051
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 85,017,520 93,463 869 67,801,585 25662284
Public Safety 37,079,774 39,816,455 35,442,759 4,373,686
Physical Environment 1,451,112 1,481,308 806,876 574,332
Transpertation 879121 878,121 394 439 484 682
Economic Envirocnment 2,368,648 2,372 839 1,463 462 909,177
Human Services 23,718,212 37,541,595 24 877492 12,664,103
Culture/Recreation 13,820,456 15,412,818 10,469,587 4,943 251
Court-Related 6,802,218 10,177,205 4,332 865 5,844 540
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 352,308 362,306 228,823 123,483
Interest and Fiscal Charges 41627 41 627 27,143 14,484
Total Expenditures 181,588,894 201,538,943 145 844 911 55,594 032
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over {Under) Expenditures 25,180,113 20,404,559 91,834,642 71,430,083
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 2,880,868 4 657,781 4 657,781 -
Transfers (Cut) {59,168,957) {59,691,362) (60,779,613) (1,088,251
Total Other Financing
Sources and (Uses) {66,287,988) {65,033,581) (56,121,832) (1,088,251)
Net Change in Fund Balances {31,107,875) (34,629,022} 35,712,810 70,341,832
Fund Balance - Beginning 31,107 875 34,629,022 40,477,542 5,848,520

Fund Balance - Ending

$ 76190382 § 76,190,352
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

REVENUES
Intergovernmental Revenues
Charges for Services
Judgments and Fines
Court-Related Revenues
Investment Income
Miscellanecus Revenues
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
Court-Related
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues

Over {Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers In
Total Other Financing
Sources and {Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Clerk of the Circuit Court

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Actual Positive
Budget Final Budget Amounts {(Negative)
284,728 § 418,729 473739 § 54,010
2,019,500 2,018,500 2,887,508 878,008
1,632,225 1,781,649 1,865,512 73,863
4,630,881 5,001,881 4,838,838 {63,043)
75,000 75,000 24,432 {50,568)
84,400 84,400 86,880 15,480
8,736,735 9,382,159 10,298,909 907,750
6,532,881 6,883,837 6,298,266 584,571
6,139,503 5,784,927 5,807,610 {12,683)
12,672,384 13,678,764 13,106,876 571,888
(3,935,649) {4,286 ,605) {2,806,967) 1,479,638
3,935,648 4,286,805 2,806,967 (1,479,638)
3,035,648 4,286,605 2,806,967 (1,479,638)
- % - -3 .




MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

REVENUES
Charges for Services

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over {Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SCURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Total Other Financing
Sources and {Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

Property Appraiser
Variance with
Final Budget
Original Actual Positive

Budget Final Budget Amounts {(Negative)
$ 1,106,048 § 1,106,048 § 1,128,421 22,373
1,106,048 1,106,048 1,128,421 22,373
4.686,832 4,758,780 46358678 123,102
4,686,832 4,758,780 4,635,678 123,102
(3,580,884) {3,662,732) {3,607,257} 145,475
3,580,884 3,652,732 3,507,257 {145 ,475)
3,580,884 3,662,732 3,507,257 {145 ,475)
$ - % - % - -
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Sheriff
Variance with
Final Budget
Original Actual Positive
Budget Final Budget Amounts {(Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental Revenues $ - % 455853 % 455853 §% -
Total Revenues - 455,853 455,853 -
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public Safety 108,792,600 107,067,806 105,583,130 1,484,676
Total Expenditures 108,792,600 107,067,806 105,583,130 1,484 676
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over {Under) Expenditures (109,782,600) (108,611,953 {105127,277) 1,484 676
OTHER FINANCING SCURCES (USES)
Transfers In 108,792,600 106,611,953 105,127,277 (1,484 ,676)
Total Other Financing
Sources and {Uses) 108,792,600 106,611,953 105,127,277 (1,484 676)

Net Change in Fund Balances - - - .
Fund Balance - Beginning - - - -

Fund Balance - Ending $ - 3 - 3 - % -




MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

REVENUES
Intergovernmental Revenues
Charges for Services

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over {Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Total Other Financing
Sources and (Uses}

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

Supervisor of Elections

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Actual Positive
Budget Final Budget Amounts {(Negative)
$ - - 211,491 211,481
- 57,958 57,958 -
- 57,958 269,449 211,481
3,093,765 3,151,723 3,036,443 115,280
3,093,765 3,151,723 3,036,443 115,280
(3,093,765) {3,083,765) {2,766,994) 326,771
3,093,765 3,083,765 2,766,994 {326,771)
3,093,765 3,083,765 2,766,994 {326,771)
$ . - - .
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Tax Collector

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Actual Positive
Budget Final Budget Amounts {(Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental Revenues $ - % 33978 % 33,978 -
Total Revenues - 33,978 33,978 -
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 8 600,022 8,686 481 8,632,798 53,683
Total Expenditures 8,600,022 8,686,481 8,632,798 53,683
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over {Under) Expenditures (8,600,022) {8,652,503) {8,588,820) 53,682
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers [n 8,600,022 8,652,503 8,588,820 {53,683)
Total Other Financing
Sources and {Uses) 8,600,022 8,652,503 8,688,820 {53,683)
Net Change in Fund Balances - - - -
Fund Balance - Beginning - - - -
Fund Balance - Ending $ - 3 - 3 - -
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Eliminations

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Actual Positive
Budget Final Budget Amounts {(Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental Revenues - % (522,556} $ {622,556) $ -
Miscellanecus Revenues (8,947 404) {9,847 404} {9,847 404} -
Total Revenues (3,947 404) {10,468,980} {10,469,960) -
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government (8,947 404) {10,468,960) (10,469,860) -
Total Expenditures (8,947 404) {10,468 ,960) (10,469 ,860) -
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over {Under) Expenditures - - - -
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers [n {87 8633,787) {57 ,633,787) (57,633,787 -
Transfers (Cut) 57833,787 27,633,787 57,633,787 -
Total Other Financing
Sources and (Uses} - - - -
Net Change in Fund Balances - - - -
Fund Balance - Beginning - - - -
Fund Balance - Ending - % - - -
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Total
Variance with
Final Budget
Original Actual Positive
Budget Final Budget Amounts {(Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 68792250 § 68782250 § 68611014 § 818,764
Special Assessments 21,850 21,830 - {21,850)
Permits and Fees 2422 2422 1,200 {1,222)
Intergovernmental Revenues 89615437 104,627,008 116,068,746 11,441,738
Charges for Services 32,218,323 32,436,496 40,152,617 7,716,121
Judgments and Fines 1,967 575 2,126,999 2,333,510 208,511
Court-Related Revenues 5,211,363 5,582 560 5,484 371 {88,189)
Investment Income 1,189,650 1,188,255 366,894 {822,361)
Miscellanecus Revenues 7645 616 7,740 698 5,468,851 (2,271,847)
Total Revenues 206,664 486 222,518,538 239,487,203 16,977 665
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 107,983,716 106,474,730 78,835,810 26,538,820
Public Safety 146,872,374 146,884,261 141,025,889 5,858,372
Physical Environment 1,451,112 1,481,308 806,876 574,332
Transpertation 879121 878,121 394 439 484 682
Economic Envirocnment 2,368,648 2,372 839 1,463 462 909,177
Human Services 23,718,212 37,541,595 24 877492 12,664,103
Culture/Recreation 13,820,456 15,412,818 10,469,587 4,943 251
Court-Related 12,941,721 16,872,132 11,140,275 5,831,857
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 352,308 362,306 228,823 123,483
Interest and Fiscal Charges 41627 41 627 27,143 14,484
Total Expenditures 310,487 283 328,412,537 270,468,876 57,942 661
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over {Under) Expenditures (103,822,807)  {105,882,999) (30,872,673) 74,920,326
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers [n 74,250,102 73,321,552 68,831,309 (3,490,243)
Transfers (Cut) {1,535170) {2,057,575) {3,145,826) (1,088,251
Total Other Financing
Sources and (Uses) 72,714 832 71,263,977 66,685,483 (4,578,484)
Net Change in Fund Balances {31,107,875) (34,629,022} 35,712,810 70,341,832
Fund Balance - Beginning 31,107 875 34,629,022 40,477,542 5,848,520
Fund Balance - Ending - % - $ 76190352 $ 76,190,352
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for and repoert the proceeds of specific revenue sources that
are restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes other than debt service or capital
projects. The County has the following Special Revenue Funds:

Fine and Forfeiture Funds

Fines and Forfeiture Fund

Established pursuant to the provisions of Section 14201, Florida Statules, to account for
expenditures related to the costs of criminal prosecutions and for the proceeds of certain court fines
and costs.

Fines and Forfeiture Crime Prevention Fund
Established pursuant to the provisions of Section 775.083, to account for funds related to the costs
of crime prevention and for the proceeds of certain coun fines and costs.

80% Gas Tax Construction Fund

Used to account for the County proceeds of the 80% portion of the Constitutional Gas Tax (2 cenis per
gallon), which is collected and distributed by the State of Florida. Expenditures from this fund may be
used for the acquisition, construction and maintenance of roads as authorized by Section 334.03,
Florida Statutes.

20% Gas Tax Construction Fund

Used to account for the County’s proceeds of the 20% portion of the Constitutional Gas Tax (2 cents per
gallon), which is collected and distributed by the State of Florida. Purposes for which these funds may
be expended have been restricted pursuant to an opinion of the Florida Attorney General and, therefore,
are limited to the purchase of materials used in the construction and maintenance of reads and bridges.

Sidewalk Construction Fund

Created pursuant to the provisions of Section 6.12.12 of the Land Development Code adopted by
Ordinance 13-20, to account for sidewalk fees paid by developers to the County in lieu of construction
along external streets. The County may use these funds toward construction of sidewalks throughout the
County based on priorities established by the Board.

Marion County Airport Fund

Used to account for the revenues and expenditures related to the operation of this Southwest Marion
County facility. Revenues are generated primarily through fuel sales and the rental of County-owned
real property in addition tc grants received from the State of Florida Department of Transporiation.
Expenditures predominantly result from the maintenance and or improvement to the airport runways and
related improvements,

Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse Trust Fund

Created pursuant to the provisions of Section 883 165, Florida Statutes, and Ordinance 13-12 to
account for the mandatory costs, discretionary costs, and assessments remitted to Marion County
pursuant to Sections 938.13, 838.21 and 838.23, Florida Statutes. These monies shall be used only
for the suppont of alcohol and other drug abuse treatment and educational pregrams based in Marion
County, Florida, which meet the standards of qualifications for such programs of the Florida
Cepartment of Children and Family Services.

2" Local Option Fuel Tax Fund

Established pursuant to the provisions of Section 336.025, Florida Statutes, to account for the proceeds
from the 2nd Local Option Fuel Tax {5 cents per gallor}. The use of proceeds provides for distribution
between Marion County and municipalities located within Marion County, to fund necessary
transportation improvements in Marion County in accordance with the adopted local government
comprehensive plan.
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - Continued

Local Provider Participation Fund

Established pursuant to Marion County Ordinance Number 21-18 to account for the non-ad valorem
assessment imposed against for-profit and not-for-profit hospitals to fund the non-federal share of
Medicaid payments associated with local services.

Marion County Health Department Fund

Established pursuant to the provisions of Sections 154.02 and 154.06, Florida Statutes, to account for
the proceeds of a special ad valorem tax levy established by the Beard and transmitted in equal monthly
installments to the Marion County Health Unit, where they are used to subsidize operations.

Criminal Justice Court Costs Fund

Created pursuant t{c the provisions of Section 939.185, Florida Statutes, to account for the Revenue of
additional court costs and surcharges. The Beard of County Commissioners may adopt by Ordinance an
additional court cost, not to exceed $85. Authorized uses of the amount collected include payments to
be allocated to fund court innovations, legal aid, law library and juvenile programs.

Law Enforcement Trust Fund

Created pursuant o the provisions of Section 832,704, Florida Statutes, to account for the net proceeds
from the sale or conversion of forfeited properties. Expenditures payable from this fund are legally
restricted to nonrecurring obligations of the Sheriff's office, including equipment purchases. Although
legally entitled as a trust fund, this fund is more properly accounted for as a special revenue fund due to
the nature of the transactions recerded therein.

Sheriff Educational Fund

Created to account for the revenues generated by the imposition by the Board of an additional $2 per
case for court cost, assessed against every person convicted for violation of a state penal or criminal
statute, municipal or county ordinance. Pursuant to Section 838.15, Florida Statues, monies received
are required tc be expended for criminal justice education and training of law enforcement officers,
corrections officers and support personnel.

Federal Equitable $Sharing Fund

Created pursuant to requirements of the Equitable Sharing Program and the restrictions upon the use of
federally forfeited funds, property, and any interest eamed therecn. An equitable portion, or share, of
proceeds awarded is based on a law enforcement agency's direct participation in an investigation that
results in the forfeiture of a federally seized asset. Per program requirements, these revenues and
qualifying expenditures must be tracked separately from all other funds.

911 Management Fund

Created in accordance with the provisions of the Florida Emergency Telephone Act (Sections 365.171
and 365.172, Florida Statutes} to account for the Enhanced 811 (E911) fees imposed and collected
from local telephone exchange customers and subscribers of wireless telephone services. 811 service
directs 911 calls to the appropriate public safety answering point and provides for automatic number and
location identification. The E911 Board may adjust the allocation percentages or adjust the amount of
the fee, or both, if necessary, to ensure full cost recovery or prevent over recovery of €osts incurred in
the provision of E911. Expenditures are restricted to the establishment and maintenance of an
enhanced emergency telephone number 911 system or enhanced $11 service,

Building Department Fund

Created pursuant to the provisions of Section 533.79, Florida Statutes, and Ordinance 01-34 to account
for revenues generated by huilding permit fees levied by the Board by resoluticn. Fees generated are
used to fund costs of the building permitting activities and inspections.
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - Continued

Tourist Development Tax

Created pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 125.0104, Florida Statutes, and Ordinance 78-13 1o
account for the two percent Tourist Development Tax. The tax is collected by the Marion County Tax
Collector and transmitted monthly to Marion County. The tax is used to fund the Maricrt County Tourist
Cevelopment Plan.

Parks and Recreation Fees Fund

Created in accordance with the provisions of the Marion County Code of Ordinances {Chapter 14} and
Qrdinance 94-20, to account for user fees generated by the parks and recreation depariment. The
Board shall by resolution, adopt fees for use of any or all parks and any improvements or facilities
therein. These funds are used for parks and recreation capital,

Local Housing Assistance Trust Fund

The Local Housing Assistance Trust Fund was created pursuant to the provisions of Section 420.9075,
Florida Statutes, and Ordinance 93-13 o account for the local housing distribution monies received
from the State of Florida in connection with the State Housing Initiative Partnership (SHIP} program.
Authorized expenditures from the Local Housing Assistance Trust Fund are limited to the administration
and implementation of the local housing assistance program.

Local Housing CRF Trust Fund

The Local Housing CRF Trust Fund was created pursuant to requirements of the Coronavirus Relief
Fund (CRF) Subrecipient Agreement, wherein a portion of the CARES Act Funds {designated the
"Coronavirus Relief Funds or CRF funds") is to be distributed by the Florida Housing Finance
Corporation to eligible local governments and may be used for rental assistance payments, morgage
payments, emergency repair of housing, housing re-entry assistance, foreclosure or eviction prevention,
and homeownership counseling.

Medical Examiner

Established by an interlocal agreement between Marion, Citrus, Hernande, Sumter and Lake Counties
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 408, Florida Statutes, for the joint operation of the District Medical
Examiner's Office. In accordance with the agreement, Marion County serves as the Administrative
Coordinator and is responsible for managing all funds associated with this agreement.

Impact Fee Qrdinance Trust Fund — District 1

Established to account for the amount of transportation impact fees levied by the Board and collected
pursuant to Marion County Ordinance Number 89-27. Amounts are collected for four separate districts
and are deposited and accounted for separately by District. The revenues generated are to be used for
capital improvements of roads con the County's major road network system, not for maintenance or
operations, within the district,

Impact Fee Qrdinance Trust Fund — District 3

Established to account for the amount of transportation impact fees levied by the Board and collected
pursuant to Marion County Ordinance Number 89-27. Amounts are collected for four separate districts
and are deposited and accounted for separately by District. The revenues generated are to be used for
capital improvements of roads con the County's major road network system, not for maintenance or
operations, within the district,

Impact Fee Ordinance Trust Fund - District 4

Established tc account for the amount of transpertation impact fees levied by the Board and collecied
pursuant to Marion County Ordinance Number 88-27. Amounts are collected for four separate districts
and are deposited and accounted for separately by District. The revenues generated are to be used for
capital improvements of roads on the County's major road network system, not for maintenance or
operations, within the district.
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - Continued

Impact Fee Trust Fund - East District

Established to account for the amount of transportation impact fees levied by the Board and collected
pursuant to Maricn County Ordinance Number 15-14. Amounts are collected for two separate districts
and are deposited and accounted for separately by District. The revenues generated are to be used for
capital improvements of roads on the County's major road network system, not for maintenance or
operations, within the district,

Impact Fee Trust Fund - West District

Established tc account for the amount of transpertation impact fees levied by the Board and collecied
pursuant to Marion County Ordinance Number 15-14. Amounts are collected for two separate districts
and are deposited and accounted for separately by District. The revenues generated are to be used for
capital improvements of roads con the County's major road network system, not for maintenance or
operations, within the district.

Rainbow Lakes Estates MSD Fund

Created pursuant to the provisions of Section 125.01, Florida Statutes, and the provisions of the Marion
County Code of Ordinances (Article XI, Chapter 12) to account for the MSTU for Road Improvements,
and to account for the provision of municipal type services to a limited gecgraphic area encompassing
porticns of both Marion and Levy Counties. Funding is provided primarily through the levy and collection
of ad valorem taxes by the Board as governing body of this multi-County taxing district.

Rainbow Lakes Estates Fire Protection MSBU

Created in accordance with the provisions of the Marion County Code of Ordinances {Article XII,
Chapter 12) to account for the proceeds of special assessments levied by the Board on property located
in the Rainbow Lakes Estates area and collected by the Tax Collector are accounted for in this fund.
The purpose is to provide fire protection within the Rainbow Lakes Estates area.

Marion Qaks MSTU Fund

The Marion Oaks MSTU fund was created pursuant to the provisions of Seclion 125.01, Florida
Statutes, to account for the costs of providing law enforcement as well as the construction,
maintenance, and operation of community resource facilities within the Marion OCaks development.
Revenues are generated through a levy by the Board of special assessments upon properties located
exclusively within the Marion Qaks area.

MSTU/MSBU for Read Improvements

Rainbow Lakes Estates MSTU for Road Improvements Fund

The proceeds of special assessments levied by the Board on property located in the Rainbow Lakes
Estates area and collected by the Tax Collector are accounted for in this fund. The purpose is to
provide road improvements within the Rainbow Lakes Estates area.

Silver Springs Shores MSTU for Road Improvements Fund
The costs of providing stabilization and maintenance of recads within this subdivision are accounted
for in this fund. The primary source of funding for these services is ad valorem iaxes.

Lake Tropicana MSTU for Road Improvements Fund
The costs of providing stabilization and maintenance of recads within this subdivision are accounted
for in this fund. The primary source of funding for these services is ad valorem iaxes.

Golden Hills MSTU for Road Improvements Fund

Costs of road improvements made within the Golden Hills subdivision, and funded by a special per-
parcel assessment levied by the Board and collected by the Tax Collector and accounted for in this
fund.
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - Continued

MSTU/MSBLU for Road Improvements - continued

Kingsland Estates/Ccala Waterway MSBU for Road Maintenance

Established to account for the special per-parcel assessment levied by the Board exclusively on the
properties within the boundaries established. Assessments are collected by the Tax Collecter and
will provide for rocad maintenance in the covered area.

Kingsland Whispering Pines/Forrest Glenn MSBU for Road Maintenance

Established tc account for the special per-parcel assessment levied by the Board exclusively on the
properties within the boundaries established. Assessments are collected by the Tax Collector and
will provide for road maintenance in the covered area.

Silver Spring Acres MSBU for Road Maintenance

Established tc account for the special per-parcel assessment levied by the Board exclusively on the
properties within the boundaries established. Assessments are collected by the Tax Collector and
will provide for road maintenance in the covered area.

Ccala Waterway Estates MSBLU for Road Maintenance

Established to account for the special per-parcel assessment levied by the Board exclusively on the
properties within the boundaries established. Assessments are collected by the Tax Collector and
will provide for road maintenance in the covered area.

NW 17" Avenue/Northwood MSBU for Road Maintenance

Established to account for the special per-parcel assessment levied by the Board exclusively on the
properties within the boundaries established. Assessments are collected by the Tax Collector and
will provide for road maintenance in the covered area.

Rainbow Park Units 1 & 2 MSBU for Road Maintenance

Established to account for the special per-parcel assessment levied by the Board exclusively on the
properties within the boundaries established. Assessments are collected by the Tax Collector and
will provide for road maintenance in the covered area.

Pine Run Estates MSTU for Road Improvements Fund

Established to account for the special per-parcel assessment levied by the Board exclusively on the
properties within the boundaries established. Assessments are collecied by the Tax Collector and
will provide for road improvements in the covered area.

Woods and Lakes Subdivision MSBU for Road Maintenance

The proceeds of special assessments levied by the Board exclusively upon properties located within
Woods and Lakes Subdivision and collected by the Tax Collector are accounted for in this fund.
The purpose for which the funds so derived may legally be expended is generally limited to the
provision of road improvements and maintenance.

Marion Qaks MSTU for Road Improvements Fund

Established to account for the special per-parcel assessment levied by the Boeard exclusively on the
properties within the boundaries established. Assessments are collecied by the Tax Collector and
will provide for road improvements in the covered area.

Paradise Farms MSBU for Roadside Mowing Fund

Established to account for the special per-parcel assessment levied by the Board exclusively on the
properties within the boundaries established. Assessments are collecied by the Tax Collector and
will provide for roadside mowing in the covered area.
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - Continued

MSTU/MSBU for Road Improvements - continued

Stonecrest Center MSBU for Road Maintenance

Established to account for the special per-parcel assessment levied by the Board exclusively on the
properties within the boundaries established. Assessments are collected by the Tax Collector and will
provide for rcad maintenance in the covered area.

Deer Path Estates Phase 1 & Phase 2 MSBU for Read Maintenance

Established to account for the special per-parcel assessment levied by the Board exclusively on the
properties within the boundaries established. Assessments are collected by the Tax Collector and will
provide for rcad maintenance in the covered area.

Silver Springs Shores MSTU Fund

Created by the Board pursuant to Section 125.01, Florida Statutes, and used to account for street
lighting, cultural and recreational services provided to this commercial and residential community. The
primary source of revenue for this municipal service taxing unit is ad valerem taxes levied solely within
the geographic boundaries of the taxing unit.

MSTU/MSBU for Recreation Fund

Rainbow Lakes Estates Community Recreational Facility MSBU

The proceeds of special assessments levied by the Board on property located in the Rainbow Lakes
Estates area and collected by the Tax Collector are accounted for in this fund. Per-parcel
assessments levied within the community are the primary source of funding for these services.

Hills of Gcala MSTU for Recreation Fund

Used to account for the costs of recreation and related services provided to this community located
in Southwest Marion County. Per-parcel assessments levied within the community are the primary
source of funding for these services.

MSBU for DRA Maintenance

Created by the Board pursuant to Section 125.01, Florida Statutes, and used to account for mowing,
pipe and structure maintenance, other routine drainage facility maintenance, and extra-crdinary
maintenance within the established boundaries of the NW 48th/35th Street DRA.  Per-parcel
assessments are collected by the Tax Collector and are the primary source of funding for these
services.

MSTU for Street Lighting

Indian Meadows MSTU for Street Lighting

Established to account for the special per-parcel assessment levied by the Board exclusively on the
properties within the boundaries established. Assessments are collected by the Tax Collector and
will provide for street lighting.

Ccala Heights MSTU for Street Lighting

Established to account for the special per-parcel assessment levied by the Board exclusively on the
properties within the boundaries established. Assessments are collected by the Tax Collector and
will provide for street lighting.

Bahia Oaks MSTU for Street Lighting

Established to account for the special per-parcel assessment levied by the Board exclusively on the
properties within the boundaries established. Assessments are collected by the Tax Collector and will
provide for street lighting.
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - Continued

MSTU for Street Lighting - continued

Boardman MSTU for Street Lighting

Established to account for the special per-parcel assessment levied by the Board exclusively on the
properties within the boundaries established. Assessments are collecied by the Tax Collector and
will provide for street lighting.

Doublegate MSTU for General Services

Established to account for the special per-parcel assessment levied by the Board exclusively on the
properties within the boundaries established. Assessments are collected by the Tax Collecter and
will provide for municipal services in the covered area.

Hickory Hills MSTU for Street Lighting Services

Established to account for the special per-parcel assessment levied by the Board exclusively
on the properties within the boundaries established. Assessmenis are collected by the Tax
Collector and will provide for street lighting.

Raven Hill MSTU for General Services

Established to account for the special per-parcel assessment levied by the Board exclusively on the
properties within the boundaries established. Assessments are collected by the Tax Cellecter and
will provide for municipal services in the covered area.

Churchill Subdivision MSTU for Street Lighting

Established to account for the special per-parcel assessment levied by the Board exclusively on the
properties within the boundaries established. Assessments are collected by the Tax Collecter and
will provide for street lighting in the covered area.

Little Lake Weir-Edgewater Estates for Street Lighting

Established to account for the special per-parcel assessment levied by the Board exclusively on
the properties within the boundaries established. Assessments are collected by the Tax Collector
and will provide for street lighting in the covered area.

Rainbow's End MSTU for General Municipal Services Fund

Created to account for a wide variety of authorized expenditures including, but not limited to, road
improvements and street lighting. Revenues to fund said expenditures are generated through the
levy of a special per-parcel assessment by the Board which is collected by the Tax Collector as a
part of the tax roll.

Marion Oaks MSTLU for General Services Fund

The proceeds of special assessments levied by the Board exclusively on the properties within the
houndaries established and collected by the Tax Collector are accounted for by this fund. The
assessments collected will provide for road repairs, mowing and strest lighting.

Citrus Park MSTU Fund

Created to account for the proceeds of a special per-parcel assessment levied by the Board on the
Citrus Park Subdivision. The assessment will be used o provide municipal services in the covered
area and will be collected by the Tax Collector via the tax roll.

Bolder Hill MSTU for Street Lighting

Established to account for the special per-parcel assessment levied by the Board exclusively on the
properties within the boundaries established. Assessments are collected by the Tax Collector and
will provide for street lighting in the covered area.
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - Continued

Fire Rescue Impact Fees Fund

Established to account for the impact fees levied by the Board and collected pursuant to Marion County
Ordinance Number 08-19, restricted for the costs required to finance fire rescue facility improvements
necessitated by new development in the County.

Stormwater Program

Established pursuant to Ordinance No. 02-13 to account for the special per-parcel assessment levied by
the Board within the designated service area. Assessments are collected by the Tax Collector, and will
provide for the establishment and operation of the Stormwater Program throughout the service area.

MSTU/MSBU for General Services

Tompkins and Georges Addition to Dunnellon MSTU Fund

Used to account for the special per-parcel assessment levied by the Board on property located in
the Tompkins and Georges addition to Dunnellon Subdivision and collected by the Tax Collector as
part of the tax roll. Funds derived are to be used for the provision of general municipal services.

Country Estates Buffington Addition MSTU Fund

The costs of general municipal services provided in the Country Estates Buffington Addition
Subdivision are funded by a special per-parcel assessment levied by the Board and collected by the
Tax Collector are accounted for in this fund.

Wineberry MSTU for General Services Fund

Established to account for the special per-parcel assessment levied by the Board exclusively on the
properties within the boundaries established. Assessments are collected by the Tax Collector and
will provide for municipal services in the covered area.

Golden Hills MSTU for General Services Fund

Established to account for the special per-parcel assessment levied by the Board exclusively on the
properties within the boundaries established. Assessments are collected by the Tax Collecter and
will provide for municipal services in the covered area.

Delcrest MSTU for General Services Fund

Established to account for the special per-parcel assessment levied by the Board exclusively on the
properties within the boundaries established. Assessments are collected by the Tax Collector and
will provide for municipal services in the covered area.

Bellaire MSTU for General Services Fund

Established tc account for the special per-parcel assessment levied by the Board exclusively on the
properties within the boundaries established. Assessments are collected by the Tax Collecter and
will provide for municipal services in the covered area.

The Hamlet at Sherman Caks MSBU for General Services Fund

Established tc account for the special per-parcel assessment levied by the Board exclusively on the
properties within the boundaries established. Assessments are collected by the Tax Collecter and
will provide for municipal services in the covered area.

Clerk of the Circuit Court Trust Fund

This fund reflects the activities of the Office of the Clerk of Circuit Court Trust Funds. Services provided
are in accordance with provisions of the Florida Statutes for Records Modernization.
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Cebt Service Funds are used to account for and report financial rescurces that are restricted,
committed, or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest. Debt Service funds are alsoc used to
report rescurces if legally mandated and financial resources that are being accumulated for principal
and interest maturing in the future. The County has the following Debt Service Funds:

Public Improvement Transportation Debt Service Fund
Created to account for payment of the periodic principal and interest payments due on the Public
Improvement Revenue Bonds. Revenue used to fund the debt service payments is generated
through the Second local option fuel tax and secured by Sales Tax.

Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2012A Debt Service Fund
Created to account for payment of the periodic principal and interest payments due on the Special
Assessment Bonds, Series 2012A. Revenue used to fund the debt service payments is generated
through the levy of special assessments against the benefited properies.

Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2013A Debt Service Fund
Created to account for payment of the periodic principal and interest payments due on the Special
Assessment Bonds, Series 2013A. Revenue used to fund the debt service payments is generated
through the levy of special assessments against the benefited properties.

Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2014A Debt Service Fund
Created to account for payment of the periodic principal and interest payments due on the Special
Assessment Bonds, Series 2014A. Revenue used to fund the debt service payments is generated
through the levy of special assessments against the benefited properties.

Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2015A Debt Service Fund
Created to account for payment of the periodic principal and interest payments due on the Special
Assessment Bonds, Series 2015A. Revenue used to fund the debt service payments is generated
through the levy of special assessments against the benefited properies.

Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2016A Debt Service Fund
Created to account for payment of the periodic principal and interest payments due on the Special
Assessment Bonds, Series 2016A. Revenue used to fund the debt service payments is generated
through the levy of special assessments against the benefited properties.

Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2017A Debt Service Fund

Created to account for payment of the periodic principal and interest payments due on the Special
Assessment Bonds, Series 2017A. Revenue used to fund the debt service payments is generated

through the levy of special assessments against the benefited properties.

Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2019A Debt Service Fund
Created to account for payment of the periodic principal and interest payments due cn the Special

Assessment Bonds, Series 2019A. Revenue used to fund the debt service payments is generated

through the levy of special assessments against the benefited properties.

Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2021A Debt Service Fund

Created to account for payment of the periodic principal and interest payments due on the Special
Assessment Bonds, Series 2021A. Revenue used to fund the debt service payments is generated

through the levy of special assessments against the benefited properties.
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of
capital facilities and other capital outlay. Capital Project funds exclude capital-related outflows
financed by proprietary fund or for assets held in trust for individuals, private organizations, or other
governments. The County has the following Capital Projects Funds:

Parks Capital Projects Fund
This fund acceounts for bond proceeds and grant revenues to be used for future acquisitions of parks
and envirenmentally sensitive lands.

Surtax Capital Projects Fund
This fund is used to account for proceeds from the one percent infrastructure surtax and related
expenditures.

Public Improvement Transportation Capital Projects Fund

This fund is used to account for payment of the Public Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2008A
and Series 2010, issued to provide funds for the construction of road improvements within the
County.

Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2019A Capital Projects Fund
Created to account for payment of the Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2018A issued to provide
funds for the construction of road improvements within the benefited boundaries.

Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2021A Capital Projects Fund

Created to account for payment of the Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2021A issued to provide
funds for the construction of road improvements within the benefited boundaries.
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ALL NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investrments
Accounts Receivable
Accrued Interest Receivable
Special Assessments Receivable
Due from Other Funds
Due from Other Governmenis
Inveniories
Prepaid ltems

Total Assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Contracts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Due to Other Funds
Due to Other Governments
Deposits
Unearned Revenues
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred Assessments
Unavailable Grant Revenues
Total Deferred Inflows
of Resources

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:
Inventories
Prepaids
Restricted for;
Court Innovations
Records Modernization Tech
Debt Service Reserve
Fire and Rescue
Infrastructure
Law Enforcement
Parks and Recreation
Public Safety
Resource Conservation
Road Construction
Social Services
Tourism
Transportation Maintenance
Committed to;
Airport
Parks and Recreation
Assigned fo:
Infrastructure
Parks and Recreation
Road Construgction
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
of Resources, and Fund Balances

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Total Nonmajor

Total Nonmajor

Total Nonmajor

Total Nonmajor

Special Debt Service Capital Projects  Governmental
Revenue Funds Funds Funds Funds

$ 103545676 % 3616878 % 2,325,054 109,487,608

10,343,966 - - 10,343,966

954 873 - - 954 873

16,291 - - 16,291

- 3,886,381 - 3,886,381

294 917 13,020 - 307,937

2,251,299 - - 2,251,299

1,308,021 - - 1,308,021

370,082 - - 370,082

$ 119085126 & 7,516,279 § 2,325,054 128,826,458

$ 2669023 % - % 239,338 2,908,361

123,545 - 39,831 163,376

376,581 - - 376,581

3,043 - - 3,043

169,793 - 3,129 172,022

442 381 - - 442,381

1,047 123 - - 1,047,123

4,831,489 - 282,298 5,113,787

- 3,886,381 - 3,886,381

944,174 - - 944,174

Q944 174 3,886,381 - 4,830,555

1,308,021 - - 1,308,021

370,082 - - 370,082

327,123 - - 327,123

1,392,031 - - 1,392,031

- 3,629,898 - 3,629,898

3,609,647 - - 3,699,647

- - 24,605 24,605

5,349 348 - - 5,349,348

1,264,724 - 263,810 1,528,534

14,542,417 - - 14,542,417

13,385,405 - - 13,385,405

50,256 887 - 1,751,977 52,007,864

2,786,175 - - 2,786,175

7,492 345 - - 7,492,345

7,221,077 - - 7,221,077

475 242 - - 475,242

3,439,940 - - 3,439,940

- - 350 350

- - 414 414

- - 1,600 1,600

113,309,462 3,628,898 2,042,756 118,882,116

$ 119085125 % 7,51827¢ % 2,325,054 128,926,458
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

REVENUES

Taxes

Special Assessments
Impact Fees

Permits and Fees
Intergovernmental Revenues
Charges for Semvices
Judgmenits and Fines
Court-Related Revenues
Investment Income
Miscellaneous Revenues

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current;
General Government
Public Safety
Physical Environment
Transportation
Economic Environment
Human Services
Culture/Recreation
Court-Related
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Capital Quilay

Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues

Over {Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES {USES)

Transfers In

Transfers {Qut)

Issuance of Notes/Bonds Payable

Total Other Financing
Sources {Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending

ALL NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Total Nonmajor

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Total Nonmajor

Total Nonmajor

Total Nonmajor

Special Debt Service Capital Projects Governmental
Revenue Funds Funds Funds Funds
32,271,329 % 3,010,563 - % 36,181,892
9,230,915 1,370,225 460,273 11,061,413
6,651,154 - - 6,651,154
7,440,138 - - 7,440,138
5,178,508 - - 5,178,508
7,008,357 - - 7,008,357
700,903 - - 700,903
633,813 - - 633813
189,087 1,885 2,364 193,336
1,273,360 - - 1,273,360
70,575,562 52828673 462 637 76,320,872
1,281,077 - - 1,281,077
15,204,755 - - 15,204,755
4247612 - - 4,247 612
12,902,131 - 37,148 12,939,279
4,223,087 - - 4,223,097
2,485,443 - - 2,485,443
1,916,746 - - 1,916,746
1,976,185 - - 1,976,185
- 4155232 - 4,155,232
- 940,083 15,453 965,536
- - 1,817 542 1,817,542
44 247 0486 5005315 1,870,143 51,212 504
26,328,516 187,358 {1,407 5086) 25,108,368
1,304,941 65719 - 1,370,660
{(15,432,794) - (65,719) {15,488,513)
- - 1,791,581 1,791,581
{14,127 853) 65719 1,725,842 {12,338,202)
12,200,663 253,077 318,336 12,772,076
101,108,799 3,376,821 1,724 420 106,210,040
113,309,462 3% 36820888 § 2042756 % 118,982 1186
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ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalenis
Investments
Accounts Receivable
Accrued Inleres! Receivable
Due from CHher Funds
Due fram Other Governmenis
Inventories
Prepaid items

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Contracts Payable
Accrued Liabiliies
Dute to Oher Funds
Due to Other Governmenis
Deposiis
Urearned Revenues
Total Liakilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable Grant Revenues
Total Deferred Infiows
of Resources

FUND BALANCES
Monspendable:
Inventories
Prepaid liems
Restricied for
Cowd Innavations
Records Modernization Tech
Fire and Rescue
Lawe Enfarcerment
Parks and Recreation
Public Safety
Resource Consarvation
Road Conslruclion
Social Services
Tousism
Transportation Maintenance
Comnmtted to;
Airport
Parks & Recrealion
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
of Resources, and Fund Balances

MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMA JOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENLUIE FUNDS

September 30, 2021

Alcohol and
Fines and 80% Gas Tax 20% Gas Tax Sidewalk Marion County Drug Abuse
Forfeitures Construction Construction Construction Airport Trust Fund
$ 3827848 % 9211826 % 35865088 % 648184 $ 380,806 % 41,440
257,564 - - - 2.264
5,398 311,283 77.821 496,913 -
- 1,274,333 33688
2,511 - - - - -
$ 4083321 % 9523108 % 4838753 % 648,184 3 921,907 % 43,704
$ 38558 % 571,520 % 40830 % $ 331,056 %
. . - 53871
5,745
78,307 1,651
- 20,054
117,866 571,520 40,830 412,477
- 1,274,232 33688
2,51 - -
3972844
8,951,589 .
- 43,704
3,623,590 648,194
475,242
3,875,455 8,951,589 4,897 923 648,194 508,930 43,704
k3 4093321 % 9,523100 % 4938752 % 648,124 & 921,407 & 43,704
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2nd Local Marion County Criminal Law Federal 811 Building

Opticn Fuel Local Provider Health Justice Court Enforcement Sheriff's Equitable Management Department
Tax Participation Pepartment Costs Trust Fund Educational Sharing Fund Fund
$ 11,390,301 § 988,985 $ 19632 § 3 L) - 565,087 % 7PR295 0§ 29904 $ 2757416 % 13,670,634
- - - 30221 - 4,118 - - -
615,851 - 946 - - - - 145,555 -
- - - - - - - 1,014 688
$ 12,006,152 § 8885985 $ 119978 § 346982 § 565087 §$ 781411 § 25904 § 2903979 § 13,671,322
$ 584,276 % - % - % 8498 % - % - % - % 858 % 33,509
- - - 3800 - - - 20,783 177,438
- - - - - - - - 200
- - - 7.561 - - - 200 56,055
R R R . - - - - 350,373
- 988,985 - - - - - - -
584,276 988,985 - 19.859 - - - 21,841 617,575
- - - - - - - 1014 688
- - - 327,123 - - - - -
. . . . . - - 2,881,124 -
- - - - 565,087 781,411 26,904 - -
. . - - - - - - 13,053,059
11,421,876 - - - - - - - -
- - 119,978 - - - - - -
11,421,876 - 119,978 327,123 565,087 781,411 29,904 2,882,138 13,053,747
$ 12,006,152 % 988,985 § 119,978 § 346,982 § 565,087 § 781,411 % 29904 § 2903979 §% 13,671,322

{Cantinued)



ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalenis
Investments
Accounts Receivable
Accrued Injerest Receivable
Due fram Other Funds
Due fram Other Governmenis
Invenlories
Prepaid items

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Contracts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Dute to Oher Funds
Due to Other Governments
Deposils
Urearned Revenues
Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Grant Revenues
Total Deferred Infiows
of Resources

FUND BALANCES
Monspendable:
Inventories
Prepaid lems
Resingled for;
Cowd Innavations
Records Moderization Tech
Fire and Rescue
Law Enforcement
Parks and Recreation
Public Safety
Resource Conservation
Road Construction
Social Services
Tounzm
Transportation Maintenance
Cormrmitted to:
Airport
Parks & Recrealion
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
of Resources, and Fund Balances

MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMA JOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENLUIE FUNDS

September 30, 2021

Impact Fee
Tourist Parks and Local Housing Ordinance
Development Recreation Assistance Local Housing Medical Trust Fund -
Fund Fees Fund Trust CHF Trust Examiner District 1
% 7179852 & 3533507 % 2728284 % 1300 & 1424270 % 2,225
9,499 944,174 1,200
420,996 2,059
13,872 - - - 789 -
% 7614820 & 3545065 & 3672458 & 2500 % 1485050 % 2.225
% 88742 % 8928 % 69324 % k3 532 &
18,860 17,830 1,170
- - 2,594 - -
9,219 2,400 2,500 4379
10,910 30,303 - -
- 58138 - - -
108,603 105,125 105,791 2.500 4812
244174
244174
13,872 789
1,489,358
- 2,225
- 2822493 .
7,492 345 -
- 3,439,240 - - .
7.506.217 3,439,240 2822493 1,490,147 2.225
$ 7614820 $ 3545085 $ 3672458 % 2,500 § 7,485.058 $ 2,225
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Impact Fee Impact Fee Rainbow Lakes
Ordirance Ordirance Impact Fee Impact Fee Estates Fire MSTUMSBU
Trust Fund - Trust Fund - Trust Fund - Trust Fund - Rainbow Lakes Protection Marion Oaks for Road Sitver Springs
District 3 District 4 East District West District Estates MSD MSBU MSTU Improvements Shores MSTU
$ 191,539 § 120,758 § 66990067 § 10,269,367 § 1,070,798 $ 572,567 537615 § 10,716 676 § 685,814
- - - - 122 - 260 - 333
- - 11,157 1,123 1,585 1,454 77 21,566 5
. - - - 128 463 7 - 126
$ 191538 % 120,758 § 8,710,164 % 10,270,490 % 1072643 § 574,484 537958 % 10,738,242 § 686,278
$ 71,725 % 15924 § - % - % 575 % 261 223 % 15817 % 3088
. . - - - - - 41,997 -
- - - - 10,408 683 22,234 - 15,576
- - 249 - - - - - -
- - 5,284 - 41 - 1,064 - 60
- - - - 3,764 - 15,411 - 11,166
71,725 15,924 5533 - 14,788 944 40,832 57,814 29,800
- - - - 128 463 7 - 126
- - - - - 573,077 - - -
- - - - - - 497,120 - 656,262
119,614 104,634 8,704,631 10,270,490 - - - 10,660,428 -
- - - - 1.057.727 - - - -
119,814 104,834 8,704,631 10,270,490 1,057,855 573,540 497,127 10,680,428 656,388
$ 191,539 % 120,758 % §,710,164 § 10,270,490 § 1,072643 % 574,484 537959 § 10,738,242 § 586,278

{Cantinued)
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ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalenis
Investments
Accounts Receivable
Accrued Inleres! Receivable
Due from CHher Funds
Due fram Other Governmenis
Inventories
Prepaid items

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Contracts Payable
Accrued Liabiliies
Dute to Oher Funds
Due to Other Governmenis
Deposiis
Urearned Revenues
Total Liakilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable Grant Revenues
Total Deferred Infiows
of Resources

FUND BALANCES
Monspendable:
Inventories
Prepaid liems
Restricied for
Cowd Innavations
Records Modernization Tech
Fire and Rescue
Lawe Enfarcerment
Parks and Recreation
Public Safety
Resource Consarvation
Road Conslruclion
Social Services
Tousism
Transportation Maintenance
Comnmtted to;
Airport
Parks & Recrealion
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
of Resources, and Fund Balances

MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMA JOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENLUIE FUNDS

September 30, 2021

MSTU/MSBU
MSTUMSBU MSBU for DRA MSTU for Fire Rescue Stormwater for General
for Recreation Mainterrance Street Lighting Impact Fees Program Services

$ 115,366 § 12283 % 1,747,262 % 245,446 § 3577457 % 153,461
. - - 10,343,966 -

- 16,291
37 - - .
318 738 136,119 327
$ 115,721 % 12283 % 1,747888 % 245,446 § 14,073,827 % 153,788
$ 3979 § $ 2529 § $ 623570 % 334
- - 27577 -

18,568 37275
- 325 747
400 - -
4,379 21,422 688,422 1,081

245,446
111,342

13,385,405
1,726,576 152,707
111,342 1,726,576 245,445 13,385,405 152,707
k3 115,721 & 12282 % 1,747,928 % 245,446 § 14073827 & 153,788
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Clerk of the
Circuit Court
Trust Fund

Total Nonmajor
Special
Revenug Funds

1,568 606

350,484

$ 103,545 676
10,343,966
954,873

16,291

294917
2,251,299
1,308,021
370,082

1.519.080

$ 119,085,125

151,464

25111

$ 2,669,023
123.545

376,581

3,043

169,793

442 381
1,047,123

176,575

4,831,489

944,174

544,174

350,484

1,392,031

1,308,021
370,082

327,123
1,392,031
3,699,647
5,345,346
1,264,724

14,542,417
13,385,405
50,255,887
2786175
7,492,345
7,221,077

475,242
3,439,940

1,742,515

113,308,462

$

1,919,090

$ 119,085,125
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MARION CQUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IM FUND BALANCES

REVENUES

Taxes

Special Assessments

Impact Fees

Parmits and Fees

Intergovernmental Revenues

Charges for Services

Judgments and Fines

Court-Related Revenues

Investment Income

Miscellanecus Revenues
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Physical Environment
Transportation
Econamic Environment
Human Services
Cuiture/Recreation
Court-Related
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over (Under} Expenditures

OTHER FINANGING SOURCES {USES}

Transfers In
Transfers {Out)
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

For the Year Ended Septernber 30, 2021

Fines and 80% Gas Tax 20% Gas Tax Sidewalk Marion County
Forfeitures Construction Construction Construction Airport
¥ 16664778 3 3870624 % §967656 % - 3 -
. - 227,133 -
50,308 - - 447 767
363,879 - - 668,164
307,968 - R .
146 802 - - - .
14,385 13,979 3170 799 &00
2283 2,601 - - 6,053
17,571,651 3,887,204 972,826 227 932 1,122,589
1,746,660 - - -
3,608,767 353 814 - 1,317,755
678,331 - - - -
2,425 00 3,608, 767 358 814 - 1,317,755
15,146,610 277 437 574,012 227 932 {185,166}
. R - 237,566
{15,057.058) - - -
{15,057 053} - - 237 556
89,552 277 437 574,012 227932 42,390
3,885,903 8,674,152 4,323,911 420,262 466,540
3 3975455 § 8951589 % 4897923 % 648,194 § 508,930
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Alcohol and Marion Gounty Criminal Law Federal

Drug Abuse 2nd Local Local Provider Health Justice Gourt Erforcernent Sheriff's Equitable
Trust Furd Cption Fuel Tax Participation Department Cosls Trust Fund Educational Sharing
¥ - % 2,962 937 % - ¥ 2,334943 3 - ¥ - 5 - %
. - - - - 352,935 -
27,710 - - - 308,744 - 60,457 -
49 16,870 - 1,927 395 836 1,164 47
- - - 7.336 - - - -
27,759 2,879,807 - 2,364 206 399,138 383,771 61,621 47
- 4,150,211 - - - - -
- - - 2,385,658 99,783 - -
20073 - - - 194,580 - -
20,073 4,150,211 - 2,385,638 254,363 - -
7686 (1,170,404} - (21,452) 104,774 393,771 61,621 47
. . . - - {128,108} -
- - - - - {128,108} -
7688 (1,170,404} - (21.452) 104,774 265,663 61,621 47
36,018 12,582,280 - 141,430 222,348 209,424 719,790 29,857
b 3 43704 % 11421876 % - 3 119978 § 327,123 % 585,087 % 781,411 % 29,904
{Continued}
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MARION CQUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IM FUND BALANCES

REVENUES

Taxes

Special Assessments

Impact Fees

Permits and Fees

Intergovernmental Revenues

Charges for Services

Judgmernits and Fines

Court-Related Revenues

Investment Income

Miscellaneous Revenues
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Physical Environment
Transporation
Economic Environment
Human Services
Culture/Recreation
Court-Related
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues

Over (Under} Expenditures

COTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES}
Transfers In
Transfers {Out)
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

Net Ghange in Fund Balances
Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

For the Year Ended Septernber 30, 2021

911 Building Tourist Parks and Local Housing
Management Department Development Recreation Assistance
Fund Fund Fund Fees Fund Trust
$ 72800 % 3676,448 - % -
- 7,055,641 - - .
6,928 31,533 1,166 - 673,120
1,772 475 - - 1,776,534 -
4,849 19,545 9,803 5,274 3,932
36,000 22,390 31,298 2,760 898,550
1,820,252 7,201,909 3,718,517 1,784,568 1,675,602
2614113 5,786,367 - -
- 1,925,520 - 1604941
- 1,191,967 -
2614113 5,786,367 1,925,520 1,191,867 1,604,941
{793,861} 1,405,542 1,792,997 592,601 70,661
4,640 88,526 4,302 7.078 145
- {1,924} {1,278} {242,291} {760)
4,640 96,602 3,026 (235,213) {815}
(789,221} 1,502,144 1,796,023 357,388 70,048
3,671,359 11,551,603 5,710,184 3,082,552 2,552,447
2,882,138 % 13,053,747 % 7,508,217 % 3438940 % 2,622,493
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Impact Fee Impact Fee Impact Fee
Crdirance Crdirance Ordinance Impact Fee Impact Fee

Local Housing Medical Trust Fund - Trust Fund - Trust Fund - Trust Fund - Trust Fund - Rainbow Lakes
CRF Trust Examiner District 1 District 3 District 4 East District West District Estates MSQ

3 - % - % 3 - % 3 $ - % 282,391
- - 1,739 3,049,652 3,599,763 -

- - - - - 157,364

453,357 3372714 - - 4,774

- 1,066 019 - - 82

379 1,726 4 349 n7 10,838 12,352 1,878

- - - - - - - 16,130

453,736 4,440,459 4 2,088 317 3,060,480 3612115 462618

R R - - 219,701

- 4,833,395 - . .

- - 112,433 179,789 115,976 21,694 207.58%

692,636 - - - - - -

692,636 4,833,395 112,433 179,789 115,976 21,694 517,290
{238,500} {392 936) 4 {110,345) {179,472} 2,944,514 3,590,421 {54,671}

- 933,120 - R
- 933,120 - -

(238,500} 540,184 4 {110,345) {179,472} 2,944 514 3,590,921 {54,671}

238,900 949 963 2,221 230,159 284,308 5,760,117 6,680,069 1,112,526

¥ - 3 1,490,147 % 2,225 § 119814 % 104834 % 8704631 % 10,270,450 % 1,057 855

{Continued)
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES (N FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
For the Year Ended Septernber 30, 2021

Rainbow Lakes

Estates Fire MSTU/MSBU
Protection Marion Oaks for Road Silver Springs MSTUMSBU
MSBU MSTU Improvements Shores MSTU for Recreation
REVEMUES
Taxes 3 - % 588720 % - % 738621 § 81,411
Special Assessments 178,272 - 4,192,548 - -
Impact Fees - - - - -

Permits and Fees - - - - .
Intergovernmental Revenues - - - - .
Charges for Services - 40 - 51 5
Judgmernits and Fines - . . . .
Court-Related Revenues

Investment Income 1,075 1,183 16,785 1,380 239
Miscellaneous Revenues - 80,971 - 3377G 2.000
Total Revenues 179,347 680,914 4,209,343 773,822 83.655
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government - 753,015 - - -
Public Safety 214,220 - - - -
Physical Environment - - - - -
Transporation - - 1,787,860 44,497 -
Economic Environment - - - - -
Human Services - - - - .
Culture/Recreation - - - &41 638 83121
Court-Related - - - - -
Total Expenditures 214,220 753,015 1,787 860 686,155 83,121
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over (Under} Expenditures {34,873} {72,101 2,421,483 37,667 534
COTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES}
Transfers In - 10,420 - - -
Transfers {Qut) - - - - -
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) - 10,420 - - -
Net Change in Fund Balances {34,873 {61,681 2,421,483 87,667 534
Fund Balances - Beginning 608,413 558,808 8,258,945 568,721 110,808
Fund Balances - Ending i 573540 % 497 127 & 10,680,428 § 656,388 % 111,342
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MSTU/MSBU Clerk of the Total Nonmajor

MSBU for DRA  MSTU for Street Fire Rescue Stormwater for General Circuit Court Special

Maintenance Lighting Impact Fees Program Services Trust Fund Revenue Funds
- % - % - % - % - % - % 327271329
9,804 946 607 . 3,848,201 55,483 - 9,230,915
. - - - - - 5,651,154

- - - - 7,440,138

- - - 136,839 - . 5,178,508

- - - 8,060 . 1,351,048 7,006,357

- - - - - - 700,903

- - - - - - 5338313

8 3125 i3g 35,094 263 1,772 189 087

- 7,886 - 2,679 - - 1,273,360
9,810 957 618 386 4,030,873 55,746 1,352,820 70,575 562
- - - - 41,623 276,738 1291077

- - - - - - 15,204,755

- - - 4,247 Bi2 - - 4 247 812
3594 862,152 - - . - 12,902,131
- - - - - - 4223097

- - . - . . 2,485 443

. - - - - 1,816,746

- - - - - 1,083 151 1,876,185
3,594 862,152 - 4,247 812 41,623 1,359,888 44 247 D46
5216 95 466 336 {216,735 14,123 {7 063} 26,328,316
- 1677 - 7477 - - 1,304,941

- - - {1.377) - - {15,432,794)

- 1,677 - 5,100 - - {14,127 853
5216 97 143 i3g (210,635 14,123 {7,069} 12,200,663
5,067 1,625 433 245 060 13,586,044 135,584 1,745 5384 101,108 799
12,283 % 1.726576 % 245,446 13,385405 % 152,707 % 1,742 515 % 113,309 462




MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FINES AND FCRFEITURES FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts {(Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes 16,523,57C & 16,664,778 $ 141,208
Intergovernmental Revenues 25,000 50,308 25,308
Charges for Services 238,583 363,879 125,296
Judgments and Fines 287,520 307,968 40,448
Court-Related Revenues 98,750 146,902 47152
Investment Income 47,025 14,885 (32,140)
Miscellaneous Revenues 22,857 22,931 74
Total Revenues 17,224,305 17,571,651 347,346
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public Safety
Fine and Ferfeiture Crime Prevention 13,358,219 1,746,660 11,612,559
Cournt-Related
Fines & Forfeitures 6,245,856 678,381 5,567,575
Total Expenditures 19,605,175 2,425,041 17,180,134
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (2,380,870} 15,148,610 17,527,480
GTHER FINANCING SCURCES {USES)
Transfers {Qut) (807,348) {15,057,058) (14,248,710}
Total Other Financing
Sources and {Uses) (807,348) {15,057,058) (14,248,710)
Net Change in Fund Balance {3,188,218) 89,552 3,271,770
Fund Balance - Beginning 3,188,218 3,885,903 697,685
Fund Balance - Ending - % 3,875455 $ 3,975,455
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
80% GAS TAX CONSTRUCTION FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 3,207,018 % 3,870,624 % 663,605
Investment Income 88,450 13,979 (72,471)
Miscellaneous Revenues “ 2,601 2,601
Total Revenues 3,293,469 3,887,204 583,735
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Transportation 10,698,773 3,608,767 7,089,006
Total Expenditures 10,698,773 3,608,767 7,089,006
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
QOver (Under) Expendifures {7,405 304} 277437 7,682,741
Net Change in Fund Balance {7,405,304) 277,437 7,682 741
Fund Balance - Beginning 7,405,304 8,874,152 1,268,848
Fund Balance - Ending $ - % 8,851,589 % 8,951,589




MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
20% GAS TAX CONSTRUCTION FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 801,754 3 967,656 3 165,902
Investment Income 24,700 5170 (18,530)
Total Revenues 828 454 872,826 146,372
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Transportation 3,862,181 398,814 3,563,367
Total Expenditures 3,862,181 398,814 3,563,367
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (3,135,727} 574,012 3,700,739
Net Change in Fund Balance (3,135,721 574012 3,709,738
Fund Balance - Beginning 3,135,727 4,323,911 1,188,184

Fund Balance - Ending 5 -~ % 4897923 § 4 897 923
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTICON
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Permits and Fees $ 53,000 3 227,133 3 168,133
Investment Income 3,040 789 {2,241)
Total Revenues 62,040 227,932 165,862
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Transportation 416,801 - 416,901
Total Expenditures 416,801 - 416,901
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures {354,861} 227,932 582,793
Net Change in Fund Balance (354,861) 227,932 582,783
Fund Balance - Beginning 354,861 420,262 85,401
Fund Balance - Ending 5 -~ % 648,184 $ 648,194
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

MARION COUNTY AIRPORT

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

REVENUES
Intergovernmental Revenues
Charges for Services
Investment Income
Miscellaneous Revenues

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Transportation
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
QOver (Under) Expendifures

OTHER FINANCING SCURCES {USES)
Transfers In
Total Other Financing
Sources and {Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)
$ 2,388,786 § 447767 § {1,842,019)
627,190 668,164 40,974
3,040 600 (2,440}
15,770 6,058 (8,712)
3,035,786 1,122,589 {1,813,187)
3,631,413 1,317,755 2,313,658
3831413 1,317,755 2,313,658
(585,627) {195,166) 400,481
237,558 237,556 -
237,556 237,556 -
(358,071) 42,380 400,461
358,071 466,540 108,469
$ - $ 508,930 $ 508,930
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE TRUST FUND

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

REVENUES
Court-Related Revenues
Investment Income

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Court-Related
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)

$ 12,825 % 27,7110 & 14,885
95 49 {(46)
12,820 27,759 14,838
40,000 20,073 19,927
40,000 20,073 19,927
{27,080} 7,686 34,768
(27,080) 7,686 34,766
27,080 36,018 8,938
$ - $ 43,704 § 43,704
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

2nd LOCAL OPTION FUEL TAX FUND

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

REVENUES
Taxes
Investment Income

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Transportation
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

Variance with

Budget -
Positive

Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)
2008877 8 2,862,937 3 954,260
17,100 16,870 (230)
2025777 2,878,807 954,030
15,170,346 4,150,211 11,020,135
15,170,346 4,150,211 11,020,135
(13,144,569) (1,170,404) 11,974,165
(13,144,569) (1,170,404) 11,974,165
13,144,569 12,592,280 {552,289)
- 8 11,421,876 § 11,421,876
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
MARICN CCUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 2,332,738 & 2354943 % 22,204
Investment Income 12,730 1,027 (10,803)
Miscellaneous Revenues - 7,336 7,336
Total Revenues 2,345 469 2,364,206 18,737
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Human Services 2,482 498 2,385,658 96,840
Total Expenditures 2,482,498 2,385,658 96,840
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
QOver (Under) Expendifures (137,029} {21,452) 115,577
Net Change in Fund Balance (137,029) (21,452) 118,577
Fund Balance - Beginning 137,029 141,430 4,401

Fund Balance - Ending $ - $ 118,978 & 119,978
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

CRIMINAL JUSTICE COURT COSTS FUND

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

REVENUES
Coun-Related Revenues
Investment Income

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Human Services
Coun-Related
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
QOver (Under) Expendifures

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)

$ 283,860 3 398,744 3 114,884
1,425 385 {1,030
285,285 395,139 113,854
74,700 98,785 (25,085)
364,701 194,580 170,121
439,401 294,365 145,036
(154,116) 104,774 258,850
(154,116} 104,774 258,890
154,116 222,349 68,233
$ - § 327123 8 327123
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Judgments and Fines $ -3 392,935 % 392,935
Investment Income 4,750 836 {3,914)
Total Revenues 4,750 393,771 389,021
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 127,007 - 127,007
Total Expenditures 127,007 - 127007
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures {122,257} 393,771 516,028
OTHER FINANCING SCURCES {USES)
Transfers {Qut) (128,108} {128,108) -
Total Other Financing
Sources and {Uses) (128,108} {128,108) -
Net Change in Fund Balance (250,365) 265,663 516,028
Fund Balance - Beginning 250,365 208,424 49 058

Fund Balance - Ending $ - % 565,087 $ 565,087




MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
SHERIFF'S EDUCATIONAL FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Court-Related Revenues $ 50,35C % 60,457 % 10,107
Investment Income 5795 1,164 {4,631)
Total Revenues 56,145 61,621 5476
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public Safety 771418 - 771,419
Total Expenditures 771,418 - 771,419
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (715,274} 61,621 776,885
Net Change in Fund Balance (715,274} 61,621 776,895
Fund Balance - Beginning 718,274 716,780 4,516
Fund Balance - Ending 5 -~ % 781,411 % 781,411
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
FEDERAL EQUITABLE SHARING
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Investment Income $ - § 47 & 47
Total Revenues - 47 47
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 28,859 - 29,859
Total Expenditures 29,859 - 29,859
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures {29,859) 47 29,906
Net Change in Fund Balance (29,859) 47 29,908
Fund Balance - Beginning 29,859 28,857 (2)

Fund Balance - Ending b - 8 25,904 $ 29,904

trd
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

911 MANAGEMENT FUND

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

REVENUES
Intergovernmental Revenues
Charges for Services
Investment Income
Miscellaneous Revenues

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public Safety
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
QOver (Under) Expendifures

OTHER FINANCING SCURCES {USES)
Transfers In
Total Other Financing
Sources and {Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)

- § 6928 % 6,928
1,511,840 1,772,475 260,835
47,500 4,849 (42,651)
- 36,000 36,000
1,559,140 1,820,252 261112
4,892,982 2514,113 2,278,869
4,892,982 2814113 2,278,869
{3,333,842) {793,861) 2,539,981
4,640 4,640 .
4,640 4,640 -
(3,329,202) (789,221) 2,539,981
3,328,202 3,671,359 342,157
- 8 2882138 § 2,882,138
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
BUILDING DEPARTMENT FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 43472 % 72,800 % 29,328
Permits and Fees 5,532,800 7,055,641 1,522,841
Intergovernmental Revenues - 31,533 31,533
Investment Income 121,800 19,545 {102,055)
Miscellaneous Revenues 17,488 22,380 4,902
Total Revenues 5,715,360 7,201,909 1,486,548
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public Safety 14,736 408 5,798,367 8,940,042
Total Expenditures 14,738,409 5,798,367 8,940,042
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures {8,021,049) 1,405,542 10,426,581
OTHER FINANCING SCURCES {USES)
Transfers In 98,526 98,526 -
Transfers {Out) (1,924) {1,824) -
Total Other Financing
Sources and {Uses) 98,802 98,602 -
Net Change in Fund Balance {8,924 447 1,502,144 10,426,581
Fund Balance - Beginning 8,824 447 11,551,603 2,627,156
Fund Balance - Ending $ - 3 13,053,747 § 13,063,747
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

TOURIST DEVELOPMENT FUND

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

REVENUES
Taxes
Intergovernmental Revenues
Investment Income
Miscellaneous Revenues
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Economic Environment
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
QOver (Under) Expendifures

OTHER FINANCING SCURCES {USES)
Transfers In
Transfers {Out)
Total Other Financing
Sources and {Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)

$ 2215851 8 3676,448 3 1,460,487
- 1,166 1,166
28,165 5,605 (18,560)
- 31,298 31,298
2,245,116 3,718,517 1,473,401
6,824,153 1,825,520 4,998,633
6,824,153 1,825,520 4,988 633
{4,679,037) 1,792,997 6,472,034
4,302 4,302 .
(1,276) {1,276) -
3,028 3,026 -
(4,676,011) 1,796,023 6,472,034
4,676,011 5,710,194 1,034,183
$ - $ 7508217 § 7,506,217
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
PARKS AND RECREATION FEES FUND

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts {(Negative)
REVENUES
Charges for Services $ 1,501,00C & 1,776,534 & 275,534
Investment Income 18,380 5274 (14,106)
Miscellaneous Revenues “ 2,760 2,760
Total Revenues 1,520,380 1,784,568 264 188
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Culture/Recreation 3,820,320 1,191,967 2,628,353
Total Expenditures 3,820,320 1,191,967 2,628,353
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
QOver (Under) Expendifures {2,289,940) 592,601 2,892 541
GTHER FINANCING SCURCES {USES)
Transfers In 7,078 7,078 “
Transfers {Out) (242,281) {242 291) “
Total Other Financing
Sources and {Uses) (235,213) {235,213) -
Net Change in Fund Balance {2,635,153) 357,388 2,892 541
Fund Balance - Beginning 2,535,153 3,082,552 547,399
Fund Balance - Ending b - 8 3435940 % 3,439,940
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

LOCAL HOUSING ASSISTANCE TRUST FUND

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

REVENUES
Intergovernmental Revenues
Investment Income
Miscellaneous Revenues

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Economic Environment
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
QOver (Under) Expendifures

OTHER FINANCING SCURCES {USES)
Transfers In
Transfers {Cut)
Total Other Financing
Sources and {Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)

$ 436305 § 873,120 236,815
22,705 3,932 (18,773)
672,832 598,550 325,718
1,131,842 1,675,602 543,760
3,404,254 1,604,941 1,799,313
3,404,254 1,604,941 1,799,313
{2,272 412) 70,661 2,343,073
145 145 -
(760} {760) -
(615) (6185) -
(2,273,027} 70,046 2,343,073
2,273,027 2,652,447 279,420
$ - $ 2822483 § 2,622,483
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

LOCAL HOUSING CRF TRUST

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

REVENUES
Intergovernmental Revenues
Investment Income

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Economic Environment
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)
$ 1,601,607 453,357 & {548,250)
- 379 379
1,001,807 453,736 (547 871)
1,001,807 692,636 308,971
1,601,607 692,636 308,871
- {238,800) {238,900)
- {238,800) {238,900)
- 238,900 238,900
$ - - 8 -
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

MEDICAL EXAMINER
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental Revenues $ 3447716 & 3,372,714 % (75,002)
Charges for Services 620,255 1,066,019 445764
Investment Income 2860 1,726 (834
Total Revenues 4,070,631 4,440,459 369,828
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public Safety 5,620,274 4,833,385 786,879
Total Expenditures 5,620,274 4,833,385 786,879
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
QOver (Under) Expendifures {1,549 643) {392 838) 1,156,707
OTHER FINANCING SCURCES {USES)
Transfers In 533,120 833,120 -
Total Other Financing
Sources and {Uses) 933,120 833,120 -
Net Change in Fund Balance (616,523) 540,184 1,156,707
Fund Balance - Beginning 816,523 845,963 333,440
Fund Balance - Ending $ - % 1,490,147 $ 1,480,147

142



MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
IMPACT FEE CRDINANCE TRUST DISTRICT 1
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Investment Income $ - % 4 % 4
Total Revenues - 4 4
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Transportation
Impact Fee Trust, District 1 2,191 - 2,181
Total Expenditures 2,191 - 2,181
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over {(Under) Expenditures (2,181} 4 2,185
Net Change in Fund Balance (2,181} 4 2,185
Fund Balance - Beginning 2,191 2,221 30

Fund Balance - Ending 5 -~ % 2225 % 2,225




MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
IMPACT FEE CRDINANCE TRUST DISTRICT 3
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Impact Fees $ - § 1,739 & 1,739
Investment Income - 349 349
Total Revenues - 2,088 2,088
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Transportation
Impact Fee Trust, District 3 223,149 112,433 110,716
Total Expenditures 223,149 112,433 110,716
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
QOver (Under) Expendifures (223,149} {110,345) 112,804
Net Change in Fund Balance (223,149 {110,345%) 112,804
Fund Balance - Beginning 223,149 230,159 7,010
Fund Balance - Ending $ - $ 116,814 & 119,814
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
IMPACT FEE CRDINANCE TRUST DISTRICT 4
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Investment Income $ - § 317 § 317
Total Revenues - 317 317
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Transportation
Impact Fee Trust, District 4 466,818 178,789 287,029
Total Expenditures 466,818 179,789 287,029
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (466,818) {178,472) 287,346
Net Change in Fund Balance (466,818) {(178,472) 287,346
Fund Balance - Beginning 466,818 284,306 {182,512}

Fund Balance - Ending 5 -~ % 104834 $ 104,834




MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
IMPACT FEE TRUST FUND - EAST DISTRICT
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts {(Negative)
REVENUES
Impact Fees $ 1,862,00C % 3,046652 % 1,187 652
Investment Income 47,500 10,838 (36,662)
Total Revenues 1,808,500 3,060,480 1,150,980
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Transportation
Impact Fee Trust, East District 7,394,430 115,976 7,278,454
Total Expenditures 7,394,430 115,976 7,278,454
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
QOver (Under) Expendifures {5,484 930} 2,844,514 8,429 444
Net Change in Fund Balance {5,484 930) 2,944 514 8,429 444
Fund Balance - Beginning 5,484,830 5,760,117 275,187

Fund Balance - Ending $ - % 8704631 & 8,704 631
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
IMPACT FEE TRUST FUND - WEST DISTRICT
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts {(Negative)
REVENUES
Impact Fees $ 1,491,500 & 3,698,763 & 2,108,263
Investment Income 38,300 12,352 (26,848)
Total Revenues 1,530,800 3812,115 2,081,315
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Transportation
Impact Fee Trust, West District 7672622 21,694 7,650,928
Total Expenditures 7,672,622 21,694 7,650,928
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
QOver (Under) Expendifures (6,141,822} 3,590,421 G, 732,243
Net Change in Fund Balance (6,141,822) 3,590,421 9,732,243
Fund Balance - Beginning 6,141,822 6,680,069 538,247
Fund Balance - Ending $ - 3 10,270,480 $ 10,270,480
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
RAINBOW LAKES ESTATES MSD FUND

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 272,267 % 282,381 % 10,124
Permits and Fees 143,450 157,364 13,914
Intergovernmental Revenues 4774 4,774 -
Charges for Services 47 82 35
Investment Income 2,878 1,878 {1,000}
Miscellaneous Revenues 5814 16,130 10,318
Total Revenues 429,230 462,619 33,389
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 1,017,288 218,701 797,585
Transportation 396,868 297,589 $9,279
Total Expenditures 1,414,154 517,280 886,864
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
QOver (Under) Expendifures (984,824} {54 871) 930,253
Net Change in Fund Balance (984,924) {54,671) 930,253
Fund Balance - Beginning 884 824 1,112,526 127,602
Fund Balance - Ending $ - % 1,057,855 % 1,057 855
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
RAINBOW LAKES ESTATES FIRE PROTECTION FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Special Assessmenis $ 176,892 % 178,272 & {1,620}
Investment Income 4,512 1,075 {3,437)
Total Revenues 184,404 179,347 {5,057)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public Safety 704,201 214,220 489,981
Total Expenditures 704,201 214,220 489,981
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (619,787 {34 873) 484,924
Net Change in Fund Balance (519,787 {34,873) 484,924
Fund Balance - Beginning 518,797 808,413 88,616
Fund Balance - Ending 5 -~ % 573540 % 573,540
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
MARICN CAKS MSTU FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts {(Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 585665 $ 568,720 $ 13,085
Charges for Services “ 40 40
Investment Income 12,103 1,183 (10,820)
Miscellaneous Revenues 53,200 80,971 27771
Total Revenues 650,968 680,914 29 946
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 1,080,263 753,015 327 248
Total Expenditures 1,080,263 753,015 327,248
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
QOver (Under) Expendifures (429,285) {72,101) 357,194
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Transfers In 10,420 10,420 “
Total Other Financing
Sources and {Uses) 10,420 10,420 -
Net Change in Fund Balance (418,875) {81,881) 357,194
Fund Balance - Beginning 418,875 558,808 139,933

Fund Balance - Ending b - 8 497127 $ 497 127
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
MSTU/MSBU FOR ROAD IMPROVEMENTS SPECIAL ASSESSMENT FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Special Assessmenis $ 3,701,151 & 4192548 3% 481,397
Investment Income 55276 16,785 (38,481)
Total Revenues 3,756,427 4,208,343 452 916
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Transportation
Rainbow Lakes Estates MSTU 1,513,963 178,124 1,335,838
Silver Springs Shores MSTU 2,028,144 948,592 1,079,552
Lake Tropicana MSTU 233,000 3,589 229,401
Golden Hills MSTU 73,713 2,148 71,585
Kingsland -Waterway MSBU 618,968 162,609 456,359
Kingsland -Forrest Glenn MSBU 180,430 18,563 161,867
Silver Spring Acres MSBU 127,724 56,680 71,044
Ccala Water Way Estates MSBU 385,195 105,504 279,651
NW 17-Northwoods MSBU 7,863 2,144 5719
Rainbow Park 1,2 MSBU 391,158 83,885 307,263
Pine Run Estates MSTU 190,241 67,609 122,632
Wooeds and Lakes MSTU 62,261 14,738 47,523
Maricn QGaks Road Improvement 3,815,691 111,827 3,703,864
Paradise Farms Road Mowing 30,199 11,034 19,165
Stonecrest Center MSBU 18,423 3,899 15,524
Deer Path Estates 1,2 MSBU 25,982 16,885 9,087
Total Expenditures 9,703,855 1,787,860 7,918,085
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures {5,947 528) 2,421,483 8,369,011
Net Change in Fund Balance {5,947 528) 2,421,483 8,369,011
Fund Balance - Beginning 5,847,528 8,258,045 2,311,417
Fund Balance - Ending 5 - 10,680,428 $ 10,680,428




MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
SILVER SPRINGS SHCRES MSTU
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 728177 % 738621 % 10,444
Charges for Services - 51 51
Investment Income 10,735 1,380 {8,355)
Miscellaneous Revenues 22,629 33,770 11,141
Total Revenues 761,541 773,822 12,281
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Transportation 48,000 44,497 3,503
Culture/Recreation 1,204,758 641,658 583,100
Total Expenditures 1,252,758 686,155 586,603
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (481,217 87,667 578,884
Net Change in Fund Balance (481,217) 87,667 578,884
Fund Balance - Beginning 491,217 568,721 77,504
Fund Balance - Ending b - 8 656,388 $ 656,388




MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
MSTU/MSBU FOR RECREATION SPECIAL ASSESSMENT FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 78,970 % 81,411 & 2,441
Charges for Services - 5 5
Investment Income 372 239 (133)
Miscellaneous Revenues 3,040 2,000 {1,040}
Total Revenues 52,382 83,655 1,273
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Recreation
Rainbow Lakes Recreation Facility 97838 52,510 45129
Hills of Ocala for Recreation 68,802 30,611 38,281
Total Expenditures 166,541 83,121 83,420
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures {84,159} 534 84,683
Net Change in Fund Balance {84 159) 534 84 693
Fund Balance - Beginning 84,158 110,808 26,649

Fund Balance - Ending 5 -~ % 111,342 § 111,342
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
MSBU FCR DRA MAINTENANCE
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Special Assessmenis $ 11434 & 8804 3% {1,630}
Investment Income - 6 5]
Total Revenues 11,434 5,810 {1,624)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Transportation 11,434 3,594 7,840
Total Expenditures 11,434 3,594 7,840
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures - 6,216 6,216
Net Change in Fund Balance - 6,216 6,216
Fund Balance - Beginning - 8,067 6,067

Fund Balance - Ending 5 -~ % 12,283 §$ 12,283
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

MSTU FOR STREET LIGHTING SPECIAL ASSESSMENT FUNDS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

REVENUES
Special Assessments
Investment Income
Miscellaneous Revenues
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Transportation
Indian Meadow MSTU
Ccala Heights MSTU
Bahia Oaks MSTU
Boardman MSTU
Deoublegate MSTU
Hickory Hills MSTU
Raven Hills MSTU
Churchill Subdivision MSTU
Little Lake Weir MSTU
Rainbow's End MSTU
Marion Caks MSTU
Citrus Park MSTU
Boulder Hill MSTU
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
QOver (Under) Expendifures

OTHER FINANCING SCURCES {USES)
Transfers In
Total Other Financing
Sources and {Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)

$ 825,737 3 946,607 3 120,870
18,784 3125 (16,659)

- 7,886 7,886

845,521 857,618 112,087
7,733 2,781 4942
37,864 3,088 34,778
27,944 12,812 15,132
14,855 3,357 11,498
3,500 2,233 1,267

6,811 2,045 4,766
10,570 2,087 8,503
8,726 2,092 6,634
132,308 11,971 120,338
37,008 1,757 35,251
1,820,452 812,572 807,880
15,868 4,262 11,606
9,897 1,108 8,792
1,833,537 862,152 1,071,385
{1,088,016) 95,466 1,183,482
1,677 1,677 .
1,677 1,677 -
{1,086,339) 97,143 1,183,482
1,086,339 1,629,433 543,094
$ - $ 1,726,576 § 1,726,578




MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

STCRMWATER PROGRAM

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

REVENUES
Special Assessments
Intergovernmental Revenues
Charges for Services
Investment Income
Miscellaneous Revenues
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Physical Environment
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over {(Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SCURCES {USES)
Transfers In
Transfers {Out)

Total Other Financing
Sources and {Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)
3603573 3 3,848,201 244628
1,745,767 136,839 {1608,828)
- 8,080 8,080
155,800 35,094 {120,706)
- 2,679 2,679
5,505,140 4,030,873 {1474,267)
15,832 486 4,247 612 11,584,874
15,832 486 4,247 612 11,584,874
(10,327,346 {216,739) 10,110,607
7477 7.477 .
(1,377) {1,377) -
6,100 6,100 -
(10,321,246) (210,639) 10,110,607
10,321,246 13,506,044 3,274,798
- § 13,385,405 % 13,385,405

136



MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

MSTU/MSBU FOR GENERAL SERVICES

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

REVENUES
Special Assessments
Investment Income
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
Tompkins and Georges Addition
Country Estates Buffington Addition
Wingherry MSTU
Golden Hills MSTU
Delcrest MSTU
Bellaire MSTU
Hamlet at Sherman Caks MSBU
Tetal Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)
54882 3 55,483 601
2,708 263 {2,443)
57,588 55746 {1,842)
17,296 7,603 9,693
3,223 1,687 1,526
10,550 2,629 7,921
114,638 14,099 100,539
12,125 1,213 10,912
8,989 1,796 7,193
18,182 12,586 6,596
186,003 41,623 144,380
(128,415} 14,123 142,538
(128,415) 14,123 142,538
128,415 138,584 10,168
- $ 152,707 152,707

157



MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
CLERK CF THE CIRCUIT COURT TRUST FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Positive
Budget Actual Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Charges for Services $ 809,88¢C % 1,351,048 & 541,168
Investment Income 17,300 1,772 (15,528)
Total Revenues 827,180 1,352,820 525,640
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 737,362 276,738 460,624
Court-Related 1,533,614 1,083,151 450,463
Total Expenditures 2,270,976 1,358,889 911,087
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
QOver (Under) Expendifures {1,443 796) {7,069) 1,436,727
Net Change in Fund Balance {1,443,796) {7,069) 1,436,727
Fund Balance - Beginning 1,443,798 1,748,584 305,788
Fund Balance - Ending $ - § 1,742,515 & 1,742,515
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NCONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
September 30, 2021

Public Special Special Special
Improvement Assessment Assessment Assessment
Transportation Bonds, Series  Bonds, Series  Bonds, Series
Debt Service 2012A 2013A 2014A
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2803257 $ 163,215 § 196,410 § 133,058
Special Assessments Receivable - - 25,183 399,830
Due from Other Funds - 831 1,324 3,598
Total Assets 3 2,803,257 § 154,046 % 222,917 % 537,385
DEFERRED [NFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Assessments $ - % - % 25,183 § 389,839
Total Deferred Inflows
of Resources - - 25,183 380,839
FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:
Debt Service Reserve 2,803,257 154,046 197,734 137,556
Total Fund Balances 2,803,257 154,046 197,734 137,556

Total Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balances % 2803257 § 154,046 % 222917 % 537,395
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Special Special Special Special Special Total

Assessment Assessment Assessment Assessment Assessment Nonmajor
Bonds, Series  Bonds, Series  Bonds, Series  Bonds, Series  Bonds, Series Debt Service
2015A 2018A 2017A 2018A 2021A Funds

16,847 $ 77,338 % 75,768 $ 154,356 $ 5729 % 3,616,878
60,655 312,620 741,805 585,961 1,750,318 3,886,381

- - - - 7,267 13,020

77502 § 389,058 $ 817,573 § 750,317 § 1,763314 § 7,516279
60,655 % 312,620 % 741,805 % 595861 3 1,750,318 § 3,886,381
60,655 312,620 741,805 585,961 1,750,318 3,886,381
16,847 77,338 75768 154,356 12 996 3,629,898
16,847 77,338 75768 154 356 12,996 3,629,898

77,502 % 389,958 3 817,573 % 750317 § 1763314 § 7,516279
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

REVENUES

Taxes

Special Assessments

Investment Income
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Debt Service
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Total Expenditures
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over {Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Total Other Financing
Sources (Lises)

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending

Public Special Special Special
Improvement Assessment Assessment Assessment
Transportation Bonds, Series  Bonds, Series  Bonds, Series
Debt Service 2012A 2013A 2014A
$ 3,810,563 § - % - % -
- 221,434 246 926 365,708
705 231 248 257
3,811,268 221,662 247 172 365,965
3,085,000 175,068 154,245 323,083
826,268 8,083 10,610 32,452
3,811,268 183,151 164,855 355,536
- 38,511 82,317 10,430
- 38,511 82,317 10,430
2,803,257 115,535 115,417 127 126
3 2803257 % 154045 % 197,734 % 137 556
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Special Special Special Special Special Total

Assessment Assessment Assessment Assessment Assessment Nonmajor
Bonds, Series  Bonds, Series  Bonds, Series  Bonds, Series  Bonds, Series Debt Service
20158A 2016A 2017A 20119A 2021A Funds

-3 -8 -8 -3 - % 3,910,563
34,661 149,643 193,430 145,430 12,996 1,370,225
35 122 154 135 - 1,885
34,696 148,765 183,584 145 565 12 996 5282673
31,863 120,747 180,850 84,176 - 4,155,232
4,276 12,533 24 444 21,417 - 940,083
36,239 133,280 206,394 105,593 - 5085315
{1,543} 16,485 {11,810) 39872 12 996 187 358
- - - 65719 - 65719
- - - 65,719 - 65,719
{1,543) 16,485 {11,810} 105,691 12,996 253077
18,380 60,853 87 578 48665 - 3,376,821

16,847 § 77,338 & 75768 § 154356 % 12986 § 3,629,808
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT TRANSPCRTATICON DEBT SERVICE

REVENUES
Taxes
Investment Income
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Debt Service
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Miscellaneous
Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -

Actual Positive

Budget Amounts {Negative)
5 3,873,518 & 3,910,563 % 37,045
38,000 705 {37,295)
3,811,518 3,911,268 {250)
3,085,000 3,085,000 -
826,518 826,268 250
2,803,257 - 2,803,257
6,714,775 3,911,268 2,803,507
{2,803,257) - 2,803,257
(2,803,257} - 2,803,257
2,803,257 2,803,257 -
5 - 3 2,803,257 % 2,803,257
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2012A
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Actual Positive
Budget Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES
Special Assessments 5 215628 % 221431 % 5,803
Investment Income 237 231 {8)
Total Revenues 215,865 221,662 5797
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service
Principal Retirement 323,315 175,068 148,247
Interest and Fiscal Charges 8,086 8,083 3
Total Expenditures 331,401 183,151 148,250
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (115,536} 38,511 154,047
Net Change in Fund Balance (115,536) 38,511 154,047
Fund Balance - Beginning 115,536 115,535 {1)
Fund Balance - Ending $ -~ % 154046 § 154 046
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2013A
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Actual Positive
Budget Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES
Special Assessments 5 242033 % 246,926 $ 4,883
Investment Income 237 246 9
Total Revenues 242 270 247172 4,902
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service
Principal Retirement 347,078 154,245 192,833
Interest and Fiscal Charges 10,610 10,610 -
Total Expenditures 357,688 164,855 192,833
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (115,418) 82,317 197,735
Net Change in Fund Balance (115,418} 82,317 197,735
Fund Balance - Beginning 115,418 115,417 {1)

Fund Balance - Ending $ -~ % 187,734 § 197,734
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2014A
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Actual Positive
Budget Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES
Special Assessments 3 353,271 % 365708 % 12,437
Investment Income 1,425 287 {1,168)
Total Revenues 354 896 385,065 11,269
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service
Principal Retirement 448371 323,083 126,288
Interest and Fiscal Charges 32,452 32,452 -
Total Expenditures 481,823 355,535 126,288
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (127121 10,430 137,587
Net Change in Fund Balance (127,127} 10,430 137,557
Fund Balance - Beginning 127,127 127,126 {1)
Fund Balance - Ending $ -~ % 137556 % 137,556
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2015A

REVENUES
Special Assessments
Investment Income
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Debt Service
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Actual Positive
Budget Amounts {Negative)

5 33,548 % 34661 % 1,113
142 35 {107)
33,890 34,686 1,006
47,805 31,883 15,842
4,276 4,276 -
52,081 36,238 15,842
{18,381) {1,543} 16,848
{18,381) {1,543) 16,848
18,391 18,380 {1)
$ - § 16,847 § 16,847
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2016A
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Actual Positive
Budget Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES
Special Assessments 5 145344 § 149643 % 4,289
Investment Income 712 122 {590)
Total Revenues 148,058 149,785 3,709
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service
Principal Retirement 194 376 120,747 73,629
Interest and Fiscal Charges 12,634 12,633 1
Total Expenditures 206,910 133,280 73,630
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures {60 854} 16,485 77,339
Net Change in Fund Balance {60,854) 16,485 77,339
Fund Balance - Beginning 60,854 60,853 {1)
Fund Balance - Ending $ -~ % 77338 % 77,338
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2017A
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Actual Positive
Budget Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES
Special Assessments 3 187,148 & 193430 % 6,281
Investment Income 11,822 154 {11,768)
Total Revenues 198,071 183,584 {5,487)
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service
Principal Retirement 262,205 180,950 81,255
Interest and Fiscal Charges 24 445 24,444 1
Total Expenditures 286,650 205,394 51,256
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures {87,579) (11,810} 75,769
Net Change in Fund Balance {87,579) (11,810} 75,769
Fund Balance - Beginning 87,579 87,578 {1)

Fund Balance - Ending $ -~ % 75,768 % 75,768
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BCNDS, SERIES 2019A
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with

Budget -
Actual Positive
Budget Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES
Special Assessments 5 140,800 § 145430 % 4,630
Investment Income 478 135 {340)
Total Revenues 141,275 145,565 4,230
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service
Principal Retirement 234,242 84,178 150,066
Interest and Fiscal Charges 21418 21,417 1
Total Expenditures 255,660 105,593 150,087
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (114,385) 39,872 154,357
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers [n 65,719 85,718 -
Total Other Financing
Sources and (Uses) 65,719 65,719 “
Net Change in Fund Balance (48,666) 105,681 154,357
Fund Balance - Beginning 48,666 48 865 {1)

Fund Balance - Ending $ - 8 154356 % 154 356
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
September 30, 2021

Public
Improvement
Transportation
Parks Capital Surtax Capital Capital
Projects Fund Projects Projects
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 264,224 % 84471 % 557,233
Total Assets 3 264,224 $ 64471 % 557,233
Liabilities
Accounts Payable 5 - % 10,685 % -
Contracts Payable “ 28,831 “
Due to Other Governments “ “ “
Total Liabilities - 39,516 -
FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:
Infrastructure - 24 6085 -
Parks and Recreation 263,810 “ “
Road Construction “ “ 556,217
Assigned to:
Infrastructure - 350 -
Parks and Recreation 414 “ “
Road Construction “ “ 1,016
Total Fund Balances 264,224 24,855 557,233
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 264224 % 84471 % 557,233
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Special Special
Assessment Assessment Total Nonmajor
Bonds, Series Bonds, Series Capital
2018A 2021A Projects Funds
$ 314,083 3 1,125,043 % 2,325,054
$ 314083 § 1,125,043 § 2,325,054
$ - $ 228653 $ 239,338
- 11,000 39,831
3,129 - 3,129
3,128 235,653 282,298
- - 24,605
- - 263,810
310,524 885,236 1,751,977
- - 350
- - 414
430 154 1,600
310,854 885,350 2,042,756
$ 314,083 3 1,125,043 % 2,325,054




MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
CCOMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GCVERNMENTAL FUNCS - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Public
Improvement
Transportation
Parks Capital  Surtax Capital Capital
Projects Fund Projects Projects
REVENUES
Special Assessments 5 -3 - § -
Investment Income 414 350 1,016
Total Revenues 414 350 1,016
EXPENDITURES
Current;
Transportation . - .
Debt Service
Interest and Fiscal Charges - - -
Capital Cutlay - 288,307 177,263
Total Expenditures - 288,307 177,263

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over {Under} Expenditures 414 (287,857) (176,247}

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (Out) - - -
Issuance of Notes/Bonds Payable - - -
Total Other Financing
Sources and (Uses) - - -

Net Change in Fund Balances 414 (287,857) (176,247)
Fund Balances - Beginning 263,810 312812 733,480
Fund Balances - Ending $ 264224 % 24855 % 557,233
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Total

Special Special Nonmajor
Assessment Assessment Capital
Bonds, Series  Bonds, Series Projects

2019A 2021A Funds

$ - % 460,273 % 460,273
430 154 2,384

430 460,427 462,637

37,148 - 37,148

- 15,453 15,453

827 1,351,145 1,817,542

37,975 1,366,588 1,870,143
(37,545) {808,171) (1,407,508)
(65,719) - (85,719)

- 1,791,561 1,791,561

(65,719) 1,791,561 1,725,842
(103,264) 885,390 318,336
414,218 - 1,724,420

3 310,954 § 885,380 § 2,042,756
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
PARKS CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with
Budget -
Actual Positive
Budget Amounts {Negative}
REVENUES
Investment Income $ - % 414 % 414
Total Revenues - 414 414
EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay 244 837 - 244 937
Total Expenditures 244 937 - 244 937
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Cver {Under) Expenditures (244,937 414 245 351
Net Change in Fund Balance (244,937} 414 245351
Fund Balance - Beginning 244 937 263,810 18,873

Fund Balance - Ending 5 - % 2684224 % 264,224
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
SURTAX CAPITAL PRCJECTS FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with
Budget -
Actual Positive
Budget Amounts {Negative}
REVENUES
Investment Income $ - § 350 § 350
Total Revenues - 350 350
EXPENDITURES
Capital Qutlay 288,307 288,307 -
Total Expenditures 288,307 288,307 -
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Cver {Under) Expenditures (288,307 (287,957 350
Net Change in Fund Balance (288,307) (287,957} 350
Fund Balance - Beginning 288,307 312,912 24,805

Fund Balance - Ending 5 - % 24855 §% 24,855
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
PUBLIC IMPRCVEMENT TRANSPORTATICN CAPITAL PROJECTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with
Budget -
Actual Positive
Budget Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES
Investment Income 5 - % 1018 % 1,018
Total Revenues - 1,016 1,016
EXPENDITURES
Capital Qutlay 983,899 177,263 816,636
Total Expenditures 983,898 177,263 816,636
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over {Under} Expenditures (993,899) (176,247) 817,652
Net Change in Fund Balance (593,899) (176,247} 817852
Fund Balance - Beginning 093,899 733,480 (260,419)
Fund Balance - Ending 5 - % 557,233 % 557,233
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2019A

For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

REVENUES
Special Assessments
Investment Income
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Transportation
Debt Service:
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over {Under} Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SQURCES {USES)
Transfers (Out)
Total Other Financing
Sources {Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

Variance with

Budget -

Actual Positive

Budget Amounts {Negative}
$ 87,060 § - § {87,080}
950 430 (520
88,010 430 {§7 ,580)
40,000 37,148 2,852
68,000 - 68,000
24 141 827 23,314
132,141 37,875 94,166
(34,131) {37,545) (3.414)
(65,719) {65,719) -
(65,719) {65,719) -
(99,850) (103,264} (3,414)
89,850 414,218 314,368
$ - § 310,854 § 310,854
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISCN SCHEDULE
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BCNDS, SERIES 2021A
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Variance with
Budget -
Actual Positive
Budget Amounts {Negative}
REVENUES
Special Assessments b - % 480273 % 460,273
Investment Income - 154 154
Total Revenues - 460,427 460,427
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service:
Interest and Fiscal Charges - 15,453 {15,453)
Capital Cutlay 2,235,587 1,351,145 884,442
Total Expenditures 2,235,587 1,366,598 868,88%
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Cver {Under) Expenditures (2,235,587} (906,171} 1,328,418
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Issuance of Notes/Bonds Payable 2,235,587 1,791,561 (444,026
Total Other Financing
Sources {Uses) 2,235 587 1,791,561 (444 026)
Net Change in Fund Balance - 585,390 885,390
Fund Balance - Beginning - - -
Fund Balance - Ending $ - % 585,390 % 885,390
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

CUSTODIAL FUNDS

Custodial funds are used tc account for assets held by the County as a fiduciary for individuals, private
crganizations, and other governments.

Clerk of the Circuit Court and Comptroller

Used to account for resources received and held by the Clerk in a custedial capacity. These resources
represent fines, forfeitures, and filing fees collected for other governmental agencies and support
payments, jury and witness services, and posted bonds collected for individuals.

Sheriff

Used to account for the assets held by the Sheriff for individuals such as prisoner's funds, confiscated
menies held as evidence, and prepayments of the Sheriff's fees for serving papers.

Tax Collector
Used to account for property taxes, tourism taxes and fees for licenses.
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBIING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
CUSTCDIAL FUNDS
As of September 30, 2021

Clerk of the Total
Sheriff Circuit Court Tax Collector Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalenis $ 2453781 % 0,666,186 % 9,041,571 % 21,181 551
Accounis Receivable - 13,091 298,273 311,364
Cue From Individuals 224,738 “ 195,787 420,526
Cue From Other Governments 3 18 378,920 378,841
Total Assets 2678,533 9,679,298 9,814,551 22272382
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable - 175 - 175
Due to Other Governments 3,302 1,513,213 - 1,516,515
Cue to Individuals 13,809 g28 “ 14,837
Total Liabilities 17,211 1,514,316 - 1,531,527
NET POSITION
Restricted for Individuals,
Organizations and Other
Governments $ 2661322 % 8,164,982 § 9,814,551 % 20,740,855
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MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA

COMBIING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

ADDITIONS

Amcunts Collected for Fines and

Fees

Amounts Collected for Courls

Amcunts Collected for Tax Deed
and Foreclosure Sales

Property Taxes and Fees Collected
for Governments

Property Taxes and Fees Collected
for Individuals

Tourist Development Taxes Collected

License and Tag Fees Collected

Individual Centributions

Other Taxes and Fees Collected
Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS
Paymentis to Other Governments
Payments tc Other Funds
Property Taxes and Fees Distributed
Tourist Development Taxes
Distributed
License and Tag Fees Distributed
Payments to Other Entities
Payments to Individuals

Total Deductions

Change in Fiduciary Net Position

NET POSITION - BEGINNING
OF YEAR, RESTATED

NET POSITION - ENDING

CUSTODIAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2021

Clerk of the Total

Sheriff Circuit Court Tax Collector Funds
$ - $ 56858818 % - $ 56858618
- 18,457,766 - 18,457,766
- 12,142 677 - 12142677
- - 203,695,429 203,695,429
- - 24,543 082 24,543,082
- - 3,753,512 3,753,512
- - 49,882,406 49 982 406
3,489,239 - - 3,489.239
259,805 - - 259,805
3,759,044 87,459,081 281,975,329 373,183,434
913,804 56 388,526 - 57,302,330
- 243,621 - 243 621
- - 227 638,979 227,638,879
- - 3,507,218 3,507,218
- - 49,848,227 49,948 227
512,898 - - 512,898
1,361,414 28,708,528 - 30,159,843
2,788,116 85 430,678 281,094 424 369,313,216
970,828 2,028,385 880,005 3,880,218
1,680,394 6,138,597 9,033,646 16,860,637
$ 2681322 % 8164082 § 9,814,551 § 20,740,855
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Schedule 1
Marion County, Florida

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT
{accrual basis of accounting)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2012 2013 2014 2015
Governmental Activities
MNet (nvestment in Capital Assets $ 1335224675 % 1,330,355,327 1,341,050,566 1,343 878,343
Restricted 106,920,759 103,632,320 100,088,086 101,636,838
Unrestricted 22,941,903 10,012,070 16,816,579 (97.214,783)
Total governmental activities nef position $§ 1469087337 % 1,444 038,717 1,457 985,231 1,348,300,388
Business.Type Activities
Net Invesiment in Capital Assets 40,789,313 3 42,870,773 48,492 131 52,167 2659
Restricted 6,863,307 6,611,894 6,472,081 5,507,373
Unrestricted 52,111,814 56,388,196 58,633,107 64,048 577
Total business-type activities net position § 99764434 % 105,870,868 113,587,339 122,723,219
Primary Government
MNet (nvestment in Capital Assets 1380013988 § 1,373,266,103 1,389,582.717 1,396,045612
Restricted 113,705,539 110,244,214 106,560,167 108,144,211
Unrestricted 75,132 244 75,400,266 75,449 686 (33,166,206}
Total primary government net position $ 1568851771 & 1,559,910,585 1,571,592,570 1,471,023,617

Note 1: Pror to 2015, amounts have not heen restated for the implementation of GASE 8.
Note 2: Pror to 2018, amounts have not heen restated for the implementation of GASE 75,

Gontinued next page
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2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
1,337,513,605 1,331,043338 $ 1339304810 § 1,352811,222 § 1,380,314816 § 1.381,483048
109.410,519 142,505 391 173,208,945 191,834,430 207,390,748 260.529.971
{163,709,485) (116,379,649) {136,272,496) (158,027.570) (162,737,919} (134,629,577}
1,343,214.639 1357160080 § 1376241259 § 1386618082 § 1424967445 § 1507383442
56,876,267 54,486,340 8 55,857,230 64,908,305 § 87,738136 5 109,221,422
8,257,740 6,186,757 6,285,021 6,324,003 6,494,000 1,462,737
76,262,717 81,603,889 63,537,272 89,400,586 87,315,324 94,695 666
139,396,744 142276986 § 125679523 160,632,864 $ 181547469 § 205379825
1,394 389,892 1,385529,678  $ 1.395,162.040 1417719527  § 1488052752 § 1,490,704,470
115,668,259 148,692,148 179,493,966 198,158,433 213,884,757 261,962,708
(27,446,768) (34,775.766) (72,735,224) (66,626.984) (75,422,585) {39,933.911)
1,482.611,383 1,499,446,066  § 1,501,920782 1547,250,976 § 1606514914 § 1712763267
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Schedule 2
Marion County, Florida

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
{accrual basis of accounting}

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2012 2013 2014 2015
Expenses
Governmental activities:
General government $ 41828873 % 37925988 37322626 42,961,192
Public safety 128,376,964 131,807,580 132,850,801 128,080,673
Physical environment 3,155518 3,661,367 3,268,232 3,312,381
Transportation 36,124,801 38,529,108 35,006,802 39,110,915
Economic environment 4,500,310 4,655,508 6,233,276 3.891.212
Human services 15,225,580 15,011,086 12,944,317 14,562,848
Culture/Recreation 12,250,613 12,107,933 12,239,890 12,044,743
Court related 8,910,479 10,626,062 10,096,193 10,377,601
Interest on long-term debt 3,188,320 3,307,866 2671,126 2,444 752
Total governmental activities expenses $ 255959468 § 257632518 252,833,263 257,786,317
Business-type activities:
Solid waste $ 10,438,774 % 15,546,828 7,385,262 9,083,417
Waste and wastewater 23,956,357 22,352,941 23,836,533 238590 419
Total business-type activities expenses 3 34,385,131 3 37,899,769 31,221,795 33,052,836
Total primary government expenses $ 2903054588 § 20505327287 283,855,058 280,839,153
Program Revenues
Govemmental activities:
Charges for services
General government b 8,598,441 &% 8,508,099 8,643,200 9,031,600
Fublic safety 47,004,298 48,372,460 50,090,680 51359927
Physical environment 3,593,966 3,557,403 3616730 3612337
Transportation 3,433,205 3,644,752 3,363,826 3,172,123
Economic environment 82,355 105,880 169,331 130,723
Human services 646,411 614,575 617,748 785,473
Culture/Recreation 1,251,519 1,284,444 1,576,363 1,777,138
Court related 8,537,269 8,897,947 7,243,228 7.802,887
Total Charges for services 73,147 484 74,998 570 75,311,108 77,772,208
Operating grants and contributions 8,020,277 8,539,451 8,335,073 5,861,610
Capital grants and contnbutions 28,867,761 16,724,520 22.982.897 22,718,320
Total governmental activities program revenues $ 110,035,502 & 100,260,541 106,629,076 106,452,138
Business-type activities:
Charges for services
Solid Waste b 15014024 & 15,061,959 14,781,604 14,087 452
Water and Waste Water 23,767,700 20,784,154 20,404,496 22,940 795
Operating grants and contributions 81,917 56,311 104,173 121,187
Capital grants and contnbutions 2,698,356 6,338,423 1,579,722 4,933,662
Total business-type activities program revenues § 41,501,897 % 42,240,847 36,869,995 42,083,096
Total primary government program revenues $ 151537489 § 142,501,388 143,458,071 148,535,234
Net (Expense) / Revenue
Govemmental activities F (145923866) % (i57371.977) {146,004,187) {151,334,179)
Business-type activities 7,106,866 4,341,078 5,648,200 9,030,260
Total primary government net expense $ (138817,100) $ (153,030,899 (140,355,887} {142,303 819)
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2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
45,740,805 48,773,464 54138021 $ 55074262 56,898,410 82,886,030
147,295,279 157,169,472 171,852,609 203,381,166 224,656,435 200,266,032
2.944.110 3,197,065 3.174,319 3,259,562 5,870,948 3,120,595
40,001,023 39,993,337 41,144,925 43,859,136 47,470,597 30,074,510
3,552,441 3,781,210 6,529,365 5967018 5,897,267 5,592,458
14,615,146 15,742,555 15,657,968 17,808,708 18,969,485 26,086,040
12,195,761 12,480,560 13,231,765 14,161,427 14,333,591 18,638,401
9,876,310 9,928,352 10,553,606 11,596,497 13,218,124 15,376,781
2,042,111 1,886,034 1,870,171 1,701,975 1,501,366 1,161,416
278,262,986 292,952,049 318,152,749 § 356,808,751 383,816,223 385,702,263
3,957,889 14,783,496 38669727 $  15996,730 15,380,327 19,632,592
24,632,788 27,036,467 25,112,382 26,100,267 27,441 495 28,922,402
28,500,677 41,819 963 63,782,108 § 42097027 42,821,825 48,554 994
306,853,663 334,772,012 381,934,858 § 398908778 431,638,048 434,257 257
9,403,817 9,818,745 10,198,383 & 10798574 12,165,556 14,831,876
52,977,793 52,929 908 61,079,855 65,673,103 71,296,362 73,381,991
3,704,041 3,742,106 3,842,382 3,817,438 3,978,150 4,266,386
3,490,136 4,019,687 4,087,892 4,479,923 4,684,771 4,896,265
243710 739,293 950,317 1,978,690 1,008,260 1,362,370
719,304 814,633 652,991 497 084 510,233 537,953
1,810,143 1,772527 1,944,733 2,108,020 708,088 803,779
7,411,956 7,065,377 7,081,852 8,113,463 7,250,224 8,438,123
79,760,900 80,902,276 50,038,405 97,464,295 101,601,644 108,523,763
6,721,007 6,235,120 6,749,282 12,017,226 45,309,256 53,643,685
18,830,824 22,027 841 16,407,735 14,230,992 16,664,827 17,413,189
105,312,731 109,165,237 113,195,422 $ 123712513 163,575,729 179,580,637
14,241,600 14,754,895 15,186,255 $ 14,581,189 15,146,717 16,605,313
23,684,699 25,088,743 24,419,606 25,157 551 26,022,822 27,226,404
131,727 123,244 529,329 23,016,156 1,420,862 1,087,129
3,917,012 2,026 642 4,200,998 8,752,974 16,284,064 23,991,419
41,975,038 41,993,524 44336188 § 71507870 58,874,465 68,910,265
147,287,769 151,158,761 157,531,610 § 195220383 222,450,194 248,490,902
(172,950,255} (183,786,812) (204.957,327) § (233,007,238) (225,240,494) (206,121 ,626)
13,384,361 173 561 (19,445 921) 29,410,843 16,052,640 20,355,271
$  (159.5665,894) (183,613,251) (224.403,248) $ (203.686,395) (209,187,854} (185,766,355)

Gontinued next page
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Schedule 2
Marion County, Florida

CHANGES IN NET POSITION, continued
{accrual basis of accounting)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net

Position
Governmental activities:
Property tax
Sales tax
Infrastructure surtax
Public service tax
Gas fax

Unrestricted state revenue sharing

Tourist Development Tax
Other Taxes

Unrestricted intergovemmental revenues

Investment income
Miscellaneous revenues
Transfers in {out)

Total governmental aclivities

Business-type activities:
Investment income
Miscellangous revenues
Gain on sale of capital assets
Transfers in (out)

Total business-type aclivities
Total primary government
Change in Net Position

Govammeantal activities
Business-type activities

Total primary government

2012 2013 2014 2015
3 85,489,435 i B8, 328,566 52,296,160 87,786,296
16,236,723 17,279,765 18,437,587 19,494 464
2,544 7N 3,167,928 2,835,715 2,664 469
21,082 945 20,300,977 22,780,874 23,5881
6.703.840 7.089.066 7.548.554 8.231,502

934 625 997 044 1.047 211 1,141,077
898,734 BG3, 652 520,135 894 809

528775 506,710 587,730 568,821

1.684 242 774,259 698,913 1,454 047
2,820,454 2.986.050 2,806,794 4,142,891
{18,000 - 1,032,452

$ 149306564 § 142,324,357 149,959,683 161,009,969
$ 566613  $ 235,945 322506 717,363
1,337,170 1,629,411 1,688,416 3336111

. - 67,344 322673

18.000 - (1.032.452)

$ 1921783 § 1765356 2,078,266 3,343,695
$ 151,228347  $§ 144,089,713 152,037,949 164,353,664
§ 3382598 $  (15047.620) 3955514 9,675,790
9.028.649 6.106.434 7,726,471 12,373,955

$ 12411247  $  (8.941,186) 11,661,985 22,049,745

Note 1: Prior to 2013, amounts have not been restated for the implementation of GASB 85,

Note 2: Prior to 2015, amounts have not been restated for the implementation of GASB 68,

Note 3: Prior to 2018, amounts have not been restated for the implementation of GASB 75,

Continued on next page
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2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

5 101,788,214

$ 106,158,714

¥ 114266376

$ 124312658

$ 145,484,422

$ 156,778,555

20,563,787 21,329,279 22,652,641 23,618,331 25,570,607 30,613,208
- 25,710,753 40,791,199 42 537,208 44,270,008 52,561,047

2,574,825 2,677,954 2,309,221 2,056,707 2,047,602 2,074,101
24,484,692 25224690 25582912 26,613,704 25,304,256 27.011,399
8,415.045 8,810,365 9,255.130 9.717.656 9.061.156 10,817,737

2,429 663 2,800,048 3,061,863 2,994,847 2,646,744 3,676,448
504,077 931,243 960,324 977,734 972,607 1,007,449

578.168 418778 502,732 594 649 741 953 866,371
1,614,539 1,912,301 3,528,160 8,174,860 5,636,459 938,282

4,982 687 2,118,841 1,828,389 1,854,169 1,822,096 2,190,819
{481,201) (352,513) (330,866) 2,647 21,847 2,207

§ 167864496 § 197741253 § 224408081 § 243474061 $ 263589857 & 288,537,623
$ 977555  § 808320 § 630562 § 3263895 § 2537961 % 233,327
1,548 980 1,398,310 1,709,116 2,291,414 2,333,923 2,724,703
281.428 147 529 87.143 8,866 11,698 521,262

481201 352,513 330,666 (21,647) (21,647) (2.207)

$ 3289164 $ 2706881 % 2757687 $ 5542528 % 4861935 § 3,477,085

$ 171,153 660

$ 200,447,934

$ 227,165 768

$ 245.016,589

$ 268,451,792

$  262014,708

$ (5,085,759} $ 13,954,441 $ 19,450,754 $ 10,376,823 5 38,349,363 $ 82,415,697
16,673,525 2,880,242 {16,688,234) 34,953,371 20,914,575 23,832,356
b 11,587,766 b 16,834,683 $ 2,762,520 b 45,330,184 $ 58,263,838 $ 106,248,353
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Schedule 3
Marion County, Florida

FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
{modified accrual basis of accounting}

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2012 2013 2014 2015
General Fund
Nonspendable % 1,059,629 % 1,030,386 1,137,245 1,028,667
Restricted - - - -
Committed - - - -
Assigned 21,912,762 17,166,304 12,864,911 11,282,579
Unassigned 16,171,654 13,636,213 13,187 5092 13,209,371
Total general fund % 39,144,045 $ 31832903 27,289,748 % 25520617
All Other Governmental Funds
Nonspendable 1,066,573 1,039.705 940,788 2,120,541
Restricted 129,817,722 118,971,665 108,881,174 104,150,951
Committed 2,918,295 3079598 3,437,058 3552973
Assigned 3,896,581 3481197 2,981,149 2,735,073
Unassigned - - - -
Total all other governmental funds $ 137,699,171 $ 1265672195 116,240,169 $  1125569,538
Total Fund Balance $ 176,843216 $ 158,405,098 143 529917 $ 138,080,155

Continued next page
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2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

1,003,792 1,339,387 1,678,061 1,432,590 1,344,722 1,869,006
12,973,053 15,064,838 14,449 112 16,530,654 17,987,229 38,931,200
14,847,034 14,737,338 16,386 445 15,352,934 21,145,501 35,380,147

$ 28913879 $ 31,131,563 $ 32413618 $ 33316178 $ 40,477 542 $ 76,180,352

1,176,174 4,304,001 2,137,995 4,413,703 2,248 842 5,238,187
101,394,858 131,421,516 166,046,818 183,578,601 202,336,634 262,078,914
3,615,626 3,518,121 2,693,691 3,177,238 3,540,041 3,815,182
629,812 357,419 1,130,250 2,473,201 1,436,820 279,415

$ 106,816,370 $ 139,602,147 $ 172,008,754 $ 183,640,743 § 208,560,346 3 261,500,698

$ 135730249 $ 170,733,710 $ 204,422,372 $ 226,055,821 $ 250,037 888 $ 337,700,050
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Schedule 4
Marion County, Florida

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

{modified accrual basis of accounting)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Revenues
Taxes
Special Assessments
Impact Fees
Permits and Fees

Intergovernmental Revenues

Charges for Services

Judgments and Fines

Court-Related Revenues

Investment Income

Miscellaneous Revenues
Total Revenues

Expenditures
General Government

Public Safety
Physical Environment
Transportation
Economic Environment
Human Services
Culture/Recreation
Court Related
Debt Service:

Principal Retirement

Interest and Fiscal Charges

Bond Issuance Cost

Arbitrage Rebate Expense

Payments to State
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues
Over {Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses}

2012

2013

2014

2015

$ 123,016,382
35,709,142
257,313

2,293 486
39,691,078
29,389,108
1,470,844
7,620,644
1,552,309

5,543 823

$ 116,297,001
36,821,081
86,799
2,344,784
38,127 807
30,690,047
1,831,045
7,716,185
718,563
5,830,762

$ 122,125,493
36,858,818
37,365
3,020,955
356,654,864
30,251,348
3,221,550
6,178,868
621,288
5,389,248

$ 1267659852
36,079,004
29,206
3,280,706
41,447 582
31,906,856
3,154,568
6,819,527
1,266,402
4,914,733

$ 247344129

$ 239,164,054

$ 243,359,787

$ 3255664626

$ 34,030,448
128,830,811
4,338,138
43,356,028
4,879,706
13,887 837
10,821,170
10,153,071

7,973,835
3,319,852

9,966,785

3 33,438,850
130,840,361
4,890,705
31,850,496
4,638,547
15,240,247
10,654,579
10,633,621

7,744 995
3,033,314

6,401,857

3 32,755,800
133,528,310
4,540,140
29,860,589
6,235,487
12,844,874
10,496,965
10,061,813

8,418,398
2,807,225

10,870,480

$ 34,085 800
136,048,147
4,865,228
27,108,323
3,890,676
14,892,391
11,044,561
10,700,023

8,946,105
2,556,839

3,000

8,370,451

§ 272,550 481

$ 2580488572

$ 262,510,179

$ 262,500,644

$  {25215,352)

$  (20,304,518)

$  (19,150,392)

$  (6,845,018)

Transfers In
Transfers {Out)

Issuance of Notes/Bonds Payable
Premium{DiscountjNotes/Bonds
Pmt to Refunded Bond Escrow

Issuance of Capital Lease

Tofal Other Financing Sources {Uses) §

Net Change in Fund Balances

Debt Service as a Percentage
of Non-Capital Expenditures

Continued next page

$ 43,048 872

(43.066,872)
1,913,421

$ 46207803
(46,297.803)
1,866,400

$ 46,053,480
(46,053,480}
3,105,919

1,169,274

$ 46,819,683
(45,787.231)

362,804

1,895,421

3 1,866,400

3 4,275,193

$ 1,395,256

§  (23,319,831)

3 (18,438,118)

$ (14,875199)

$ (5,4498,762)

5.1%

4.8%

5.0%

5.0%
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2016 2017 2018 2018 2020 2021
$ 131,300,862 § 162649284 § 186060242 $ 198578970 § 219825842 $ 240,008,210
36,404,470 38,075,562 40,429,370 40,833,179 42,393,983 43,805,949
14,745 541,334 3,162,053 4,811,280 4,476,634 6,661,164
3,790,634 4,040,087 5,450,134 6,527 532 8,669,765 7,979,364
48,693,915 51,341,555 45,625,000 48,645,574 62,781,460 128,123,800
32,093,631 34,339,034 36,995,993 40,461,007 43,522,944 50,071,239
2,731,617 2,616,631 2,899,160 2,609,306 2,672,949 3,037,999
6,286,526 5,770,112 5,763,763 6,540,551 5,434,460 6,128,184
1,402,160 1,794 424 3,451,499 7,626 684 5,164,043 891,988
7,630,616 5,644,764 5,728,641 7,356,254 6,530,019 7,383,792
$ 270438776 $ 306,812,687 § 335565855 § 363989426 $ 401,362,099 $ 494 081,669
$ 34947481 $ 36528709 $ 39255486 $ 42204404 $ 47,057,950 §  810226,887
139,527,796 143,890,445 168,516,227 173,948,564 185,686,569 206,713 629
4,336,366 5,502,206 5,340,800 5,504,517 4,342,882 5,154 588
31,850,833 31,542,700 24,315,919 33,731,020 40,726,059 30,686,430
3,550,731 3,777,562 6,369,867 5,943,350 5,966,014 5,828,761
14,436,257 15,470,976 15,387,593 18,045,110 19,005,345 27,362,935
12,064,367 12,217,928 12,609,317 12,331,470 12,589,350 12,386,313
9,637,088 9,684,055 11,401,166 11,872,883 13,029,862 13,116,460
5,494,252 5,911,897 7,184,338 5,010,648 11,366,834 4,384,065
1,769,508 1,608,690 1,588,571 1,421,021 1,253,602 986,179
199,723 - - - - -
13,058,123 15,648,397 20,222,093 32,275,979 37,737,678 20,204,858
$ 270,881,525 § 281873,565 $ 302,191,377 § 0342378066 $ 378852154 407,051,095
$  (442749) $ 24939122 $ 33374478 $ 21610460 $ 22509945 § 87,030,574
$ 47084764 $ 50580834 $ 55520136 $ 59909704 $ 64622147 $ 72218651
(47,565,965) (50,933,347) (55,856,490) (59,885,491) (64,596,989) (74,614 683)
34,722,677 2,722,225 - 899,876 - 1,791 561
(36,148,633) - - - - -
- 7,694,627 641,539 - 545,864 1,236,059
$  (1007157) & 10064339 312184 § 024089 % 571022 $ 631,588
$  (2,349906) $ 35003461 $ 33688662 $ 225634540 § 23080967 § 87662162
3.2% 3.2% 3.4% 2.3% 4.1% 1.5%




Schedule §
Marion County, Florida

ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Real Property
Total

Fiscal Commercial Industrial Residential Other Real Persanal
Year Property Property Praperty Praperty Praperty Praperty
2012 2,344,301,512 666,586,806 13,635,679,168 7,577,863,752 24,124,431 238 1,372,246,797
2013 2,257,195,858 642 470,150 12,384,768,178 6,429,240,516 21,713,674 702 1,325,660,677
2014 2,245,878,042 638,224,414 12,329,619,094 6,448,068,463 21,662,690,013 1,365,147,480
2015 2,329,441,506 644 187 014 12,939,236 900 6,632,801,440 22,545 666 860 1,421,016,339
2016 2,399,518,588 656,544,413 13,665,382,174 6,325,204,311 22,946 649 486 1,515,664,515
2017 2,495,097 775 664 873767 14,658,000,047 6,666,030,854 24,484 911,443 1,516,452,408
2018 2,598,668,592 729,127,270 15,497 627 947 6,796,620,780 25,621,844 589 1,619,765,735
2019 2,766,546 981 775,834 691 16,790,586 889 7,118,431,359 27,451,399 920 1,767,860,000
2020 2,850,454,993 892,503,845 18,397,106,629 7,402,190,325 20,642,255792 1,855,737,335
2021 3,111,765226 975438759 19,834,761 5588 7,858,042,024 31,780,007 807 2,014,418,546

Source: Marion County Propery Appraiser.

Notes: Properly is reassessed each year by the Marion County Property Appraiser. Property is assessed
at approximately 100% of actual taxable value. Taxrates are per $1,000 of assessed valuation.

Continued next page
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{1} Centrally assessed propery consists of railroad and telegraph systems which are assessed by
the State of Florida,
{2) Source is the State of Florida, Department of Revenue, Division of Ad Valorem Tax.



Assessed

Centrally Less: Tax Total Taxable Total Actual Value as a
Assessed Exempt Assessed Direct Taxable Percentage of
Property {1} Total Property Value Tax Rate Value Actual Value {2)
15,044,813  25511,722,848  10,577,005055  14,934717,793 3.89 15,255,074,354 87.90%
18,381,187  23,057,716,566 9,134,245 468 13,823,471,008 3.89 13,937,408 507 89.90%
19,163,005  23,046,990,498 9,157 851,800 13,889,138,689 3.90 14,363,121,705 96.70%
20,017,720 23,986,700,919 9,638,477 242 14,347 223,677 3.00 14,945,024 664 86.00%
20,342,991 24,482,656,992 9,516,091,825 14,865,665,167 3.00 15,887,118,012 84.20%
21,820,066  26,023,183,817 10,414,753 885  15,608430,032 3.89 16,499,397 497 94.60%
22,705,975  27,264306,298 10,754,784 388 16,509,521 801 402 17,544,656 643 94.10%
24,223,011 29,243 582,931 11,639,428, 418  17,604,154,513 3.08 19,052,115,274 $2.40%
22,087,858  31,520,080,985 12675380478 18,844 700,507 4,42 20,284,930,678 92.90%
25,881,069  33,820,315,222  13,611,500,002  20,308,814,720 4,42 21,536,388,887 94.30%
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Schedule 6
Marion County, Florida

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES (1)(2)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2012 2013 2014
Board of County Commissioners:
General Fund 3.1900 3.1800 3.1900
Find and Forfeiture Fung 0.5300 0.5300 0.5300
Marion County Health Department Fund 0.1200 0.1200 0.1200
Parks and Land Acquisition Debt Service Fund 0.0500 0.0500 0.0800
Total General County 3.8900 3.8800 3.9000
District School System:
I Local Required Effor 5.4600 5.4230 5.0010
Il Local Discretionary Use 0.7480 0.7480 0.7480
1l Building Fund 1.5000 1.5000 1.5000
V Additional Voted Millage - - -
Total Schocl System 7.7080 76710 7.33390
Total County-Wide 11.5980 11.5610 11.2380
Special Districts:
Rainbow Lakes Estates MSD(3) 2.2500 2.2500 2.2500
MSTU for Law Enforcement{4) 2.8100 2.8100 3.2100
Silver Springs Shores Special Tax District 3.0000 3.0000 3.0000
MSTU-Emergency Medical Service(4) 0.7700 0.7700 0.7700
Rainbow Lakes Estates CRF MSBU (5) 0.3800 0.4700 0.4700
Marion Caks MSTU for Fire Protection{4) 1.0200 1.0200 1.0200
Hills of Ocala MSTU for Recreation{4) 0.1800 0.1800 0.1800

Notes: (1) Marion County Property Appraiser (Primary Millage Rates).
(2) Rates are stated as an amount per $1,000 of assessed value.
{3y MSD is an acronym for Municipal Service District.

{4y M3TU is an acronym for Municipal Service Taxing Unit.

{5}

MSBLU is an acronym for Municipal Service Benelit Unit.

Continued next page
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205 2016 2017 2018 2018 2020 2021

3.1900 3.1800 3.1800 3.3300 3.3300 3.4500 3.4500
0.6300 0.56300 0.56300 0.5300 0.6300 0.8500 0.8500
0.1200 0.1200 0.1200 0.1200 0.1200 0.1200 0.1200
0.0600 0.0800 0.0500 0.0400 - - -
3.8000 3.2000 3.8800 4.0200 3.8800 4.4200 4.4200
5.0500 4.9240 4.6540 4.3120 4.0710 3.9360 3.7700
0.7480 0.7480 0.7480 0.7480 0.7480 0.7480 0.7480
1.6000 1.5000 1.5000 1.5000 1.6000 1.6000 1.5000
- 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000
7.2080 8.1720 7.8020 7.5600 7.3190 7.1840 7.0180

11.1980 12.0720 11.7820 11.5800 11.2980 11.6040 11.4380

2.2500 2.2500 2.2500 2.2500 2.2500 2.2500 2.2500
3.4700 3.4700 3.4700 3.4700 3.7200 3.7200 3.7200
3.0000 3.0000 3.0000 3.0000 3.0000 3.0000 3.0000
0.7700 0.7700 0.7700 0.7700 0.7700 1.1100 1.1100
0.4700 0.4700 0.4700 0.4700 0.4700 0.4700 0.4700
1.0200 1.0200 1.0200 1.0200 1.0200 1.0200 1.0200

0.1800 0.1800 0.1800 0.1800 0.1800 0.1800 0.1800
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Schedule &
Marion County, Florida

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES {1){2) (CONTINUED)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2012 2013 2014

Southwest Florida Water Management District:

District Levy 0.3928 0.3928 0.3818
St. Johns River Water Management District:

District Levy 0.3313 0.3313 0.3283
Municipalities:

Ocala 58332 6.1502 6.2502

Ocala {Downtown Development District "A™) 1.5862 1.6461 1.5067

Qcala (Downtown Development District "B") 1.6191 1.6542 1.7013

Ocala {Downtown Development District "C") 11772 1.2332 1.2810

Belleview 3.0912 3.8912 3.8912

Dunnelion 7.1408 6.8013 7.1408

Mclintosh 2.2988 2.5546 2.5198

Notes:  The County's basic property tax rate may be increased only by a majority vole of the County's residents,
Rates for debt service are set based on each year's requirements.
{1} Marnon County Property Appraiser {Primary Millage Rates).
(2) Rates are stated as an amount per $1,000 of assessed value,

Continued next page

200



2015 2016 2M7 2018 2019 2020 2021

0.36568 0.3488 0.3417 0.3131 0.2965 0.2801 0.2669
0.3164 0.3023 0.2885 0.2724 0.2562 0.2414 0.2287
6.1638 68.6177 6.6177 6.6177 6.6177 68.6177 6.6177
1.4966 1.4066 1.7185 17185 1.7185 1.7185 1.7185
1.6332 1.6332 1.6332 1.6332 1.6332 1.6332 1.6332
1.2825 1.2825 1.5091 1.6081 1.6081 1.4699 1.4699
3.8012 4.5000 4.5000 5.0000 5.0000 5.0000 5.0000
7.5000 7.5000 7.5000 6.5000 6.5000 6.5000 6.5000
2.4087 2.3175 2.2078 2.2078 2.2078 2.2078 2.1107
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Schedule 7

Marion County, Florida

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Fiscal Year 2021 (a)

Fiscal Year 2012 {b)

Percent Percent
of Total of Total
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Taxpayer Value Value Rank Value Value Rank
Duke Energy 241,493,529 .19 % 1 $ 158,351,160 1.068 % 1
Sumiter Electric Coop, Inc. 142,519 368 0.70 % 2 106,125,594 070 % 2
Marion Community Hospital 105,364 870 052 % 3 45 856,814 031 % 7
Sabal Trail Transmission LLC 93,845 215 0.46 % 4
Wal-Mart 84,608,472 042 % 5 70,345,322 0.47 % 4
FedEx Ground Package 81,144 571 0.40 % 6
On Top of the World 78,707 621 039 % 7 48,230,322 032 % 6
Cardinal LG Company 78,548 087 039 % 8
655 West 52 Avenue LLC 58,513,631 0290 % 9
Embarg Florida INC 55,599,153 0.27 % 10 99,100,365 066 % 3
Paddock Mall Associates 35,524 006 0.24 % 8
K-Mart Distribution 54,489,713 036 % 5
Fla Gas Transmission Co 32,154,084 022 % 9
Clay Electric 31,589,716 0.21 % 10
Sub-total 1,020,342 417 502 % $ 880,777,996 456 %
All others 19,288,472 303 94.98 % $ 14,253,939,797 9544 %
Totals 20,308,814,720 100.00 % $ 14834717783 100.00 %
Source:  Marion County Property Appraiser.
Notes: {a) The fiscal year ended Seplember 30, 2021 tax levy is based on the 2020 taxable value.

{b} The fiscal year ended Seplember 30, 2012 tax levy is based on the 2011 taxable value.
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Schedule 8
Marion County, Florida

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Percent
Fiscal Total Current Tax of Levy
Year Tax Lewy Collections Collected
2012 98,571,292 94,771,156 96.1 %
2013 91,425,614 87,636,400 959 %
2014 95,169,348 91,853,600 96.3 %
2015 101,010,439 97,115,097 96.1 %
2016 104,950,636 100,844,671 96.1 %
2017 109,414,067 105,410,583 96.3 %
2018 117,801,974 113,496,674 96.3 %
2019 128,381,171 123,727,197 96.4 %
2020 150,509,299 144,960,218 96.3 %
2021 162,150,322 156,004,275 96.2 %
Source;:  Marion County Tax Collector.

203

Delinquent Total Collections
Tax Total Tax as a Percent

Collections Collections of Current Levy
718,279 95,489,435 969 %
692,166 88,328,566 966 %
642,560 92,296,160 97.0 %
671,198 97,786,295 96.8 %
853,543 101,798,214 97.0 %
748,131 106,158,714 97.0 %
769,702 114,266,376 97.0 %
585,462 124,312,658 96.8 %
534,204 145,494,422 96.7 %
774,280 156,778,555 96.7 %



Schedule 9
Marion County, Florida

RATIOS OF OQUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Other Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities

General Half Cent Special Notes from Notes from
Fiscal Obligation Sales Tax Assessment Direct Utility System Direct
Year Bonds Revenue Bonds Bonds Borrowings  Revenue Bonds ~ Borrowings
2012 3,995,000 61,815,000 12,239,420 - 73,110,000 26,137,581
2013 3,400,000 56,518,574 12,060,829 - 72,537,132 24 838,452
2014 2,780,000 51,273,174 12,623,352 1,169,274 60,628,402 28,044,983
2015 2,130,000 45 520,600 10,234 677 1,394,649 66,684 673 26,575,144
2018 1,450,000 45 806,700 8,354,821 1,067,028 61,545,943 25,068,723
2017 740,000 43,317,800 8,841,093 8,416,611 59,747,213 23,524,761
2018 - 40,573,900 6,602,677 7,637,228 56,313,484 21,042,261
2019 - 37,740,000 5,876,655 7,027,578 52,804,755 20,320,206
2020 - 34,760,000 4,474,207 688,956 49,211,026 18,657,545
2021 - 31,675,000 5,195,537 1,606,192 55,635,000 18,970,376
Sources: Population and personal income data from University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business

Research, The Bureau of the Census, and The Bureau of Economic Analysis. See schedule 12

Notes: Details regarding the County's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial

statements.

Prior year data reflects source data updates.
Per Capita income and population for Fiscal Year 2021 was not available at time of report.
The caleulation for 2021 per capita income is a 5.38% CPI increase over 2020 year.
Source of CPlis U.S. Depariment of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics.

Debt limitation-there are no legal debt limits for Florida munigipalities.

The County had no overlapping debt with other governments.

Continued next page
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Total Marion County Percentage of

Primary Personal Personal Per
Government Income Income Capita
177,297,001 10,617,018,300 1.7 % 531
169,344,987 10,474,416,952 1.6 % 505
165,519,185 11,025,052,941 1.5 % 490
152,539,743 11,496,203,670 1.3 % 448
143,384,115 12,000,048,102 1.2 % 412
144,587 478 12,634,417,523 1.1 % 409
133,069,550 13,318,069,089 1.0 % 370
123,869,094 13,662,642,230 0.8 % 344
107,791,734 14,290,264,430 0.8 % 293
111,384,322 16,692,840,568 0.7 % 292
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Schedule 10
Marion County, Florida

RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT QUTSTANDING

Last Ten Fiscal Years

General Bonded Debt

General Less: Amounts Net Percentage of
Fiscal Obligation Available in Debt General Actual Property Per
Year Bonds Service Fund Bond Debt Value Capita
2012 3,995,000 189,139 3,805,861 0.01% 120
2013 3,400,000 86,227 3,314,773 0.01% 105
2014 2,780,000 117,104 2662898 0.01% 82
2015 2,130,000 172,892 1,957,108 0.01% 60
2016 1,450,000 267,001 1,182,909 0.005% 34
2017 740,000 253,959 486,041 0.002% 14
2018 - - - - .
2019 - - - - .
2020 - - - - -
2021 - - - - -
Notes: Details regarding the County's outstanding debt can be found in the notes

to the financial stalements,

1 Taxable value data can be found on the schedule of Assessed Value and Actual
Value of Taxable Property.

2 Population data can be found on the Demographic and Economic Stafistics
schedule,
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Schedule 11
Marion County, Florida

PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Utility System Revenue Bonds

Less: Net Available

Fiscal Gross Operating For Debt Debt Service Requirements

Year Revenues {1} Expenses (2) Service Principal Interest Coverage
2012 25,224 770 10,735,712 14,489 058 3,127,708 4,183,583 1.98
2013 22,369,186 10,104,468 12,264,718 3,829,129 3,216,767 1.74
2014 22,086,023 10,481,549 11,604,474 4,564,267 3,272,564 1.48
2015 26677171 10,590,017 16,087,154 4,304,839 3,346,761 2.190
2018 25,572,951 10,857,915 14,715,036 4,431,420 3,209,859 1.03
2017 26,760,686 13,776,913 12,983,773 3,233,862 2,532,823 2,25
2018 26,413,817 11,622,837 14,790,980 4,907,500 2,534,708 1.09
2019 28,599,331 12,449,893 16,149,438 5,022,055 2,424 298 217
2020 29,254,741 13,115,321 16,139,420 5,147 662 2,288,032 217
2021 30,031,434 13,506,254 16,525,180 5,289,344 2,141,347 2,22
Source: Clerk of the Circuit Court, Finance Department.
Notes: Details regarding the County's cutstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

{1} Gross revenues are defined pursuant to the resolution authorizing the issuance of the bonds (Resolution
Number 83-R-282) as all revenues of the Ulilities System, excluding governmenial grants {and any interest
earned on such grants) and water and sewer connection fees.

{2} Operating expenses are defined pursuant io the resolution authorizing the issuance of the bonds (Resolution
Numbser 93-R-282) as all expenses of the Utilities System, with the exception of interest, depreciation,
deplefion, amontization, or similar expenses.

Continued next page
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Special Assessment Bonds

Half-Cent Sales Tax Revenue Bonds

Special Half-Cent

Assessment Debt Service Requirements Sales Tax Debt Service Requirements

Collections Principal Interest Coverage Revenues Principal Interest Coverage
2637,319 2472437 469,727 0.90 16,236,723 4,925,000 2,594,194 218
2,489,575 2,054,991 423418 1.00 17,279,764 5,095,000 2,417,239 2.30
2,472,353 2,533,396 407,543 0.84 18,437 507 5,265,000 2,233,129 2.46
2,780,374 2,388 675 377,488 1.01 19,494 464 5,770,000 2,047,394 2.49
2,729,848 2,182,532 328,864 1.09 20,563,787 2,295,000 1,303,139 572
2,840,168 2,235,953 269,024 1.13 21,329,279 2,830,000 1,225,272 5.53
2,276,748 2,238,416 232,660 0.92 22,652,641 2,785,000 1,134,012 578
1,890,166 1,525,098 175,666 1.11 23,618,331 2,875,000 1,036,109 6.04
1,881,072 1,502,348 146,085 1.14 24,396,086 2,980,000 931,198 6.24
2,081,186 1,070,231 113,815 1.76 29,170,868 3,085,000 826,268 7.46
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Schedule 12
Marion County, Florida

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Per Capita Personal
Fiscal Personal Income (3} School Unemployment
Year Population {1} Income {1){2) {in thousands) Enrollment {4} Rate {5}
2012 333,900 32,200 10,751,580 41,415 10.30%
2013 335117 31680 10,616,507 41,589 8.60%
2014 338,057 32,850 11,105,172 41632 7.30%
2015 342 335 33,799 11,670,581 42 194 6.10%
2016 347 767 34,862 12,158,630 42,474 6.00%
2017 353717 36,442 12,890,155 42,893 4.10%
2018 350 977 37 497 13,498,058 42,881 3.60%
2019 360,421 38,754 13,967,755 42 818 3.50%
2020 368,135 41,553 15,297 114 43,008 5.30%
2021 381,176 43,783 16,692 841 41,324 4.70%
Sources: (1) The Bureau of Economic Analysis. www.BEA.gov
Population data for 2021 from University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.
(2} Per Capita income for Fiscal Year 2021 was not available at time of report.
The caloulation for 2021 Per Capita Income is 2 5.39% CPl increase from 2020 year,
Source of CPlis U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics.
{3} The per capita figures are muitiplied by the population to determine the personal income.
The actual per capita personal income is for Marion County,
{4}  Marion County Public Schools at www.marion.k12.f.us/
{3} Florida Research and Econemic Information Database at hitp:/ffreida.labormarketinfo.com/
Unemployment rate information is an adjusted yearly average.
Note: Prior year data reflects source data updates.
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Marion County, Florida

Schedule 13

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Fiscal Year 2021

Fiscal Year 2012

Percent Percent

of Total of Total

County County
Employer{1} Business Employees Employment Rank Employees Employment  Rank
Marion County Public Schools Education 7,000 5.06 % 1 6,071 505 % 1
Ccala Health System Healthcare 2712 1.86 % 2 1,725 1.43 % 5
AdventHealth Ocala Healthcare 2,648 1.91 % 3 2,648 220 % 2
State of Florida (All Depts.) Government 2800 188 % 4 2,800 218 % 3
Wal-Mart Retail Sales 2,583 1.87 % 5 2,370 1.87 % 4
Marion County BCC Government 1,658 1.20 % 6 1,462 1.22 % 7
Lockheed Martin Manufacturing 1,800 1.16 % 7 929 077 % 10
FedEx Ground Distribution 1,500 1.08 % 8
Publix Supermarkets Retail Sales 1,488 1.07 % 9 1,488 124 % 6
E-One Inc. Manufacturing 1,200 0.87 % 10
AT&T Communications 1,000 083 % 8
City of QOcala Government 994 083 % 9
Total 24,989 18.05 % 21,287 17.70 %
All Others 113,478 81.95 % 98,981 82.30 %
Total Employment({2) 138,467 100 % 120,268 100 %

Sources:

{1} Top 10 Major Employers from Ocala, Marion County Economic Development Corporation {EDC) at www.ocalaedc.org.

(2) Total Employment numbers from Florida Research and Econemic Information Database Application retrieved from
hitp:/ffreida labormarketinfo.com
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Schedule 14
Marion County, Florida

MARION COUNTY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2012 2013 2014 2015 20186

Governmental Activities:

(General Government

1 Board of County Commissioners 164 169 180 180 182

1 Clerk of the Circuit Court 64 59 64 65 67

2 Supervisor of Elections 15 13 15 16 15

3 Tax Collector 120 119 122 117 118

4 Property Appraiser 54 54 53 53 52

Public Safety

5 Marion County Sheriff 768 760 714 718 708

1 Board of County Commissioners 873 687 894 701 721

Physical Environment

1 Board of County Commissioners 26 29 32 33 33

Transportation

1 Board of County Commissioners 171 171 170 170 171

Economic Environment

1 Board of County Commissioners 18 14 14 14 15

Human Services

1 Board of County Commissioners 57 59 58 58 55

Culture / Recreation

1 Board of County Commissioners 158 158 170 169 162

Court Related

1 Board of County Commissioners 21 21 23 22 22

1 Clerk of the Circuit Court 135 145 136 132 131
Business-type Activities:

1 Solid Waste 71 58 58 56 54

1 Water and Wastewater 93 95 g3 95 95

Total 2,608 2,612 2,596 2,599 2,601

Sources:

1 Clerk of the Circuit Court, Budget Department,
2 Marion County Supervisor of Elections.

3 Marion County Tax Collector,

4 Marion County Property Appraiser.

5 Marion County Sheriff,

Continued next page
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2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
183 188 188 196 204
67 65 65 69 71
17 18 18 18 16
125 119 117 120 122
47 47 48 47 47
728 783 790 824 809
694 717 735 810 788
31 31 31 31 32
172 172 190 196 203
15 17 18 16 15
55 57 57 62 63
185 173 172 174 175
20 18 18 18 19
131 135 124 128 120
53 53 59 57 57
97 98 99 99 103
2,601 2,671 2,729 2,865 2,844
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Schedule 15
Marion County, Florida

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Utility System
Number of customers 29,159 29,197 30,382 31,5486 31,923
Average daily flow
{millions of gallons) 963 812 8.88 9.23 10.27
Building Inspections
Building permits issued 12,219 13,081 18,022 16,856 17,438
Law Enforcement
Physical arrests 12,293 9,022 13,251 10,426 8675
Fire
Emergency responses 47,603 66,081 65,696 69,138 74,227
Inspections 1,255 1,254 1,358 447 1,555
Other Public Works
Street resurfacing {miles) 55 21 11 21 12
Ofther street repairs 609,685 428,131 476,351 419,286 181,453
Source: Various County Depariments.
Note: Indicators are not available for the general government function.

Continued next page
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2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
32,121 32,843 33,699 34,755 43,036
10.50 10.20 11.80 10.92 12.77
17,847 21,043 23,397 29,377 34,141
§011 9,362 7,801 7,229 6,582
79,568 79,570 83,063 86,156 87,502
1,662 1,856 2,037 2,323 2,721
15 21 36 47 28
333,190 490,408 370,539 367,709 120,634



Schedule 16
Marion County, Florida

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Transportation
Miles of streets 3,059 3,058 3,075 3,077 3,079
Utility System
Miles of water mains 591 597 608 628 642
Plant Capacity - all plants {millicns) 39 39 42 43 42
Number of fire hydrants 2,195 2,248 2,332 2,421 2,469
Water plants 33 33 35 38 37
Deep wells 59 59 84 66 65
High service pumping stations 8 8 9 9 9
Ground storage tanks 9 9 9 8 8
Ground storage tank capacity
{millions of gallons) 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00
Elevated storage tanks 4 4 4 4 3
Elevated storage tank capacity
{millions of gallons) 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.35
Number of treatment plants 7 8 5 5 5
Daily treatment capacity
{millions of gallons) 2.22 460 4.08 4.08 4.08
Number of lift stations 163 164 163 166 166
Miles of sanitary sewer lines 2186 217 217 224 226
Other Public Works
Traffic signals 111 113 1186 116 116
Public Safety
Fire stations 30 31 30 30 30
Sheriff stations 11 11 11 11 11
Patrol units 451 430 405 428 420
Parks and Recreation
Park acreage 2,462 2,014 2,014 2014 2,002
Number of community parks 37 40 40 40 50

Source: Various County Departiments.

Continued next page
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2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
3,085 3,087 3,088 3,088 3,088
648 650 684 684 809
39 39 39 39 48
2,561 3,253 3131 3,254 3,381
35 37 37 37 59
66 68 68 70 110
8 9 8 9 10
9 9 9 9 10
8.00 8.03 8.03 8.03 875
3 3 3 3 3
1.35 1.35 1.35 1.35 1.35
5 5 5 5 7
225 225 4.08 2.45 4.01
167 170 168 170 180
349 355 350 368 380
125 125 125 125 132
3 31 30 32 33
10 11 10 10 10
457 533 556 572 584
2,479 2,479 2,479 2,479 2,571
51 51 52 62 63
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COMPLIANCE SECTION

This section is presented in accordance with;

* Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States

* The provisions of Office of Management and
Budget {OMB) Uniform Guidance

* Florida Single Audit Act, Chapter 215.97 of
the Florida Statutes

* The Rules of the Auditor General of the State

of Florida, Chapter 10.550

NOILD3S JONVIINGTY




ADDITIONAL ELEMENTS OF REPORT PREPARED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS,
ISSUED BY THE COMPTROLLER GENERAL OF THE UNITED STATES;
THE PROVISIONS OF THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE; AND THE RULES
OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA
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PURVIS GRAY

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTIMG AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AM
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Board of the County Commissioners
Parion County, Florida
Ocala, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of Marion County, Florida (the County) as of and for the year
ended September 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the County's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 14, 2022,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the County’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Countys internal contral.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control.

A deficiency in infernal confrod exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A rmateriol weokness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in internal control, that is less severe
than a material weakness, vet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance,

Cur consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified,

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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The Honorable Board of the County Commissioners
Marion County, Florida
Ocala, Florida

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTIMNG AND ON COMPLIAMNCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements ane free of
material misstaternent, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, non-compliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our test dischosed
no instances of non-compliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Awuditing Stondards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an cpinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal
control or on compliance, This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the County’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose,

“-P WUHL/ C’i! m(j/
March 14, 2022
Ocala, Florida
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PURVIS GRAY

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM AMD STATE PROJECT AND ON INTERMAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIAMCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE; AND
CHAPTER 10.550, RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

The Honorable Board of the County Commissioners
Parion County, Florida
Ocala, Florida

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and 5tate Project

We have audited Marion County, Florida's [the County) compliance with types of compliance requirements
described in the OME Compliance Supplement, and the requirements described in the Department of
Financial Services” State Projects Complionce Supmlement, that could have a direct and material effect on
each of the County's major federal programs and state projects for the year ended September 30, 2021,
The County's major federal programs and state projects are identified in the summary of auditor’s results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and guestioned costs.

Management's Responsibility
Management s responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs and state projects.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility s to express an opinion on compliance for each of the County’s major federal programs
and state projects based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred 1o above, We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Uinited
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Awditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; Title 2 US. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrofive Requirerments, Cost Principles, ond Audit Regquirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance); and Chapter 10550, Rules of the Awditor General. Those standards, the
Liniform Guidance, and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditar General, require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether non-compliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on major federal programs
and state projects occurred, An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County's
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures, as we considered necessary
in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and state project. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the County’s
compliance.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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The Honorable Board of the County Commissioners
Marion County, Florida
Ocala, Florida

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM AND STATE PROJECT AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE; AND
CHAPTER 10.550, RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs and
state projects of the year ended September 30, 2021.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered the County’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program or state project to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance
for each major federal program and state project, and to test and report on internal control over compliance
in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, non-compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal or state project on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material non-compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program or state project will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program or state project that
is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yetimportant enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the County as of and for the year ended September 30, 2021, which collectively comprise
the County’s basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated March 14, 2022, which
contained unmodified opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose
of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements.
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The Honorable Board of the County Commissioners
Marion County, Florida
Ocala, Florida

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAIOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM AMD STATE PROJECT AMD OM INTERMAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE; AND
CHAPTER 10.550, RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance is presented
for the purposes of additional anaklysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and Chapter 10.550, Rules of
the Auvditor General, and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from, and relates directly to, the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The infermation has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to underbying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance i fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The purpose of this report on Internal control over compliance is sobely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the

Uniform Guidance and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Accordingly, this report is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Yo G s
Parch 14, 2032
Dcala, Florida
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND
STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA

{(Contimied)
Federal Grantor / Federal Federal Amount
Pass- Through Grantor / AL Pass Through Expenditures Provided to
Program Title/ Project Title Number Grantor Number Only Subrecipients
U.S. Department of Transportation:
Airport Improvement Program: 20.106 G1K09 91,656 -
Passed through Florida Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 G1U98 6,489
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 G1L92 437 547
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 G1L57 52,865
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 G11L59 25497
Total Highway Planning and Construction Grants 522,398 -
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 614,054 -
U.S. Department of the Treasury:
COVID-19-Emergency Rental Assistance 21.023 N/A 8,855,956 8,855,956
Passed through Flarida Department of Emergency Management:
COVID-19-Coronavirus Relief Fund 21.019 Y2268 33,484,975 19,462,329
Fassed through Florida Housing Finance Corporation
COVID-19-Coronavirus Relief Fund 21.019 N/A 692,636 692,636
Total Coronovirus Relief Fund 34,177 611 20,154,965
Total U.S. Department of the Treasury 43,033,567 29,010,921
Election Assistance Commission:
Passed through Florida Department of Stafe:
Help America Vote Act Requirements Payments 90.401 N/A 291,491 -
Total Election Assistance Commission 291,491 -
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Passed through Flarida Department of Revenuie:
Child Support Enforcement 93.563 N/A 11,535
Child Support Enforcement 93.563 coc42 420,097 -
Total Child Support Enforcement 431,632 -
Total U.S. Department of Health & Human Services 431,632 -
U.S. Department of Homeland Security:
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 97.039 H0399 257228 -
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 97.039 HO0445 85,113 -
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 97.039 HO0446 46,416 -
Total Hazard Mitigation Grant Prpgram 388,757 -
Assistance to Firefighters Grant 97.044 EMW-2019-FG-05521 397273 -
Passed through Flarida Department of Emergency Management:
Emergency Management Performance Grant 97.042 G0326 6,525 -
Emergency Management Performance Grant 97.042 G0129 21472
Emergency Management Performance Grant 97.042 G0113 85927 -
Total Emergency Management Performance Granis 113,924 -
Fassed through Florida Department of Emergency Management:
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 RO054 519 -
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 RO184 96,152 -
Total Homeland Security Grant Program 96,671 -
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 996,625 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS $ 51,334,637 § 33,177,462

226




SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND
STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA

(Continued)
State
State Grantor / State State Amount
Pass-Through Grantor / CSFA State Expenditures Provided to
Program Title/ Project Title Number Identification Number Omly Subrecipients
STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
Florida Department of Fmergency Management:
Emergency Management Programs 31.063 A0130 86,026
Emergency Management Programs 31.063 A0225 1,026
Total Florida Departmment of Emergency Management §7,052
Florida Department of Environmental Protection:
Cooperative Collection Center Grant 37.007 HW104 35,000
Statewide Surface Water Restoration and Wastewater Projects 37.039 NS0d6 443,534
Statewide Surface Water Restoration and Wastewater Projects 37.039 LP42060 191,139
Total Statewide Surface Water Restoration and Wastewater Project Grants 634,673
Wastewater Treatment Facility Construction 37.077 WW420620 5,357,505
Small Community Wastewater Facility Grant 37.075 8G046 30,094
Passed thraugh St Johns River Water Management District:
Florida Springs Grant (US 441 Water Main) 37.052 35468 221,318
Florida Springs Grant (838 Wastewater Treatment) 37.052 34749 1,019,213
Florida Springs Grant (Rainbow Springs BMAP) 37.052 LP80026 121,198
Florida Springs Grant (Package Wastewater Removal) 37.052 LPS0021 124,732
Florida Springs Grant (NWRWWTF Expansion} 37.052 LPS0055 6,850,000
Total Florida Springs Grants 8,336,461
Total Florida Departmment of Environmental Protection 14,393,733
Florida Department of Fconomic ortunity:
Economic Development Tax Refund, Tax Credit and Grant Program  40.043 GO037 346,105
Total Florida Department of Economic Opportunity 346,105
Florida Housing Finance Corporation:
State Housing Initiatives Partnership (SHIP) Program 40.901 N/A 1,604,939
Total Florida Housing Finance Corporation 1,604,939
Florida D epartment of State:
State Aid to Libraries 45.030 21-8T-29 91,983
Total Florida Department of State 91,983
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND
STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA

(Continued)
State
State Grantor / State State Amount
Pass-Through Grantor / CSFA State Expenditures Provided to
Program Title/ Project Title Number Identification Number Omly Subrecipients
Florida Department of Transp ortation:
Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged
Trip and Equipment Grant Program 55.001 G1Y53 5,229
Trip and Equipment Grant Program 55.001 G1C32 26,738 -
Total Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged 31,967
Passed through Federal Aviation Administration:
Aviation Grant Program 55.004 GIK09 3,975 -
Aviation Grant Program 55.004 G1X10 350,136 -
Total Aviation Grants Program 336,111 -
County Incentive Grant Program: 55.008 G1987 287,168
Rail Programs Passenger Development Capacity or Crossing 55.021 GOB71 285,400
Total Florida Department of Transportation 960,646 -
Florida Department of Health:
County Grant Awards 64.003 9042 71,915 -
Total Florida Department of Health 71,913 -
Florida Department of Children and Families:
Homeless Grants-In-Aid 60.021 PPZs1 172,000 -
Homeless Grants-In-Aid 60.021 PPZs1 86,000 -
Homeless Grants-In-Aid 60.021 PPZ61 107,143 -
Homeless Grants-In-Aid 60.021 PPZ61 38,000 -
Total Homeless Grants-In-Aid 403,143
Total Florida Department of Children and Families 403,143 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE § 17,959,516 $ -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE § 69,294,153 § 33,177,462
Notes:
(1) Marion County received the following Local Government Water Supply Funding Assistance from WRWSA in FY21:
20-21 Local Government Water Supply Funding N/A N/A 1,160

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance includes the federal and state grant activity of Marion County,
Florida and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Uniform
Guidance and Chapter 10.530, Rules of the Auditor General. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or
used in, the preparation of the financial statements. Marion County received a negotiated cost rate for Federal Awards; therefore, Marion County did not elect
the minimus rate 10% for determining indirect cost amount.
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AND STATE PROJECTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of Auditor’s Report Issued

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:
Material weakness{es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Non-compliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards and State Projects

Internal Control Over Major Programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of Auditor’s Report Issued on Compliance for Major Programs

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with CFR 200.516(a), or Chapter 10.557 for local
government entities?

Identification of Major Programs:

Federal Programs
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

U.S. Department of the Treasury:
COVID-19 - Coronavirus Relief Fund
COVID-19 - Emergency Rental Assistance

State Projects
Florida Department of Environmental Protection:

Florida Springs Grant
Wastewater Treatment Facility Construction

Dollar Threshold Used to Distinguish Between Type A and
Type B Programs — Federal Programs

Dollar Threshold Used to Distinguish Between Type A and
Type B Programs — State Projects

Unmodified
No

None Reported
No

No
None Reported

Unmodified

No

Assistance Listing No. 14.218
Assistance Listing No. 14.231

Assistance Listing No. 21.019
Assistance Listing No. 21.023

CSFA No. 37.052
CSFA No. 37.077

51,540,039

$750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee pursuant to the Uniform Guidance? Yes

Other Issues

m  No summary schedule of prior audit findings is required because there were no prior audit findings

related to federal programs or state projects.
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PURVIS GRAY

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH SECTIOM 218.415, FLORIDA STATUTES

The Honorable Board of the County Commissioners
farion County, Florida
Ocala, Florida

We have examined Marion County, Florida®s [the County] compliance with the requirements of
Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2021, as required by
Section 10.556(10)(a), Awes of the Avditor Generol, Management is responsible for the County’s
compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the County's
compliance based on our examination,

Dur examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Those standards require that we plan and perform the
examination to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the County complied, in all material
respects, with the requirements referenced above. An examination involes performing procedures to
obtain evidence about whether the County complied with the specified requirements. The nature,
timing, and extent of procedures selected depend on our judgement, including an assessment of the risk
of material non-compliance, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the evidence we obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our opinion,

Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the County's compliance with specified
requirements.

In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements for
the year ended September 30, 2021.

This report is intended salely for the infarmation and use of the Legislative Auditing Committee, members
of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor General, federal and
other granting agencies, the Board of County Commissioners, and applicable management, and is not
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than those specified parties.

Fww/ Gw}/

March 14, 2022
Ocala, Florida

CERTIFIED: PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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PURVIS GRAY

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH SECTIONS 365.172(10) AND 365.173(2){d), FLORIDA STATUTES

The Honorable Board of the County Commissioners
farion County, Florida
Ocala, Florida

We have examined Marion County, Florida's [the County) compliance with the requirements of
Section 365.172(10), Florida Statutes, Authorized Expenditures of E911 Fee, and Section 365.173(2)(d),
Florida Statutes, Distribution omd Use of (E311) Funds, during the year ended September 30, 2021.
Management is responsible for the County’s compliance with those requirements. Dur responsibility s
to express an opinion on the County's compliance based on our examination,

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
examination to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the County complied, in all material
respects, with the requirements referenced above. An examination involes performing procedures to
obtain evidence about whether the County complied with the specified requirements. The nature,
timing, and extent of procedures selected depend on our judgement, including an assessment of the risk
of material non-compliance, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the evidence we obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the County's compliance with specified
requirements.

In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements for
the year ended September 30, 2021.

This report is intended salely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing Committee, members
of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor General, federal and
other granting agencies, the Board of County Commissioners, and applicable management, and i not
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

P G -

March 14, 2022
Ocala, Florida
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PURVIS GRAY

MANAGEMENT LETTER

The Honorable Board of the County Commissioners
Marien County, Florida
Ocala, Florida

Report of the Financial Statements
We have audited the basic financial statements of Marion County, Florida (the County) as of and for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2021, and have ssued our report thereon dated March 14, 2022,

Auditor's Responsibility

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements of Title 2 LS, Code of Federal
Regulotiors Part 200, Uniform Administrative Reguirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Regquirements of
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance); and Chapter 10550, Rules of the Auditor General.

Other Reporting Reguirements

We have issued our Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards; Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal
Program and State Project and on Internal Control over Compliance; Schedule of Findings and Questioned
Costs; and Independent Accountant’s Reports on examination conducted in accordance with American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants Professional Standards, AT-C Section 315, regarding compliance
requirements in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, Disclosure in those
reports and schedule, which are dated March 14, 2022, should be considered in conjunction with this
management letter.

Prior Audit Findings

Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective
actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial
audit report. There were no audit recommendations made in the preceding audit repart.

Official Title and Legal Authority

Section 10.554{1)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and legal
authority for the primary government and each compoenent unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in this
management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The legal authority for the
County and its component units is reported in Note 1 to the basic financial statements,

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Cradnesville | Oicali | Tallahazeee | Sarasots | Oifarido | Lakeland | finpa
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The Honorable Board of the County Commissioners
Marion County, Florida
Ocala, Florida

MANAGEMENT LETTER

Financial Condition and Management

Sections 10.554[1)[i}5.a. and 10.558{7), Rules of the Awditor Genergl, require us to apply appropriate
procedures and communicate the results of our determination, as to whether or not the County has met
one or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to identify the specific
conditionis} met. In connection with our audit, we determinad that the County did not meet any of the
conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.

Pursuant to Sections 10.554{1){(}5.b. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial
condition assessment procedures. It is management's responsibility to monitor the County's financial
condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by
management and the review of the financial information provided by same.

Section 10,554 (1){i}2., Rwes of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any recommendations
to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have such recommendations.

Special District Component Units

Section 10.554[1){i)5.c., Rwles of the Awditor General, requires, if appropriate, that we communicate the
failure of a special district that s a component unit of a county, municipality, or special district, to provide
the finandal information necessary for proper reporting of the component unit within the audited financial
statements of the county, municipality, or special district in accordance with Section 218.39(3){b), Flarida
Statutes. In connection with our audit, we did not note any special district component units that failed to
provide the necessary information for proper reporting in accordance with 218.39(b), Florida Statutes.

As required by Section 218.39(3)(c), Florida Statutes, and Section 10.55%4({1}(i}6, Ruwles of the Auditor
General, the Marion County Community Redevelopment Agency, Rainbow Lakes Estates Municipal Service
District, Marion County Law Library, and the Housing Finance Authority of Marion County, Florida
reported the required information in their separately ssued financial statements.

Additicnal Matters

Section 10.554{1){i}(3)., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate non-compliance with
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse that have occurred, or are likely to have occurred,
that have an effect on the financial statements that i less than material but warrants the attention of
those charged with governance, In connection with our audit, we did not note any such findings.

Purpose of this Letter

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing
Committes, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor
General, federal and other granting agencies, the Board of the County Commissioners, and applicable
management, and i not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified
parties,

\:P wWiHe/ émtj,
March 14, 2022
Dcala, Florida



GREGORY C. HARRELL
CLERE OF COURT AND COMPTROLLER — MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA

CLE OF COURT POAE CRRCE BOX 1030

OO0 OF CFRCIA BEC O DOALA, FLOEDA 344 TH-1 03

CLERX AND ACCOUMWANT OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMESIONERS TELEPHOME (352) 8715604

CUEICDIAN OF COUNTY FUNDS AND COUBNTY AUDROR W, MARIONG CUNTYCLERK, ORG
IMPACT FEE AFFIDAVIT

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared Gregory C. Harrell, who being duly
sworm, deposes and says on oath that;

1. | am the Chief Financial Officer of Marion County, Florida, which is a local government
entity of the State of Florida;

2. Marion County, Florida impact fee ordinances have been codified as Chapler 10, Aricle
X, Marion County Code; and

3. To the best of my knowledge, Marion County, Florida has complied and, as of the date of
this Affidavit, remains in compliance with Section 163.31801, Florida Statutes.

Fe -

Greg:?( Harrell
Mariogr Cpunty Clerk of Court and Comptroller

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

STATE OF FLORIDA,
COUNTY OF MARION

SWORN TO (OR AFFIRMED) AND SUBSCRIBED before me by means of E],;hysil:m presance

or [ online notarization on this \Fe day of Felviaouy L 2022,
Wui BB
Public

'\-\.H.
mésmalhr Known OR [ Produced Identification
Type of Identification Produced

234



Fl

T

S
1

i

Harrell

' Here to Serve and Protect the Public Trust

Cﬁﬂﬁty Parks & Recreation

Gregory C

County Wisitors and Convention Bureau

S

€ Photo Credits:

£
< I':._'.l' =

farion

-
g
.

¥
L

{ﬁ'calé;’Marion

i
%
-~ Marion County Public Relations

A0S AR
e

v

o



	Marion County Annual Comprehensive Financial Report - September 30, 2021
	Introductory Section
	Financial Section
	Statistical Section
	Compliance Section



